
 

 

Date: October 23, 2021  

To, 
The Manager, 
Bombay Stock Exchange Limited 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Fort, 
Mumbai – 400001. 
 
Scrip Code:  540654 

Subject: Annual Report of the Company, Notice convening 11th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) and 
Intimation of Book Closure date.  
 
Dear Sir/Ma’am,  
 
Pursuant to the Regulation 30 read with Part A of Schedule III and Regulation 34(1) of the Securities 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 please find 
enclosed Notice convening the 11th AGM and the Annual Report of the Company for the financial year 
2020-21.  
 
In compliance with relevant circulars issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, the Notice convening the AGM and the Annual Report of the Company for the 
financial year 2020-21 has been sent to all the members of the Company whose email addresses are registered 
with the Company or Depository Participant(s).  
 
The AGM of the Company will be held on Friday, November 26, 2021 at 3.00 P.M. through Video 
Conferencing/ Other Audio-Visual Means in accordance with the aforesaid circulars. 

The Notice of AGM along with the Annual Report for the financial year 2020-21 is also being made available 
on the website of BSE: https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/globalspace-technologies-
ltd/gstl/540654/ 
 
The Company has provided facility to exercise voting rights on all business proposed at the AGM by 
electronic means by using remote e-voting facility provided by National Services Depository Limited 
(NSDL). The remote e-voting shall commence on Monday, November 22, 2021 at 9.00 A.M. and shall end on 
Thursday, November 25, 2021 at 5.00 P.M.  
 
Further, the company’s Register of Members & Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed 
from Thursday, November 18, 2021 to Friday, November 26, 2021 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of 
11th AGM of the Company to be held on Friday, November 26, 2021 and the company has fixed Thursday, 
November 18, 2021 as at "Cut-off date" for the purpose of determining the members eligible to vote on all 
resolutions set out in 11th AGM Notice. The record date for the purpose of the Final dividend is Monday, 
November 15, 2021. 

 
This is for your information and records. 

Thanking you. 

https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/globalspace-technologies-ltd/gstl/540654/
https://www.bseindia.com/stock-share-price/globalspace-technologies-ltd/gstl/540654/


 

 
 
 
FOR GLOBALSPACE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED 
 
 
 
 
Swati Arora 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 
Memb No. A44529 
 

Encl: Notice of 11th AGM 
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Dear Shareholders!

About a decade ago, at the incep�on of this wonderful journey called Globalspace, we’d 

started out with an intent to lead India’s Digital Health-Care domain.

Back in our ini�al years, the digital health or health-tech market was incipient and hence we 

marched into trying our hand in other segments to bring sustainability to the organisa�on. 

However, we kept our passion by developing our tech solu�ons for the health sector. Coming 

to the present, Globalspace would probably be the only company to have a truly integrated 

digital health pla�orm covering Doctors, Pharmacies, Pharma Distributors & Pharma sales 

persons.

Time has come for the manifesta�on of something we had envisaged ten years ago.

We have built 3 digital assets, viz;

 Docexa- It’s a virtual clinic for the Doctors. The beta version of the product was launched 

in the mid of 2018 but we managed to get only 900 Doctors on the pla�orm. The advent 

of covid changed the dynamics of this pla�orm. Today we have more than 60 thousand 

Doctors on Docexa pla�orm. 
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 Mediapp- It’s an integrated pla�orm connec�ng Pharma distributors with retailers, with 

more than 45 thousand retailers embracing this pla�orm. We would be one of the 

largest Pharmacy networks in the country. 

 Vodo- It’s a CRM & CLM pla�orm for pharmaceu�cals sales representa�ves. We have 

some of the marquee Pharma companies as our esteemed clients. 

The next step for Globalspace is to integrate all the three pla�orms to leverage the exis�ng 

network and bring forth the unmatched exper�se to our customers. We would transform into 

a unique pla�orm which has the poten�al to redefine & bring posi�ve disrup�on in en�re 

health-tech space.

Our Ed-tech pla�orm is evolving with rapid pace, we have already launched our automated 

coding learning pla�orm and further our own DIY robo�c kits are lined up for a launch soon. 

With new educa�on policy introducing Coding as a compulsory subject amongst science and 

mathema�cs for grade 6th onwards, the ed-tech domain is set for an explosive growth.  We 

have got a first-mover’s advantage with Codingbee championship pla�orm, with its second 

season in opera�on. 

I am personally quite bullish on our future prospects with major upside in next 2 years. I 

sincerely hope that market would be able to discover true value of Globalspace concept. 

Looking forward to support and endorsement from you all to make this journey a highly 

successful and rewarding one for each one of us. 

Sd/-
Regards 
Krishna Singh
Chairman & Managing Director
krishna.singh@globalspace.in
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REGISTERED OFFICE :
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Tolia & Associates Chartered Accountants .
Address: B-7,Madhu Parag, 69, Swas�k Society,
 JVPD Scheme,  Vile Parle(West) Mumbai- 400056 
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Shweta Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants
th(Appointed by the Board w.e.f 29  June, 2021, subject to 

shareholder's approval in the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng)

REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT:
Link In�me India Private Limited
Address: C-101, 247 Park, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,
Surya Nagar, Gandhi Nagar, Vikhroli West,
Mumbai, Maharashtra- 400083
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NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT ELEVENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF GLOBALSPACE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED WILL 
BE HELD ON FRIDAY, NOVEMBER 26, 2021 AT 3:00 P.M. (IST) THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCE FACILITY ORGANIZED BY THE 
COMPANY, TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES. THE VENUE OF THE MEETING SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE THE 
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY.

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements, including Consolidated Financial Statements of the 
Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2021 together with reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. To appoint Mr. Amitabh Adyacharan Sinha (DIN: 03480980) who re�res by rota�on as a director and in this regard and being 
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoint M/s. Shweta Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the company and to determine their 
remunera�on and in this regard, if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on, the following Resolu�on as an Ordinary 
Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 139 and other applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules framed thereunder, as amended from �me to �me, M/s. Shweta Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants, (Firm 
Registra�on No. 127673W) be and are hereby appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office from the 
conclusion of this Annual General Mee�ng �ll the conclusion of the ensuing AGM to be held in the F.Y. 2023-24, at a 
remunera�on of Rs. 2,25,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs, Twenty-Five Thousand only) plus applicable taxes, for the current year 
and for the subsequent years.”

  “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/or Company Secretary of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to 
do all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this 
Resolu�on”

4. To approve Final Equity Dividend for the Financial Year 2020-21 and in this regard, if deemed fit, to pass, with or without 
modifica�on, the following Resolu�on as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT in terms of the recommenda�on of the Board of Directors of the Company, as per the resolu�on passed by 
them at their mee�ng held on Friday, October 22, 2021, dividend be declared @ 20% (i.e. Rs. 0.20/- per share) on 11,456,601 
Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each for the year ended March 31, 2021.”

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company and/or Company Secretary of the Company, be and is 
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things as may be considered necessary, desirable or expedient to 
give effect to this Resolu�on”

 Special Business:

5. To appoint Ms. Radhika Jhawar (DIN: 08560905) as Non- Execu�ve Independent Director of the company and in this regard, 
to pass the following resolu�on as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec�ons 149, 160, 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with 
Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014, and relevant provisions of the Ar�cle of Associa�ons of 
the Company, and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re-
enactment(s)thereof) and Regula�on 16, 17 and other relevant regula�ons of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (including any statutory modifica�on(s) or reenactment(s) thereof), relevant policies of 
the Company and  on the basis of the recommenda�on of Board of Directors of the Company, consent of members of the 
company be and hereby accorded to appoint Ms. Radhika Jhawar (DIN: 08560905) as Non- Execu�ve Independent Director 
of the Company with effect from March 21, 2021 and whose office shall not be liable to re�re by rota�on .

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director of the Company and/or the Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby 
authorized to sign such forms/returns, and various documents as may be required to be submi�ed to the Registrar of 
Companies, and to do all the acts, deeds and things which may be necessary to give effect to the above said resolu�on.”

6. To consider and approve Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company and subsequent altera�ons in the 
Memorandum of Associa�on of the Company and in this regard, to pass the following as an Ordinary Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 13, 61 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
2013, (including any statutory modifica�on (s) and reenactment (s) thereof for the �me being in force) and the rules framed 
thereunder, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to increase the Authorized Share Capital of the Company 
from the present Rs. 12,00,00,000 /- (Rupees Twelve Crores only) divided into 1,20,00,000 (One Crore, Twenty Lakhs) Equity 
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Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each to Rs. 17,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventeen Crores only) divided into 1,70,00,000 (One 
Crore, Seventy Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.” 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Memorandum of Associa�on of the Company be and is hereby altered by subs�tu�ng the 
exis�ng Clause V thereof by the following new Clause V as under: 

 V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is 17,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventeen Crores only) divided into 1,70,00,000 
(One Crore, Seventy Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company or the Company Secretary or such other person as authorized 
by the Board, be and are hereby authorized severally to do all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things and take all such steps as 
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolu�on.”

7. To consider and approve the diversifica�on of the business of the Company and as a result altera�on of the Object Clause of 
the Memorandum of Associa�on of the Company and in this regard, pass the following as a Special Resolu�on:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sec�on 13 and any other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, 
(including any statutory modifica�on (s) and reenactment (s) thereof for the �me being in force) and the rules framed 
thereunder, consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to diversify the business of the Company for carrying out the 
business of E-Pharmacy and as a result alter Clause IIIA of the Memorandum of Associa�on (MOA) of the Company by 
inser�on of the below men�oned sub-clause: 

 1A. To establish and run health portal, web sites, medical transcrip�on centers, data processing/computer centers, retail 
chains, e-commerce, and to offer wholesale, retail( Pharmacy and diagnos�cs) e-commerce facili�es, health constancy  
and data processing and other services that are normally offered by health portal, web sites, medical transcrip�on 
centers, data processing/computer centers, retail chains, etc.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT certain customary / cosme�c changes required to be made in the MOA to streamline the same 
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be and hereby executed along with the abovemen�oned altera�ons. 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company or the Company Secretary or such other person as authorized 
by the Board, be and are hereby authorized severally to do all such acts, deeds, ma�ers and things and take all such steps as 
may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolu�on.”

For and on behalf of the 
Globalspace Technologies Limited,

Sd/-
SWATI ARORA
COMPANY SECRETARY & COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Membership No. A44529
301, Sairaj Sadan, Plot No-36,
Sector-01, Sanpada,
Navi Mumbai – 400705.

REGISTERED & CORPORATE OFFICE:
605, 6th Floor, Rupa Solitaire Building,
Millennium Busines Park,
Navi Mumbai, Thane – 400710.
CIN: L64201MH2010PLC211219

Website: www.globalspace.in
E-mail: cs@globalspace.in

Place: Navi Mumbai
Date: October 23, 2021
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NOTES

1. In view of the massive outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing is a norm to be followed, the Government of 
India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs allowed conduc�ng Annual General Mee�ng through video conferencing (VC) or other 
audio visual means (OAVM) and dispensed personal presence of the members at the mee�ng. Accordingly, the Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs issued Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, Circular No.17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, Circular No. 
20/2020 dated May 05, 2020 and Circular No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, prescribing the procedures and manner of 
conduc�ng the Annual General Mee�ng through VC/OAVM. In terms of the said Circulars, the 11th Annual General Mee�ng 
(AGM) of the members be held through video conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM). Hence, Members can 
a�end and par�cipate in the AGM through VC/OAVM only. Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the Route Map is 
not annexed in this No�ce. 

2. The helpline number regarding any query/assistance for par�cipa�on in the AGM through VC/OAVM is 1800- 222-990.

3. Since, the AGM is being conducted through VC/OAVM, there is no provision for appointment of proxies. Accordingly, 
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available.

4. Members are requested to par�cipate on first come first serve basis, as par�cipa�on through video conferencing is limited 
and will be closed on expiry of 15 minutes from the schedule �me of the AGM. However, the par�cipa�on of members 
holding 2% or more is not restricted on first come first serve basis. Members can login and join 15 (fi�een) minutes prior to 
the schedule �me of mee�ng and window for joining shall be kept open �ll the expiry of 15 (fi�een) minutes a�er the 
schedule �me. Par�cipa�on is restricted upto 2000 members only. 

5. Members can raise ques�ons during the mee�ng or in advance at cs@globalspace.in. However, it is requested to raise the 
queries precisely and in short at the �me of mee�ng to enable to answer the same.

6. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sec�on 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the Special Business to be 
transacted at the Annual General Mee�ng is annexed hereto.

7. The detail of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at this Annual General Mee�ng as required under Regula�on 
36(3) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 read with Secretarial Standards-2 is 
annexed hereto.

8. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from November 18, 2021 to November 
26, 2021 (Both Days Inclusive).

9. In compliance with the aforemen�oned MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated 12th May, 2020, No�ce of the AGM along with 
the Annual Report 2020-21 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are 
registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the No�ce and Annual Report 2020-21 will also be 
available on the Company’s website h�ps://www.globalspace.in/, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 
www.bseindia.com respec�vely, and on the website of NSDL i.e www.evo�ng.nsdl.com.

10. Members (Physical / Demat) who have not registered their email addresses with the company can get the same registered 
with the company by reques�ng in member upda�on form by sending an email to and cs@globalspace.in. Please submit duly 
filled and signed member upda�on form to the abovemen�oned email. Upon verifica�on of the Form the email will be 
registered with the Company.

 Members seeking any informa�on with regard to any ma�er to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write to the Company 
through an email on cs@globalspace.in.

11. The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under Sec�on 170 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Sec�on 189 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in the No�ce will be available for inspec�on in electronic mode. 
Members can inspect the same by sending an email to cs@globalspace.in.

12. The Annual Report of your Company for the Financial Year 2020-21 is displayed on the website of the Company i.e. 
www.globalspace.in.

13. Members are requested to register / update their E-mail address with the Company so as to receive Annual Report and other 
communica�on electronically.

14. To support the ‘Green Ini�a�ve’, the members who have not registered their email addresses are requested to register the 
same with RTA/ Depositories.

15. The business set out in the no�ce will be transacted through remote e-vo�ng system and the instruc�ons and other 
informa�on rela�ng to remote e-vo�ng provided by Na�onal Securi�es Depository Limited are given herein below in this 
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No�ce. In case of any queries or grievances in connec�on with remote e-vo�ng, the shareholders may write to the registered 
office address of the Company.

16. In compliance with the provisions of Sec�on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and 
Administra�on) Amendment Rules, 2014 Company is pleased to provide the members to exercise their right to vote at 11th 
Annual General Mee�ng of the Company by electronic means through E-vo�ng facility provided by Na�onal Securi�es 
Depository Limited.

17. Mrs. Kumudini Bhalerao, Partner of Makarand M Joshi & Co; Prac�sing Company Secretaries have been appointed as the 
Scru�nizer to scru�nize the e-vo�ng process in a fair and transparent manner. The Scru�nizer shall within a period not 
exceeding 3 working days from the conclusion of the remote e-vo�ng period unblock the votes in the presence of at least 2 
witnesses, not in the employment of the Company and make a Scru�nizer’s Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if 
any, and forward it to the Chairman of the Company.

18. The results will be declared on or a�er the AGM of the Company. The results declared along with the Scru�nizer’s Report will 
be placed on the website of the Company h�ps://www.globalspace.in/ and on the website of NSDL within two days of 
passing of the resolu�ons at the AGM of the Company and communicated to the BSE Limited.
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E-VOTING

In compliance with the provisions of Sec�on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administra�on) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administra�on) Amendment Rules, 2015 read with 
Regula�on 44 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide 
members a facility to exercise their right to vote on business proposed to be transacted at the 11th Annual general Mee�ng (AGM) 
by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e-vo�ng services. The facility of cas�ng votes by the members 
using an electronic vo�ng system from a place other than the venue of the AGM, (“remote e-vo�ng”) will be provided by Na�onal 
Securi�es Depository (NDSL).

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS UNDER: -

The remote e-vo�ng period begins on November 22, 2021 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on November 25, 2021 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-
vo�ng module shall be disabled by NSDL for vo�ng therea�er. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / 
Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. November 18, 2021 may cast their vote electronically. The vo�ng right of 
shareholders shall be in propor�on to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 
November 18, 2021 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL E-Vo�ng system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Vo�ng system consists of “Two Steps” which are men�oned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Vo�ng system

A)  Login method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ng for Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode

 In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Vo�ng facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securi�es in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Par�cipants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 
order to access e-Vo�ng facility.

 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual Shareholders 
h o l d i n g  s e c u r i � e s  i n 
demat mode with NSDL.

1. E x i s � n g  I D e A S  u s e r  c a n  v i s i t  t h e  e - S e r v i c e s  w e b s i t e  o f  N S D L  v i z . 
h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-
Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 
under ‘IDeAS’ sec�on, this will prompt you to enter your exis�ng User ID and Password. 
A�er successful authen�ca�on, you will be able to see  e-Vo�ng services under Value 
added services. Click on “Access to  e-Vo�ng” under e-Vo�ng services and you will be 
able to see  e-Vo�ng page. Click on company name or e-Vo�ng service provider i.e. NSDL 
and you will be re-directed to e-Vo�ng website of NSDL for cas�ng your vote during the 
remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, op�on to register is available at 
h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3. Visit the e-Vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the 
home page of e-Vo�ng system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ sec�on. A new screen will open. You will have to enter 
your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), 
Password/OTP and a Verifica�on Code as shown on the screen. A�er successful 
authen�ca�on, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see 
e-Vo�ng page. Click on company name or e-Vo�ng service provider i.e. NSDL and you will 
be redirected to e-Vo�ng website of NSDL for cas�ng your vote during the remote 
e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by 
scanning the QR code men�oned below for seamless vo�ng experience.
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Type of shareholders  Login Method

Individual Shareholders 
holding securi�es in demat 
mode with CDSL

1. Exis�ng users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login through their user id and 
password. Op�on will be made available to reach e-Vo�ng page without any further 
a u t h e n � c a � o n .  T h e  U R L  f o r  u s e r s  t o  l o g i n  t o  E a s i  /  E a s i e s t  a r e 
h�ps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on New 
System Myeasi.

2. A�er successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to see the E Vo�ng Menu. 
The Menu will have links of e-Vo�ng service provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your 
vote.

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, op�on to register is available at 
h�ps://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registra�on/EasiRegistra�on

4. Alterna�vely, the user can directly access e-Vo�ng page by providing demat Account 
Number and PAN No. from a link in www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authen�cate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
demat Account. A�er successful authen�ca�on, user will be provided links for the 
respec�ve ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Vo�ng is in progress.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securi�es in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository par�cipants

You can also login using the login creden�als of your demat account through your Depository 
Par�cipant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vo�ng facility. Upon logging in, you will be able to 
see e-Vo�ng op�on. Click on e-Vo�ng op�on, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository 
site a�er successful authen�ca�on, wherein you can see e-Vo�ng feature. Click on company 
name or e-Vo�ng service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Vo�ng website of 
NSDL for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng 
during the mee�ng.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password 
op�on available at abovemen�oned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through Depository 
i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login Type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a 
request at  evo�ng@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evo�ng@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 or 
022-23058542-43

B)  Login Method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ng for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat mode and shareholders holding securi�es in physical mode.

 How to Log-in to NSDL e-Vo�ng website?

 1. Visit the e-Vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/ 
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

 2. Once the home page of e-Vo�ng system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ sec�on.

 3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verifica�on Code as shown on the 
screen.

  Alterna�vely, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 
exis�ng IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices a�er using your log-in creden�als, click on e-Vo�ng and you can 
proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.
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 4. Your User ID details are given below :

 Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat  Your User ID is:
 (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

a)  For Members who hold shares in demat account with 
NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in demat account with 
CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** 
then your user ID is 12**************

c)  For Members holding shares in Physical Form. EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the 
company For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 
101456 then user ID is 101456001***

 5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 

  a) If you are already registered for e-Vo�ng, then you can use your exis�ng password to login and cast your vote.

  b) If you are using NSDL e-Vo�ng system for the first �me, you will need to retrieve the ‘ini�al password’ which was 
communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘ini�al password’, you need to enter the ‘ini�al password’ and the 
system will force you to change your password.

  c) How to retrieve your ‘ini�al password’?

   (i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘ini�al password’ is 
communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the 
email and open the a�achment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 
digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘ini�al password’. 

   (ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps men�oned below in process for those shareholders 
whose email ids are not registered. 

 6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Ini�al password” or have forgo�en your password:

  a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) 
op�on available on www.evo�ng.nsdl.com.

  b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) op�on available on 
www.evo�ng.nsdl.com.

  c) If you are s�ll unable to get the password by aforesaid two op�ons, you can send a request at evo�ng@nsdl.co.in 
men�oning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

  d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for cas�ng the votes on the e-Vo�ng system of 
NSDL.

 7. A�er entering your password, �ck on Agree to “Terms and Condi�ons” by selec�ng on the check box.

 8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” bu�on.

 9. A�er you click on the “Login” bu�on, Home page of e-Vo�ng will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Mee�ng on NSDL e-Vo�ng system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Mee�ng on NSDL e-Vo�ng system?

1. A�er successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose 
vo�ng cycle and General Mee�ng is in ac�ve status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng period and cas�ng your vote 
during the General Mee�ng. For joining virtual mee�ng, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General 
Mee�ng”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Vo�ng as the Vo�ng page opens.
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4. Cast your vote by selec�ng appropriate op�ons i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish 
to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirma�on, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print op�on on the confirma�on page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolu�on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Ins�tu�onal shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of 
the relevant Board Resolu�on/ Authority le�er etc. with a�ested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) 
who are authorized to vote, to the Scru�nizer by e-mail to kumudiniparanjape@mmjc.in with a copy marked to 
evo�ng@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 
confiden�al. Login to the e-vo�ng website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful a�empts to key in the correct password. In 
such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” op�on 
available on www.evo�ng.nsdl.com to reset the password. 

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Ques�ons (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-vo�ng user manual for 
Shareholders available at the download sec�on of www.evo�ng.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 
44 30  or send a request to Ms. Sarita Mote at evo�ng@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and password and 
registra�on of e mail ids for e-vo�ng for the resolu�ons set out in this no�ce:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share cer�ficate 
(front and back), PAN (self a�ested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self a�ested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 
to cs@globalspace.in.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client 
master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self a�ested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self a�ested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@globalspace.in.

3. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method 
explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ng for Individual shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat mode.

4. Alterna�vely shareholder/members may send a request to evo�ng@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-
vo�ng by providing above men�oned documents.

5. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Vo�ng facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securi�es in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Par�cipants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 
account in order to access e-Vo�ng facility.

 THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Vo�ng on the day of the AGM is same as the instruc�ons men�oned above for remote  e-vo�ng.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote 
on the Resolu�ons through remote e-Vo�ng and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
Vo�ng system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Vo�ng will be eligible to a�end the AGM. However, they will not be eligible to 
vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Vo�ng on the day of the 
AGM shall be the same person men�oned for Remote e-vo�ng.

 INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to a�end the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Vo�ng system. Members 
may access by following the steps men�oned above for Access to NSDL e-Vo�ng system. A�er successful login, you can see 
link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General mee�ng” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 
VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Mee�ng menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member 
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login where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and 
Password for e-Vo�ng or have forgo�en the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Vo�ng 
instruc�ons men�oned in the no�ce to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Mee�ng through Laptops for be�er experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the 
mee�ng.

4. Please note that Par�cipants Connec�ng from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connec�ng via Mobile Hotspot 
may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctua�on in their respec�ve network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable 
Wi-Fi or LAN Connec�on to mi�gate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have ques�ons may send their ques�ons in advance men�oning their 
name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at cs@globalspace.in. The same will be replied by the 
company suitably.

6. Members who would like to express their views or ask ques�ons during the AGM may register themselves as a speaker by 
sending mail to the company at least 3 working days before the AGM at cs@globalspace.in

7. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of ques�ons and number of speakers, depending on the availability of 
�me for the AGM. 
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Explanatory Statement

(Pursuant to Sec�on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013)

Item No 3: 

To appoint M/s. Shweta Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the company and to determine their 
remunera�on and in this regard, if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modifica�on, the following Resolu�on as an Ordinary 
Resolu�on:

The Board of Directors of the Company recommended that M/s. Shweta Jain & Co. (ICAI Registra�on no. 122933), be appointed as 
the Statutory Auditors of the Company.

M/s. Shweta Jain & Co. (ICAI Registra�on no. 122933) have conveyed their consent to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company along with a confirma�on that, their appointment, if made by the members, would be within the limits prescribed under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Accordingly, the considera�on and approval of members is required for passing the Ordinary Resolu�on. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Persons or their rela�ves, in any way, concerned or interested in the said resolu�on.

Term of Appointment - To hold office from the conclusion of the 11th Annual Greneral Mee�ng �ll the conclusion of the ensuing 
AGM to be held in the F.Y. 2023-23

Remunera�on  - Rs. 2,25,000/- (Rupees Two Lakhs, Tewenty-Five Thousand only) plus applicable taxes, for the current year and for 
the subsequent years.

Item No 5: 

Ms. Radhika Jhawar was appointed as an Addi�onal Non-Execu�ve Independent Director of the Company with effect from March 
21, 2021 in accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Ar�cles of Associa�on of the 
Company. Pursuant to Sec�on 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the above director holds office only up to the date of the ensuing 
Annual General Mee�ng of the Company.

 Ms. Radhika Jhawar is not disqualified from being appointed as Non- Execu�ve Independent Director in terms of Sec�on 149 & 164 
of Companies Act, 2013 and has given her consent to act as Director.

The Board is of the view that the appointment of Ms. Radhika Jhawar as Non- Execu�ve Independent Director is desirable and 
would be beneficial to the Company and hence it recommends the said Resolu�on No. 5 for approval by the members of the 
Company.

None of the Directors/Key Managerial Personnel of the Company/their rela�ves, except Ms. Radhika Jhawar herself, is in any way 
concerned or interested, in the said resolu�on. The Board recommends the said resolu�on to be passed as an Ordinary Resolu�on.

Item No 6: 

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 12,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Crores only) divided into 1,20,00,000 (One 
Crore, Twenty Lakhs) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) each. 

Considering the increased fund requirements of the Company, the Board at its Mee�ng held on Friday, October 22, 2021, had 
accorded its approval for increasing the Authorised Share Capital from Rs. 12,00,00,000 /- (Rupees Twelve Crores only) to Rs. 
17,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventeen Crores only) by crea�on of 50,00,000 (Fi�y Lakhs) addi�onal equity shares of Rs. 10/- each, 
subject to shareholder’s approval. 

It is therefore proposed to increase the Authorised Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 12,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve Crores 
only) to Rs. 17,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventeen Crores only) by crea�on of 50,00,000 (Fi�y Lakhs) addi�onal equity shares of Rs. 10/- 
each ranking pari-passu with the exis�ng Equity Shares in all respects as per the Memorandum and Ar�cles of Associa�on of the 
Company.

Consequently, Clause V of the Memorandum of Associa�on would also require altera�on so as to reflect the changed Authorised 
Share Capital. 

The proposal for increase in Authorised Share Capital and amendment of Memorandum of Associa�on of the Company requires 
approval of members at an Annual General Mee�ng. 

A copy of the Memorandum of Associa�on of the Company duly amended will be available for inspec�on.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respec�ve rela�ves, are in any way concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolu�on. The consent of the members is, therefore, being sought for passing the 
aforesaid resolu�on of the no�ce as an Ordinary Resolu�on.
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Item No. 7: 

The Company with a view to diversify / expand the business of the Company proposes to launch the service of E-pharmacy 
considering the current market opportuni�es in the said business space.

Consequently, Clause IIIA of the Memorandum of Associa�on (MOA) of the Company would also require altera�on by inser�on of 
an addi�onal object clause to include the said business ac�vity. 

The said proposal of diversifica�on of the business of the Company and amendment of Memorandum of Associa�on of the 
Company requires approval of members at an Annual General Mee�ng through a Special Resolu�on. 

A copy of the Memorandum of Associa�on of the Company duly amended will be available for inspec�on.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respec�ve rela�ves, are in any way concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolu�on. The consent of the members is, therefore, being sought for passing the 
aforesaid resolu�on of the no�ce as an Ordinary Resolu�on.



Names of Directors A)  Mr. Amitabh Adyacharan Sinha B)  Ms. Radhika Jhawar

Type Execu�ve Director Non-Execu�ve Independent Director

Date of Birth 19/07/1964 06/02/1994

Age 57 years 27 years

Date of Appointment 24/06/2020 21/03/2021

Qualifica�on Post Graduate Bachelors in Business Administra�on from 
  St. Xaviers’ College, Kolkata, Masters in
  Gemology and Jewellery Design from
  Sawansukha Ins�tute of Gemology and
   Jewellery Design, Cer�ficate Course in Design 
  in Bou�que Apparel and Accessory 
  from Na�onal Ins�tute of Fashion Technology,
  Kolkata

No. of Equity Shares held 1,08,500 Nil

Exper�se in Specific He excels in Sales and marke�ng domain,  She excels in sales & Marke�ng, administra�on
 with key thrust in business  with key thrust in overall business
 management experience   management.
 predominantly in Pharmaceu�cal in  
 various Indian and Mul� -Na�onal  
 Organiza�on. 

Func�onal area Sales and Marke�ng Marke�ng & General Administra�on

Experience 30 years of experience across various  Worked as Assistant Merchandiser in W&G
 func�ons of Pharma Industry Fashion Pvt Ltd and currently working 
  as a Merchandiser in Aditya Dugar

Terms and Condi�ons   As may be decided by the Board. Appointed as an Addi�onal Non-Execu�ve
   Director of the Company for a period of 
  (years) subject to the approval of 
  shareholders of the Company at ensuing 
   Annual  General Mee�ng of the Company.

Date of first appointment 24/06/2020 21/03/2021

Directorships held in other  NIL NIL
Companies 

Par�culars of Commi�ee  NIL NIL
Chairmanship / Membership 
held in other Companies 

Rela�onship with other  NA NA
Directors inter-se 

Names of listed en��es in  NA NA
which the person also holds 
the directorship 

The membership of  NA NA
Commi�ees of the board 

No. of board mee�ngs 9 NIL
a�ended during the
financial year 2020-21

Remunera�on Sought to Same as earlier NIL
be paid

Remunera�on last paid Rs. 21,86,707/- NIL
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Par�culars of Directors seeking Appointment / Reappointment at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng pursuant to Regula�on 
36(3) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 read with the Secretarial Standards-2 
prescribed for General Mee�ngs:

A. Re-appointment of Mr. Amitabh Adyacharan Sinha as an Execu�ve Director and 

B. Appointment of Ms. Radhika Jhawar as an Addi�onal Non-Execu�ve Independent Director



Names of Auditor/Firm M/s. Shweta Jain & Co.

Registra�on number of auditor’s firm’s No 127673W

Date of forma�on 17/01/2006

Exper�se in Specific Finance, Audi�ng, Accoun�ng and Taxa�on Services 
Func�onal area Finance & Accoun�ng, Legal & Secretarial, Payroll Processing, 
 Taxa�on Services, Li�ga�on, Audit & Assurance, Valua�on.

Experience Around 16 years

Terms and Condi�ons for appointment As men�oned above in Item No. 3 of Explanatory Statement.

Auditor in other Private Companies Yes

Names of listed en��es in which the person/ firm  Nil
also holds posi�on of statutory auditor 

Proposed fees payable Rs. 2,25,000/-

Fee Payable to outgoing auditor Rs. 2,25,000/-
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Par�culars of Auditor seeking Appointment / Reappointment at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng pursuant to Regula�on 36(5) 
of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015:



21

NAMES OF PAST AND PRESENT DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY WITH DIRECTOR 
IDENTIFICATION NUMBERS (DIN)

1. Mr. Krishna Murari Singh (DIN 03160366)

2. Ms. Beauty Krishnamurari Singh                          (DIN 03481024)

3. Mr. M. V. Subramanian                                            (DIN 07628898)

4. Mr. Venkatesh Shamanna Vastare                           (DIN 07648334)

5. Mr. Amitabh Sinha                                                   (DIN 03480980)

6. Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva                                          (DIN 08770012)*

7. Mrs. Charu Golash                                                    (DIN 01260597)*

8. Ms Radhika Jhawar                                                  (DIN  08560905)*

             

• Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva(DIN 08770012) ceased w.e.f. July 24, 2020

• Mrs. Charu Golash (DIN 01260597) was appointed as Addi�onal Non execu�ve Independent director  w.e.f. October 21,2020 
and ceased the office w.e.f. December 22,2020.

• Ms. Radhika Jhawar (DIN 08560905) appointed as Addi�onal Non execu�ve Independent Director w.e.f March 21,2021.   

The above disclosure has been given in accordance with Sec�on 158 of Companies Act 2013, and reference of any of the above 
directors made in this document be read along with the above disclosure of their respec�ve Director Iden�fica�on Numbers.   

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

OF

GLOBALSPACE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2020-21

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS GLOBALSPACE TECHNOLOGIES PRIVATE LIMITED)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To
The Members,
Globalspace Technologies Limited
Address: 605, 6th Floor, Rupa Solitaire Building, Millennium Business Park,
Navi Mumbai 400710

Your Directors have pleasure in presen�ng the 11th Annual Report of the Company together with the Audited Statement of 
Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2021.

1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS & RESULTS: 

 a. Financial Results (Standalone and Consolidated):

  The Company’s performance during the year ended 31st March, 2021 as compared to the previous financial year, is 
summarized below:

  Standalone Balance Sheet:
(Amount in Rupees)

Income 25,11,53,891/- 24,91,74,069/-

Less: Expenses 17,95,87,631/- 19,38,70,092/-

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 7,15,66,261/- 5,53,03,997/-

Less: Provision for tax Nil Nil

Current Tax 1,15,31,068/- 1,33,17,000/-

Deferred Tax 30,60,442/- 3,00,658/-

Income Tax of earlier years w/off 2,94,088/- Nil

Excep�on Income Nil Nil

Excep�on expenditure Nil Nil

Profit a�er Tax 5,66,80,662/- 4,16,86,319/-

Total Comprehensive Income 5,88,47,658/- 4,13,45,051/-

Par�culars For the financial year  For the financial year 
 ended31st March, 2021 ended31st March, 2020

APPROPRIATION:

Interim Dividend Nil Nil

Final Dividend Nil Nil

Tax on distribu�on of dividend Nil Nil

Transfer of General Reserve Nil Nil

Balance carried to Balance sheet 5,88,47,658/- 4,13,45,051/-

Income 27,17,52,843/- 25,92,21,951/-

Less: Expenses 19,98,31,273/- 21,56,13,204/-

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 7,19,21,571/- 4,36,08,747/-

Less: Provision for tax Nil Nil

Current Tax 1,15,31,068/- 1,33,17,000/-

Deferred Tax 33,28,141/- 5,34,330/-

Income Tax of earlier years w/off 2,94,088 Nil

Excep�on Income Nil Nil

Excep�on expenditure Nil Nil

Profit a�er Tax 5,67,68,274/- 2,97,57,417/-

Par�culars For the financial year  For the financial year 
 ended31st March, 2021 ended31st March, 2020

 Consolidated Balance Sheet:
(Amount in Rupees)
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APPROPRIATION:

Interim Dividend Nil Nil

Final Dividend Nil Nil

Tax on distribu�on of dividend Nil Nil

Transfer of General Reserve Nil Nil

Balance carried to Balance sheet 5,98,83,999/- 2,94,16,149/- 

 b. OPERATIONS:

  During the year under review, the Company has reported a Consolidated Profit before tax at Rs. 7,19,21,571/- as 
compared to a profit of Rs. 4,36,08,747/- in previous year.

  The Company reported Standalone Profit before Tax at Rs. 7,15,66,261/- as against  Rs. 5,53,03,977/-in the previous 
year.

  The Company con�nues to be engaged in the ac�vi�es pertaining to Informa�on Technology and Communica�on 
industry, including providing of customized so�ware solu�ons and other support services to enterprises.

  There was no change in nature of the business of the Company, during the year under review.

 c. DIVIDEND:

  The Board has recommended to declare a dividend of  (i.e. Rs. 0.20/- per share) on 11,456,601 Equity Shares of face 
value Rs. 10/- out of the profits of the company each for the year ended March 31, 2021 and the same shall be placed at 
the Annual General Mee�ng for the approval of the shareholders.

 d. UNPAID DIVIDEND & IEPF:

  The Company has not transferred any amount to the Investor Educa�on & Protec�on Fund (IEPF) and no amount is lying 
in Unpaid Dividend A/c of the Company.

 e. TRANSFER TO RESERVES:

  The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve.

 f. REPORT ON PERFORMANCE OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

  The performance and financial posi�on / salient features of the financial statement of each of the subsidiaries, 
associates and joint venture companies for the year ended 31st March 2021, and also the details of companies which 
have become or ceased as subsidiary, associates and joint ventures, during the year under review, if applicable, is given 
in Form AOC-1 and is a�ached and marked as Annexure I and forms part of this Report.

 g. DEPOSITS:

  The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions of Sec�on 73 of the 
Companies Act 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under 
review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing of details rela�ng to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act or the 
details of deposits which are not in compliance with the Chapter V of the Act is not applicable.

 h. LOANS FROM DIRECTORS OR DIRECTORS’ RELATIVES:

  During the financial year under review, the Company has borrowed Rs. 20,00,000/- from Mr. Krishna Murari Singh, 
Director of the company. 

 i. PARTICULAR OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTIES:

  The details of transac�ons/contracts/arrangements referred to in Sec�on 188(1) of Companies act 2013 entered by the 
Company with related party(ies) as defined under the provisions of Sec�on 2(76) of the Companies Act, 2013, during 
the financial year under review were in ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis, the same are 
furnished in Form AOC-2 and is a�ached as Annexure II and forms part of this report.

 j. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

  The par�culars as required under the provisions of Sec�on 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of 
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conserva�on of energy, technology absorp�on, foreign exchange 
earnings and outgo etc. are furnished in Annexure III which forms part of this Report.
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 k. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALAYSIS REPORT:

  Pursuant to Regula�on 17 to 27, clause (b) to (i) of Regula�on 46 and Para C, D & E of Schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosures Requirements), 2015, the corporate governance report together with Auditor cer�ficate 
on compliance of the same is annexed hereto and marked as Annexure VI. And Management Discussion and Analysis 
report as Annexure V.

 l. ANNUAL RETURN:

  Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, extract of the Annual Return for the 
financial year ended 31st March, 2021 as referred in Sec�on 92(3) in MGT-7 format on the below men�oned web-
address:-www.globalspace.in

 m. PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENTS, LOANS, GUARANTEES AND SECURITIES:

  Details of Loans, investment and guarantees covered under sec�on 186 of Companies Act, 2013, forms part of the 
notes to the standalone financial statement of the company.

 n. DISCLOSURES UNDER SECTION 134(3)(l) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

  Except as disclosed elsewhere in this report, no material changes and commitments which could affect the Company’s 
financial posi�on, have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and date of this report.

 o. DISCLOSURE OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

  The Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements as designed and implemented by the Company 
are adequate. During the year under review, no material or serious observa�on has been received from the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for inefficiency or inadequacy of such controls.

 p. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY:

  During the financial year under review, there is no material change took place.

2. MATTERS RELATED TO DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 

 a. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

  i. Appointment 

   a. Mr. Amitabh Sinha was appointed as the Addi�onal Execu�ve Director w.e.f. June 24, 2020.

   b. Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva was appointed as the Addi�onal Independent Director w.e.f. July 4, 2020.

   c. Mrs. Charu Golash was appointed as the Addi�onal Independent Director w.e.f. October 21, 2020.

   d. Ms. Radhika Jhanwar was appointed as the Addi�onal Independent Director w.e.f. March 21, 2021.

  ii. Resigna�on

   a. Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva (DIN: 08770012) had resigned as the Addi�onal Independent Director w.e.f. July 24, 
2020.

   b. Mrs. Charu Golash had resigned as the Addi�onal Independent Director w.e.f. December 22, 2020.

  iii. Re�rement by rota�on

   In accordance with the provisions of the Act, none of the Independent Directors were liable to re�re by rota�on.

   As per the provisions of Sec�on 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Amitabh Adyacharan Sinha (holding DIN: 
03480980) is liable to re�re by rota�on at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng and being eligible, has offered 
himself for re-appointment. The Board of Directors recommends the re-appointment of Mr. Amitabh Adyacharan 
Sinha as a Director of the Company. The detailed profile of Mr. Amitabh Adyacharan Sinha, recommended for re-
appointment is men�oned in the No�ce for the AGM in pursuance to Secretarial Standards-2 and Regula�on 36 of 
SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

 b. DECLARATIONS BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

  The Company has received the following declara�ons from all the Independent Directors confirming that:

   They meet the criteria of independence as prescribed under the provisions of the Act, read with the Schedules 
and Rules issued thereunder, as well as of Regula�on 16 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons.
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   In terms of Rule 6(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014, they have 
registered themselves with the Independent Director’s database maintained by the Indian Ins�tute of Corporate 
Affairs, Manesar.

   In terms of Regula�on 25(8) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons, they are not aware of any circumstance or situa�on, which 
exist or may be reasonably an�cipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their du�es.

   In terms of Regula�on 25(9) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons, the Board of Directors has ensured the veracity of the 
disclosures made under Regula�on 25(8) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons by the Independent Directors of the Company.

   None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified for being appointed as Directors as specified in Sec�on 
164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 14(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) 
Rules, 2014.  

3. DISCLOSURES RELATED TO BOARD, COMMITTEES AND POLICIES: 

 a. BOARD MEETINGS

  The Board of Directors met 9 �mes during the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 in accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder.

  The details the mee�ngs of the Board and its Commi�ees held during the year under review are stated in the Corporate 
Governance Report Annexure VI.

  The Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards in respect of all the above Board mee�ngs.

 b. AUDIT COMMITTEE

  The Audit Commi�ee of Directors was cons�tuted pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 
are as follows:

  Mr. M. V. Subramanian Chairman

  Mr. Venkatesh S. Vastare Member

  Mr. Krishna Murari Singh Member

  For details of the Audit commi�ee mee�ngs held for the financial year 2020-21 and powers & role of the Audit 
Commi�ee are included in the Corporate Governance Report Annexure VI. 

  During the year under review, all the recommenda�ons made by the Audit Commi�ee were accepted by the Board.

 c. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

  The Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee of Directors was cons�tuted pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 178 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:

  Mr. Venkatesh S. Vastare                    Chairman

  Mrs. Beauty KrishnaMurari Singh     Member

  Mr. M.V. Subramanian                         Member

  For details of the Nomina�on & Remunera�on commi�ee mee�ngs held for the financial year 2020-21 and powers & 
role of the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee are included in the Corporate Governance Report Annexure VI. 

  In terms of the applicable provisions of the act, read with the rules framed thereunder and the SEBI Regula�ons, the 
Board has placed a policy for appointment, removal and remunera�on of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Senior Managerial personnel and also on-Board diversity, succession planning and Evalua�on of Directors. The 
remunera�on paid to Directors, KMP of the company are as per the terms laid down under NRC Policy of the company.

  The salient features of the Remunera�on Policy and changes therein are a�ached as Annexure IV and the 
Remunera�on Policy is available on Company’s website and can be accessed in the link provided herein below: 
www.globalspace.in
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 d. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

  The Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee of Directors was cons�tuted pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are as follows:

  Mrs. Beauty Krishnamurari Singh Chairman

  Mr. Krishna Murari Singh Member

  Mr.  M.V. Subramanian Member 

  For details of the mee�ngs held for the financial year 2020-21, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, which 
forms part of this report in Annexure VI.

 e. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY FOR THE DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES:

  The Board of Directors of the Company has, pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Mee�ngs of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, framed “Vigil Mechanism Policy” for 
Directors and employees of the Company to provide a mechanism which ensures adequate safeguards to employees 
and Directors from any vic�miza�on on raising of concerns of any viola�ons of legal or regulatory requirements, 
incorrect or misrepresenta�on of any, financial statements and reports, etc.

  The employees of the Company have the right/op�on to report their concern/grievance to the Chairman of the Board 
of Directors.

  The Company is commi�ed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of business 
opera�ons.

 f. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY:

  The Board of Directors of the Company has designed Risk Management Policy and Guidelines to avoid events, situa�ons 
or circumstances which may lead to nega�ve consequences on the Company’s businesses, and define a structured 
approach to manage uncertainty and to make use of these in their decision-making pertaining to all business divisions 
and corporate func�ons. Key business risks and their mi�ga�on are considered in the annual/ strategic business plans 
and in periodic management reviews.

 g. ANNUAL EVALUATION OF DIRECTORS, COMMITTEE AND BOARD:

  The Board has carried out an annual performance evalua�on of its own performance, and of the directors individually, 
as well as the evalua�on of all the commi�ees i.e., Audit, Nomina�on and Remunera�on, Stakeholders Rela�onship, 
Commi�ee of Directors.

  The Board adopted a formal evalua�on mechanism for evalua�ng its performance and as well as that of its commi�ees 
and individual directors, including the Chairman of the Board the exercise was carried out by feedback survey from each 
directors covering Board func�oning such as composi�on of Board and its Commi�ees, experience and competencies, 
governance issues etc. The separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual directors 
including the Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as a�endance, contribu�on at the 
mee�ng etc.

 h. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

  During the year under review, pursuant to Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, as the company fall under the 
threshold men�oned in Sec�on 135, Company was liable to do its Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure of 
minimum of 2% of the Average Profits of the immediately preceding three financial years. 

  During the financial year ended 31st March, 2021, the Company incurred CSR Expenditure of Rs. 7,30,678/- (Rupees 
Seven Lakhs, Thirty Thousand, Six hundred and Seventy Eight). The CSR Expenditure was made to PM Care Fund. The 
CSR Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company at h�ps://www.globalspace.in/investor.html.

  MCA vide its commencement No�fica�on(s) dated 22nd January, 2021, no�fied the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility Policy) Amendment Rules, 2021, which inter alia provides for the revised format of annual report for 
publishing the CSR ac�vi�es undertaken during the financial year ended 31st March, 2021 and therea�er. The other 
changes pursuant to said No�fica�on(s) in the CSR provisions, have been briefly highlighted in the annual report of the 
Company’s CSR ac�vi�es for the financial year ended 31st March, 2021. 

  The Company’s CSR Policy statement and annual report on the CSR ac�vi�es undertaken during the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2021, in accordance with Sec�on 135 of the Act and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modifica�on(s) or re- enactment(s) thereof for the �me being in force) is set 
out in Annexure VIII to this report.
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4. AUDITORS AND REPORTS :

 The ma�ers related to Auditors and their Reports are as under:

 a. OBSERVATIONS OF STATUTORY AUDITORS ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH 2021:

  The observa�ons / qualifica�ons / disclaimers made by the Statutory Auditors in their report for the financial year 
ended 31st March, 2021 read with the explanatory notes therein are self-explanatory and therefore, do not call for any 
further explana�on or comments from the Board under Sec�on 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

 b. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021 [only if debentures are listed OR the unlisted 
public company has paid up capital of Rs. 50 crores or more as on 31.03.2019 or the unlisted public company has 
turnover of Rs. 250 crores or more during the financial year 2018-19]:

  Provisions of Sec�on 204 read with Sec�on 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, mandates to obtain Secretarial Audit 
Report from Prac�cing Company Secretary, CS Nayan Arun Deshmukh, Prac�cing Company Secretary had been 
appointed to issue Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year 2020-21.

  The Secretarial Audit Report issued by CS Nayan Arun Deshmukh, Prac�cing Company Secretary, in Form MR-3 for the 
financial year 2020-21 forms part to this report. The said report does not contain any observa�on or qualifica�on 
requiring explana�on or comments from the Board under Sec�on 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013.

 c. STATUTORY AUDITORS:

  Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, M/s. Tolia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, was appointed as the Statutory auditors of the Company for the 
period of 5 years from the conclusion of the AGM held on 26th September 2016 �ll the conclusion of ensuing AGM to be 
held in the F.Y. 2021-22, subject to the ra�fica�on of the said appointment at every AGM. The Board a�er confirming 
their eligibility hereby recommends the ra�fica�on of M/s. Tolia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company.

  The tenure of office of M/s. Tolia & Associates, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company will expire 
with the conclusion of the ensuing AGM of the Company. 

  Accordingly, the Board of Directors of the Company at their mee�ng held on June 29, 2021 on recommenda�on of the 
Audit Commi�ee and subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the ensuing AGM, approved the 
appointment of M/s. Shweta Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registra�on No. 127673W), as the Statutory 
Auditors, for a period of two (2) years i.e., from the conclusion of the 11th AGM �ll the conclusion of 13th AGM of your 
Company. 

  The Company has received wri�en consent and cer�ficate of eligibility in accordance with Sec�ons 139, 141 and other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules issued thereunder (including any statutory modifica�on(s) 
or re-enactment(s) for the �me being in force), from M/s. Shweta Jain & Co., Chartered Accountants. Further, they have 
confirmed that they hold a valid cer�ficate issued by the Peer Review Board of the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI) as required under the Lis�ng Regula�ons.

 d. MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS:

  Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and 
Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended from �me to �me, the Company is not required to maintain Cost Records under said 
Rules.

 e. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY STATUTORY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12):

  There were no incidences of repor�ng of frauds by Statutory Auditors of the Company under Sec�on 143(12) of the Act 
read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

5.         OTHER DISCLOSURES:

 Other disclosures as per provisions of Sec�on 134 of the Act read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are furnished as 
under:

 a. DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL:

  No orders have been passed by any Regulator or Court or Tribunal which can have impact on the going concern status 
and the Company’s opera�ons in future.
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 b. DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

  In terms of Sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in rela�on to the audited financial statements of the Company 
for the year ended 31st March, 2021, the Board of Directors hereby confirms that:

  i. in the prepara�on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun�ng standards had been followed along with 
proper explana�on rela�ng to material departures;

  ii. such accoun�ng policies have been selected and applied consistently and the Directors made judgments and 
es�mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at 31st March, 2021 and of the profit/loss of the Company for that year;

  iii. proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance with the 
provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and 
other irregulari�es;

  iv. the annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis

  v. the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal 
financial controls are adequate and were opera�ng effec�vely.

  vi. proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely;

 c. DISCLOSURE REGARDING INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE:

  The Company has complied with the provisions rela�ng to the cons�tu�on of Internal Complaints Commi�ee under the 
Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013.

  Under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013 the company 
has received Complaints which are enunciated below:

Sr. No. Number of Complaints received Date of receipt of Complaints

NA NA NA

 d. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 43(a)(ii) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

  The Company has not issued any shares with differen�al rights and hence no informa�on as per provisions of Sec�on 
43(a)(ii) of the Act read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

 e. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 54(1)(d) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

  The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence no informa�on as per 
provisions of Sec�on 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 
2014 is furnished.

 f. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 62(1)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

  The Company has not issued any equity shares under Employees Stock Op�on Scheme during the year under review 
and hence no informa�on as per provisions of Sec�on 62(1)(b) of the Act read with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share 
Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

 g. DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 67(3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

  During the year under review, there were no instances of non-exercising of vo�ng rights in respect of shares purchased 
directly by employees under a scheme pursuant to Sec�on 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share 
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 is furnished.

 h. COVID-19 IMPACT:

  The outbreak of Corona virus (COVID-19) pandemic globally is causing a slowdown in economic ac�vity. In many 
countries, businesses are being forced to cease or limit their opera�ons for long or indefinite periods. Measures taken 
to contain the spread of the virus, including travel bans, quaran�nes, social distancing, and closures of non-essen�al 
services have triggered disrup�ons to businesses worldwide, resul�ng in an economic slowdown and uncertain�es 
pertaining to future opera�ons.

  During this challenging �me, the Company’s focus is on suppor�ng customers, employees and the local communi�es in 
which we operate along with safeguarding the interest of all the Stakeholders. 
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  The Company is remotely opera�onal and has instructed its staff to Work from Home since the first na�onwide 
lockdown and the Company has made all the necessary arrangements to ensure the staff is able to deliver on projects 
for the Company’s clients.

  The Company has also provided the brief details of impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the company pursuant to SEBI 
Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/84 dated May 20, 2020, to the stock exchange vide its le�er dated June 2, 
2020. 

 6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS AND APPRECIATION: 

 Your Directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, shareholders, suppliers, bankers, business partners/ associates, 
financial ins�tu�ons and Central and State Governments for their consistent support and encouragement to the Company 

For and on behalf of the
Globalspace Technologies Limited,

Sd/-
Krishna Murari Singh 
Managing Director 
DIN : 03160366
Address : F/702, Hawre Panchwa� Plaza,
Plot no. 92-96, Sector-5, Opp Police Sta�on, Ghansoli, Navi Mumbai – 400701.

Sd/-
Beauty Krishnamurari Singh 
Director
DIN : 03481024
Address : F/702, Hawre Panchwa� Plaza,
Plot no. 92-96, Sector-5, Opp Police Sta�on, Ghansoli, Navi Mumbai – 400701.

Date : October 22, 2021
Place : Navi Mumbai
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ANNEXURE I

Form AOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Informa�on in respect of each subsidiary/ Associate Companies/ Joint Venture Companies to be presented 
with amounts in Rs)

Sr. No Par�culars Par�culars

1 Name of the subsidiary/Joint Venture/ Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private Limited
 Associate Companies 

2 Repor�ng period for the subsidiary concerned, 
 if different from the holding company’s 
 repor�ng period NA

3 Repor�ng currency and Exchange rate as on 
 the last date of the relevant Financial Year in the 
 case of foreign subsidiaries. NA

4 Share capital Rs.10,00,000/-

5 Reserves and Surplus Rs. (1,07,81,484)/-

6 Total Assets Rs. 4,87,04,814/-

7 Total Liabili�es Rs. 3,82,51,298/-

8 Investments Nil

9 Turnover Rs. 2,05,98,953/-

10 Profit before taxa�on Rs. 3,55,312/-

11 Provision for taxa�on ( Deferred Tax) Rs. 2,67,699/-

12 Profit a�er taxa�on Rs. 87,613/-

13 Proposed Dividend Nil

14 % of shareholding 79.99%

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence opera�ons: Nil

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year: Not applicable
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

(Statement pursuant to Sec�on 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures)

Sr.  Par�culars Name 1 Name 2 Name 3
No

1.  Name of Associates/Joint Ventures NA NA NA

2.  Latest audited Balance Sheet Date NA NA NA

3.  Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the company on 
 the year end(in numbers) NA NA NA 

 1. Number 

 2. Amount of Investment in Associates/ Joint Venture

 3. Extent of Holding %   

4.  Descrip�on of how there is significant influence NA NA NA

5.  Reason why the associate/joint venture is not consolidated NA NA NA

6.  Networth a�ributable to Shareholding as per latest audited Balance Sheet NA NA NA

7.  Profit / Loss for the year NA NA NA 

 1. Considered in Consolida�on

 2. Not Considered in Consolida�on 

Names of associates / joint ventures which are yet to commence opera�ons: NIL 

Names of associates / joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year: NIL 

As per our Report of even date

For Tolia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number:111017W

Sd/-
Kiran P. Tolia
Proprietor
Membership Number :043637

For and on behalf of the Global Space Technologies Limited,

Sd/-
Krishna Murari Singh
Managing Director 
DIN: 03160366
Address: F/702, Hawre Panchwa� Plaza, 
Plot no. 92-96, Sector-5, Opp Police Sta�on, 
Ghansoli, Navi Mumbai – 400701.

Sd/-
Beauty Krishnamurari Singh
Director
DIN : 03481024
Address: F/702, Hawre Panchwa� Plaza, 
Plot no. 92-96, Sector-5, Opp Police Sta�on, 
Ghansoli, Navi Mumbai – 400701.
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ANNEXURE II

Form AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-sec�on (3) of Sec�on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of par�culars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related par�es referred to in sub-
sec�on (1) of Sec�on 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transac�ons under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangement or transac�ons not at arm's length basis

Name
of the
 related 
party

Nature  of

Rela�onship

Nature of 
contracts / 
arrangements / 
transac�ons

Dura�on of the 
contracts / 
arrangements / 
transac�ons

Salient terms of 
the contracts
or arrange- 
ments or 
transac�ons 
including the 
value, if any 

Jus�fica�on for 
entering into 
such contracts or 
arrangement or 
transac- �ons

Date of Board 
Approval

Amount paid as 
advances, if any:

Date on which 
the resolu�on 
was passed in 
general mee�ng 
as required 
under first 
proviso to 
sec�on 188

- --------

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transac�ons at arm’s length basis

Name
of the
related 
party

Nature  of

Rela�onship

Nature of 
contracts / 
arrangements / 
transac�ons

Dura�on of the 
contracts / 
arrangements / 
transac�ons

Salient terms of the 
contracts
or arrange- ments or 
transac�ons including 
the value, if any 

Date of Board 
Approval

Amount paid as 
advances, if any:

Milon Medi App LLP En�ty in which a 
KMP is interested

Equity 
commitment in 
an LLP

NA Rs 7,23,66,195/- - NA

Makebot Robo�c 
Solu�ons Private Limited

Subsidiary with 
79.99% holding

Unsecured 
loans given

NA Rs. 40,28,706/- - NA

Makebot Robo�c 
Solu�ons Private Limited

Subsidiary with 
79.99% holding

Unsecured 
loans repaid

NA Rs. 34,96,765/- - NA

Krishna Murari Singh Managing Director Unsecured 
loans taken

NA Rs. 20,00,000/- - NA

Beauty Singh Non Execu�ve 
Director

Si�ng Fees NA Rs. 2,40,000/- - NA

Krishna Murari Singh Managing Director Salary NA Rs. 48,00,000/- - NA

Prodyut 

Bha�acharya

Key Management 
Personnel (KMP’s)

Salary to KMP’s NA Rs. 3,25,074/- - NA

Swa� Arora Key Management 
Personnel (KMP’s)

Salary to KMP’s NA Rs. 3,53,716/- - NA

Amitabh Sinha Key Management 
Personnel (KMP’s)

Salary to KMP’s NA Rs. 18,62,340/- - NA

Miljon Medi App LLP En�ty in which a 
KMP is interested

Sales NA Rs. 2,26,75,000/- - NA

Miljon Medi App LLP En�ty in which a 
KMP is interested

Purchase NA Rs. 1,75,00,000/- - NA

Note: All the transac�on entered into by the Company are in Ordinary course of business and at Arm's Length basis but since these are material 
transac�ons the same is disclosed hereupon

For and on behalf of the 
Global Space Technologies Limited,

Sd/-
Krishna Murari Singh
Managing Director 
DIN: 03160366
Address: F/702, Hawre Panchwa� Plaza, 
Plot no. 92-96, Sector-5, Opp Police Sta�on, 
Ghansoli, Navi Mumbai – 400701.

Sd/-
Beauty Krishnamurari Singh
Director
DIN : 03481024
Address: F/702, Hawre Panchwa� Plaza, 
Plot no. 92-96, Sector-5, Opp Police Sta�on, 
Ghansoli, Navi Mumbai – 400701.

Date : October 22, 2021
Place : Navi Mumbai
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ANNEXURE III

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES 
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

A.    Conserva�on of energy:

Steps taken or impact on conserva�on of energy 

Steps taken by the company for u�lizing alternate sources of energy 

Capital investment on energy conserva�on equipments 

The Company has not spent any substan�al amount on 
Conserva�on of Energy to be disclosed here.

Efforts made towards technology absorp�on

Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduc�on, 
product development or import subs�tu�on

In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial year):

• Details of technology imported

• Year of import

• Whether the technology has been fully absorbed

• If not fully absorbed, areas where absorp�on has not taken 
 place, and the reasons thereof

Expenditure incurred on Research and Development

    B.    Technology absorp�on:

Considering the nature of ac�vi�es of the Company, 
there is no requirement with regard to technology 
absorp�on.

NA

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

C.     Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo:

 April 01, 2020 to April 01, 2019 to
 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
 (Current F.Y.) (Previous F.Y.)

 Amount in Rs. Amount in Rs.

Actual Foreign Exchange earnings - -

Actual Foreign Exchange outgo - -

For and on behalf of the 
Global Space Technologies Limited,

Sd/-
Krishna Murari Singh
Managing Director 
DIN: 03160366
Address: F/702, Hawre Panchwa� Plaza, 
Plot no. 92-96, Sector-5, Opp Police Sta�on, 
Ghansoli, Navi Mumbai – 400701.

Sd/-
Beauty Krishnamurari Singh
Director
DIN : 03481024
Address: F/702, Hawre Panchwa� Plaza, 
Plot no. 92-96, Sector-5, Opp Police Sta�on, 
Ghansoli, Navi Mumbai – 400701.

Date :October 22, 2021
Place : Navi Mumbai
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ANNEXURE IV

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regula�on, 2015, the Board of Directors of 
every listed Company shall cons�tute the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee.

The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee is formulated in compliance with Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
along with the applicable rules thereto and Regula�on 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regula�on, 2015.

The Remunera�on Policy of the Company is designed to a�ract, mo�vate and retain manpower in a compe��ve and interna�onal 
market. The policy reflects the Company’s objec�ves for good corporate governance as well as sustained long-term value crea�on 
for shareholders.

DEFINITIONS

a. “Board” means Board of Directors of the Company.

b. “Company” means “Globalspace Technologies Limited”

c. “Independent Director” means a director referred to in Sec�on 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

d. “Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) means (i) Chief Execu�ve Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager, (ii)  Company 
Secretary, (iii) Whole-�me Director, (iv) Chief Financial Officer and (v) Such other officer as may be prescribed.

e. “Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee” shall mean a Commi�ee of Board of Directors of the Company, cons�tuted in 
accordance with the provisions of Sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regula�on, 2015.

f. “Policy or This Policy” means, “Nomina�on and Remunera�on Policy.”

g. “Remunera�on” means any money or its equivalent given or passed to any person for services rendered by him and includes 
perquisites as defined under the Income-tax Act, 1961.

h. “Senior Management” shall mean officers / personnel of the listed en�ty who are members of its core management team 
excluding board of directors and normally this shall comprise all members of management one level below the “chief 
execu�ve officer /managing director /whole �me director / manager (including chief execu�ve officer/manager, in case they 
are not part of the board) and shall specifically include company secretary and chief financial officer.

SCOPE

The Remunera�on Policy applies to the Company’s senior management, including its Key Managerial Person and Board of 
Directors.

OBJECTIVE

 The Key Objec�ves of the policy would be:

 1. To guide the Board in rela�on to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management.

 2. To recommend to the Board on Remunera�on payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES

The Policy ensures that:

 1. The Commi�ee while designing the remunera�on package considers the level and composi�on of remunera�on to be 
reasonable and sufficient to a�ract, retain and mo�vate the person.

 2. Rela�onship of remunera�on to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks and

 3. The Commi�ee considers that a successful remunera�on policy must ensure that a significant part of the remunera�on 
package is linked to the achievement of corporate performance targets.

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

1. To formulate a criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of a Director.
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2. Formulate criteria for evalua�on of Independent Directors and the Board.

3. Iden�fy persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance 
with the criteria laid down in this policy.

4. To carry out evalua�on of every Director’s performance.

5. To recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management.

6. To recommend to the Board policy rela�ng to remunera�on for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management.

7. Ensure that level and composi�on of remunera�on is reasonable and sufficient, rela�onship of remunera�on to 
performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

8. To devise a policy on Board diversity.

9. Iden�fy persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with 
the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

10. Recommend to the Board, remunera�on including salary, perquisite and commission to be paid to the Company’s Execu�ve 
Directors on an annual basis or as may be permissible by laws applicable.

11. Recommend to the Board, the Si�ng Fees payable for a�ending the mee�ngs of the Board/Commi�ee thereof, and, any 
other benefits such as Commission, if any, payable to the Non- Execu�ve Directors.

12. Se�ng the overall Remunera�on Policy and other terms of employment of Directors, wherever required.

13. Removal should be strictly in terms of the applicable law/s and in compliance of principles of natural jus�ce.

14. To carry out any other func�on as is mandated by the Board from �me to �me and / or enforced by any statutory no�fica�on, 
amendment or modifica�on, as may be applicable.

15. To perform such other func�ons as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its du�es.

APPOINTMENT AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTOR, KMP AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT APPOINTMENT OF 
DIRECTOR (INCLUDING INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS)

The Commi�ee shall iden�fy and ascertain the integrity, qualifica�on, exper�se and experience of the person for appointment as 
Director, KMP or at Senior Management level and recommend to the Board his / her appointment.

The Commi�ee has discre�on to decide whether qualifica�on, exper�se and experience possessed by a person are sufficient / 
sa�sfactory for the concerned posi�on.

As per the applicable provisions of Companies Act 2013, Rules made thereunder and SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015 the 
Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee shall have discre�on to consider and fix any other criteria or norms for selec�on of the 
most suitable candidate/s.

CRITERIA FOR APPOINTMENT OF KMP/SENIOR MANAGEMENT

To possess the required qualifica�ons, experience, skills & exper�se to effec�vely discharge their du�es and responsibili�es

1. To prac�ce and encourage professionalism and transparent working environment.

2. To build teams and carry the team members along for achieving the goals/objec�ves and corporate mission.

3. To adhere strictly to code of conduct.

REMOVAL

Due to reasons for any disqualifica�on men�oned in the Companies Act, 2013, rules made thereunder or under any other 
applicable Act, rules and regula�ons, the Commi�ee may recommend, to the Board with reasons recorded in wri�ng, removal of a 
Director, KMP or Senior Management subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, rules and regula�ons.

POLICY RELATING TO REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KMP & SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

1. No director/KMP/ other employee is involved in deciding his or her own remunera�on.

2. The trend prevalent in the similar industry, nature and size of business is kept in view and given due weight age to arrive at a 
compe��ve quantum of remunera�on.
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3. Improved performance should be rewarded by increase in remunera�on and suitable authority for value addi�on in future.

4. Remunera�on packages should strike a balance between fixed and incen�ve pay, where applicable, reflec�ng short- and 
long-term performance objec�ves appropriate to the Company’s working and goals.

5. Provisions of law with regard making payment of remunera�on, as may be applicable, are complied.

6. Whenever, there is any devia�on from the Policy, the jus�fica�on /reasons should also be indicated / disclosed adequately.

7. Execu�ve remunera�on is proposed by the Commi�ee and subsequently approved by the Board of Directors. Execu�ve 
remunera�on is evaluated annually against performance. In determining packages of remunera�on, the Commi�ee may 
take the advice of the Chairman/ Managing Director of the Company.

8. The annual variable pay of senior managers is linked to the performance of the Company in general and their individual 
performance for the relevant year measured against specific Key Result Areas, which are aligned to the Company’s 
objec�ves.

FOLLOWING CRITERIA ARE ALSO TO BE CONSIDERED

Responsibili�es and du�es; Time & efforts devoted; Value addi�on; Profitability of the Company & growth of its business; Analyzing 
each and every posi�on and skills for fixing the remunera�on yards�ck;

There should be consistent applica�on of remunera�on parameters across the organiza�on.

REVIEW

The policy shall be reviewed by the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee and the Board, from �me to �me as may be necessary.
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ANNEXURE V

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

 INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT

 In past 2 years maximum PE funding is being a�racted by Health Tech & eduTech segments.

 The unfortunate event of Pandemic has brought in major behavioral changes in the en�re healthcare fraternity towards 

adop�on of digital technology. Similar effect is also seen in eduTech segment.   

 OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS

 Recently announced digital health mission and new educa�on policy (NEP) is expected to give further impetus to both the 

segments where company is currently focused  

 As expected, we are already seeing organized and large players entering into this market. For next 3 years the market would 

behave like a green field with growth prospects for all par�cipa�ng companies. We see a possibility of consolida�on in this 

market with immense possibili�es mergers & acquisi�on a�er 2 years in near future.

 SEGMENT WISE OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

 DocExa, the virtual clinic pla�orm has already started contribu�ng to the revenue stream. The digital health solu�ons in the 

form of DocExa, Mediapp & Vodo contributed to the major por�on of revenues. Makebot, STEAM educa�on ver�cal has 

contributed the second highest to the revenue with major scaleup possibili�es.

 OUTLOOK

 Your Company has kept pace with the overall market scenario in the focuses segments and con�nues to grow significantly. The 

Management expects to improve the growth in the years to come, subject to favorable market condi�ons, and stable economic 

policies.

 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

 Your Company has deployed all relevant technology solu�ons to manage and monitor internal process including ERP systems. 

Further, we have well established and adequate systems for internal control to provide reasonable assurance that all assets are 

safeguarded. Also, as a measure of checks and balances, all transac�ons are authorized and reported diligently.

 DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL

 Your Company is crea�ng so�ware product pla�orms which are going to be a long term intellectual property of the company. 

We have got thought leadership in our focused domains. In spite of Covid leading to major revenue drops from other segments 

the overall revenue from opera�ons has marginally improved as compared to the previous financial year.. The silver lining is that 

our EBITA margins have improved significantly compared to last FY on account of the focus on high margin business. The EBITA 

for this year is Rs. 9,06,76,193/- as compared to Rs. 67,940,732/- of previous year.

 The Company focus on cost control at every level to improve opera�onal efficiency. Your company, barring unforeseen 

circumstances, expects to improve the turnover and performance. The quarterly audits, including significant audit observa�ons 

and correc�ve ac�on thereon, are presented to the Audit Commi�ee.

 HUMAN RESOURCES

 Your Company has built significant talent pool in the form of top and middle management. We have also created a performance 

oriented work culture with focus on building long term talent pool. Also, we con�nuously endeavour to improve and enhance 

the work environment for our employees. Compe��ve compensa�on package, innova�ve and challenging environment to 

work, etc., are some of the steps taken by the Company for the welfare of its employees. The company    has also offered the 

ESOP’s to the eligible employees in the light of retaining the human resource.



For and on behalf of the 
Global Space Technologies Limited,

Sd/-
Krishna Murari Singh
Managing Director 
DIN: 03160366
Address: F/702, Hawre Panchwa� Plaza, 
Plot no. 92-96, Sector-5, Opp Police Sta�on, 
Ghansoli, Navi Mumbai – 400701.

Date : October 22, 2021
Place : Navi Mumbai

Sd/-
Beauty Krishnamurari Singh
Director
DIN : 03481024
Address: F/702, Hawre Panchwa� Plaza, 
Plot no. 92-96, Sector-5, Opp Police Sta�on, 
Ghansoli, Navi Mumbai – 400701.
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 CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

 The Statements in the Management Discussion & Analysis Report describing the Company’s expecta�ons, opinion, and 

predic�ons may please be considered as “forward looking statements” only. Actual results could differ from those expressed or 

implied. Company’s opera�ons should be viewed in light of changes in market condi�ons, prices of raw materials, economic 

developments in the country and such other factors.

 Key Financial Ra�o :

Par�culars   31.03.2021 31.03.2020

Net-worth  36,43,88,558 34,41,81,897

 Details pertaining to Net-worth of the Company:

Sr. No Par�culars of Ra�o 31.03.2021 31.03.2020

1. Debtors Turnover Ra�o  161 147

2. Inventory Turnover Ra�o 76 99

3. Interest Coverage Ra�o  

4. Current Ra�o 2.14 3.21

5. Debt Equity Ra�o 0.21 0.18

6. Opera�ng Profit Margin (%) 36.23% 28.10%

7. Net Profit Margin (%) 23.51% 16.60%
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ANNEXURE VI

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to Regula�on 15 of (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosures Requirements), 2015, the company hereby discloses the 
compliances to the best extent possible in this Corporate governance report, which shall be forming part of Annual report for the 
Financial year 2020-21.

In accordance with the provisions of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosures Requirements), 2015 (“Lis�ng Regula�ons”) the 
report containing the details of Corporate governance systems and processes of the Company is as follows together with Auditor’s 
cer�ficate annexed as Exhibit A to this Report, on compliance with the condi�ons of Corporate governance laid down are presented 
in the report on Corporate governance for the year ended March 31, 2021.

Corporate governance provides that a Company is directed in such a way that it performs efficiently and effec�vely, keeping in view 
the long term interest of the shareholders, while respec�ng Laws and regula�ons of land and contribu�ng, as responsible 
corporate ci�zens to the na�onal exchequers.

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

 Corporate Governance refers to system of prac�ces and processes by which a company is directed, controlled and governed. 
Corporate Governance essen�ally involves balancing the interests of the many stakeholders and maximize the value for all 
stakeholders which predominantly includes its shareholders, management, customers, suppliers, financiers, Government 
and the community. Good corporate governance helps to build an environment of trust, transparency and accountability 
necessary for fostering long term investment, financial stability and business integrity, thereby suppor�ng stronger growth 
for the company to fulfill its goals and objec�ves. 

 Corporate Governance for the Company comprises of processes and principles conforming to the highest standards which 
are reviewed periodically to ensure their con�nuing relevance, effec�veness and responsiveness for all stakeholders. The 
Company constantly strives to generate long term value and trust for its stakeholders.

 The Company ensures regular dissemina�on of informa�on to the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) to ensure 
effec�ve oversight of the Company’s business ac�vi�es. The Board reviews corporate policies, overall performance, 
accoun�ng and repor�ng standards and other significant areas of management, corporate governance and regulatory 
compliance. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages the a�ainment of highest levels of 
transparency, accountability and equity, in all facets of its opera�ons and in all interac�ons with its stakeholders, including 
shareholders, employees, the government, lenders and the society.

 Our Governance philosophy is based on the following:-

  Management is the trustee of the Shareholders capital and not the owner.

  Provide an enabling environment to harmonize the goals of maximizing stakeholder value and maintaining a customer 
centric focus.

  Have a simple and transparent corporate structure driven solely by business needs.

  Communicate externally, in a truthful manner, about how the Company is running internally.

  Make clear dis�nc�on between personal convenience and corporate resources.

  Be transparent and maintain high degree of disclosure levels in all facets of its opera�ons.

  Sa�sfy the spirit of the law and not just the le�er of the law.

  The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is thus concerned with the ethics, values and morals of the 
Company and its directors, who are expected to act in the best interests of the Company and remain accountable to 
shareholders and other beneficiaries for their ac�on.

CORNERSTONES OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AT GLOBALSPACE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED:

Your Company follows Corporate Governance prac�ces around the following philosophical cornerstones:

Genera�ve transparency and openness in informa�on sharing

Company believes that sharing and explaining all the relevant informa�on on the Company’s policies and ac�ons to all those to 
whom it has responsibili�es, with transparency and openness, generates an ambience which helps all the stakeholders to take 
informed decisions about the Company. This reflects externally in making maximum appropriate disclosures without jeopardizing 
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the Company’s strategic interests as also internally in the Company’s rela�onship with its employees and in the conduct of its 
business.

Transparency and openness is an organiza�onal value and is prac�ced in ac�on across levels at “Globalspace Technologies Limited”. 
The Chairman as well as the MD & CEO share the strategic direc�on the organiza�on is taking and also reinforce the mission and 
vision.

The Company announces its financial results every quarter, usually within 40 days from the end of the quarter. Apart from disclosing 
these in a �mely manner to the Stock Exchanges, the Company also hosts the results on its website together with a detailed 
informa�on update and media release discussing the results. The financial results are published in leading newspapers. The 
Company also sends an email update to the Members who have registered their email addresses with the Company. 

The Board has also adopted a comprehensive Policy for Determina�on of Materiality of Event or Informa�on in accordance with 
Regula�on 30 of the SEBI Regula�ons and the Company makes prompt disclosures to the Stock Exchanges where the shares of the 
Company are listed regarding material events/ informa�on so as to keep the Stakeholders apprised and enable them to make 
informed decisions.

Construc�ve separa�on of Ownership and Management

Company’s philosophy to have construc�ve separa�on of the Management of the Company from its Owners manifests itself in the 
composi�on of the Board of Directors wherein the office of Chairman of the Board and Managing Director & CEO are held by 
dis�nct individuals. The Board comprises of 6 Directors, out of which are Independent Director cons�tu�ng half of the Board 
strength, One Non-Execu�ve Non-Independent Directors and Two Execu�ve Director. The Independent Directors ensure 
protec�on of interests of all the stakeholders of the Company. The Board includes two Woman Director. The Board does not consist 
of representa�ves of creditors or banks. The Board composi�on a�empts at maximizing the effec�veness of both, Ownership and 
Management by sharpening their respec�ve accountability.

The par�cipa�on of the Senior Management Personnel is ensured at Board and/or Commi�ee mee�ngs so that the 
Board/Commi�ees can seek and get explana�ons as required from them.

Accountability:

The Board plays a supervisory role rather than an execu�ve role. The members of the Board provide construc�ve cri�que on the 
strategic business plans and opera�ons of the Company. Mr. Krishna Murari Singh, Managing Director, con�nues to head the 
Company’s business and is responsible for its day-to-day management and opera�ons and reports to the Board.

Responsibility:

The Company has put in place various mechanisms and policies to ensure orderly and smooth func�oning of opera�ons and also 
defined measures in case of transgressions by members.

The Company has integrated its internal regula�ons rela�ng to these mechanisms, into a Unified Code of Conduct. In order to 
ensure that such Code of Conduct reflects the changing environment, both social and regulatory, given the increasing size and 
complexity of the business and the human resources deployed in them, the NRC reviews the Unified Code of Conduct document 
periodically.

The Company’s Unified Code of Conduct is applicable to all members viz the employees (whether permanent or not), and the 
Members of the Board and Associates (in some cases). The Unified Code of Conduct prescribes the guiding principles of conduct of 
the members to promote ethical conduct in accordance with the stated values of Company and also to meet statutory 
requirements. The Whistle Blower Policy for all the stakeholders is embedded in the Unified Code of Conduct. The Code also covers 
our associates who partner us in our organiza�onal objec�ves and customers for whom we exist.

Fairness

All ac�ons taken are arrived at a�er considering the impact on the interests of all shareholders including minority shareholders. All 
shareholders have equal rights and can convene general mee�ngs, if they feel the need to do so, in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act. Investor Rela�ons is given due priority. Full disclosures are made in the general mee�ng for all ma�ers. No�ces of the 
general mee�ngs are comprehensive and the presenta�ons made at the mee�ngs are informa�ve. The Board is remunerated 
commensurately with the growth in the Company’s profits.

Your Company is an equal opportunity employer and promotes diversity and inclusion in its workforce, in terms of skills, ethnicity, 
na�onali�es and gender

Social Awareness:

The Company has an explicit policy emphasizing ethical behavior. It follows a strict policy of not employing any minor. The Company 
believes in gender equality and does not prac�ce any type of discrimina�on. All policies are free of bias and discrimina�on. 
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Environmental responsibility is given high importance and measures have been taken at all loca�ons to ensure that members are 
educated and equipped to discharge their responsibili�es in ensuring protec�on of the environment.

Value-adding Checks & Balances:

Company relies on a robust structure with value adding checks and balances designed to:

 prevent misuse of authority;

 facilitate �mely response to change and

 ensure effec�ve management of risks, especially those rela�ng to statutory compliance.

 At the same �me, the structure provides scope for adequate execu�ve freedom, so that bureaucracies do not take value away 
from the Governance Objec�ve.

Checks & Balances:

 All Directors are provided with complete informa�on rela�ng to the opera�ons and Company finances to enable them to 
par�cipate effec�vely in the Board discussions. 

 Proceedings of Board are logically segregated and ma�ers are delegated to Commi�ees as under:

  Audit Commi�ee covers approval to related party transac�ons, review of internal controls and audit systems, oversight 
on risk management systems, financial repor�ng, compliance issues and vigil mechanism, appointment and 
remunera�on to various auditors of the Company and their scope, 

  The NRC approves remunera�on of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. The 
NRC is also entrusted with the responsibility of framing the criteria for evalua�on of the individual Directors, 
Chairperson of the Board, the Board as a whole and the Commi�ees of the Board 

  Vigil Mechanism and Code of Conduct cases are discussed and reviewed in detail by the Audit Commi�ee jointly with 
the NRC. The Audit Commi�ee reviews the effec�veness of this process to ensure that there is an environment that is 
conducive to escala�on of issues, if any, in the system.

  Stakeholders’ Rela�onship Commi�ee specifically looks into various aspects of interest of the shareholders.

  Each Non-Execu�ve Director brings value through his or her specializa�on.

  Other Directorships held by Directors are within the ceiling limits specified.

  Commi�ee Memberships and Chairpersonship of Directors are also within the permissible limits.

  Statutory compliance report along with the Compliance Cer�ficate is placed before the Audit Commi�ee and Board at 
every quarterly mee�ng.

  All Directors endeavour to a�end all the Board/ Commi�ee mee�ngs as also the General Mee�ngs of the Company. The 
Chairpersons of the Audit Commi�ee, the NRC and the Stakeholders’ Rela�onship Commi�ee a�end the Annual 
General Mee�ng to address shareholders’ queries, if any.

  The Chief Financial Officer, Secretary to NRC and the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, in consulta�on with the 
Chairman of the Board/ respec�ve Commi�ee and the Managing Director & CEO, formalise the agenda for each of the 
Board / Commi�ee Mee�ngs.

  The Board/Commi�ees, at their discre�on, invite Senior Management Personnel and other employees of the Company 
and/or external Advisors to any of the mee�ngs of the Board/Commi�ee.

  The Company ensures compliance with Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 issued by the Ins�tute of 
Company Secretaries of India in respect of the mee�ngs of the Board/Commi�ee and Shareholders.

  The Company has complied with the provisions of the SEBI Regula�ons including the circulars issued thereunder from 
�me to �me

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

 Company ac�vely seeks to adopt best global prac�ces for an effec�ve func�oning of the Board and believes in having a truly 
diverse Board whose wisdom and strength can be leveraged for earning higher returns for its stakeholders and be�er 
corporate governance. Therefore, Globalspace Technologies Limited, Board consists of an ideal mix of knowledge, 
perspec�ve, professionalism, divergent thinking and experience. 
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 In line with the applicable provisions of the Act and the SEBI Regula�ons, your Company’s Board has an op�mum 
combina�on of Execu�ve and Non-Execu�ve Directors with half of the Board comprising Independent Directors.

 The Company’s Board Comprises of Individuals with considerable experience and exper�se across a range of discipline 
including Business Management and Business Strategy.

 a. Key Board Skills, Exper�se and Competencies:

  Your Board comprises of qualified members who bring in the following skills, exper�se and competencies that allow 
them to make effec�ve contribu�on to the Board and its Commi�ees as required in context of its business and sector 
and to ensure highest standards of corporate governance. 

  In this table below, the specific area of exper�se or focus of the Board member is highlighted. However, the absence of a 
mark against a member’s name does not indicate that the member does not possess the corresponding competence or 
skill.

Areas of Exper�se /  Mr. Krishna  Mrs. Beauty Krishna Mr. Amitabh Mr. Venkatesh Mr. M.V.  Ms. Radhika 
Skills /  Competencies Murari Singh Murari Singh Sinha S.Vastare Subramanian Jhawar

 Managing  Non- Execu�ve  Execu�ve  Independent  Independent  Independent 
 Director Director Director Director Director Director

Corporate Strategy and 
Planning     

Leadership       -

Entrepreneurship    - - 

Global business & Consumer 
Understanding  -  - - -

Brand Building   -   - -

New Age Consumer 
Channel  & Digital Skills  -  - - 

Retail & GTM   -   - -
M&A, Strategy and 

Investment Management  - -  - -

Financial & Accoun�ng - - - -  -

Corporate Governance, 
Risk & Compliance - - - -  -

Human Capital Management -    - -
Geographic, Gender and 

cultural diversity   - - - 

Legal - - - - - -

  The Board Members are fully aware of their roles and responsibili�es in discharge of the key func�ons. The Board 
Members strive to meet the expecta�on of opera�onal transparency without compromising the need to maintain 
confiden�ality of informa�on. 

 b. Board Procedures and flow of informa�on 

  The Board meets at regular intervals to, inter alia, review quarterly standalone and consolidated financial 
results/statements, discuss and decide on the business strategy, review the compliance report(s) of all laws applicable 
to the Company, regulatory developments, and other Board business. 

  The Board / Commi�ee Mee�ngs are pre-scheduled, and a tenta�ve annual calendar of the Board and Commi�ee 
Mee�ngs is circulated to the Directors well in advance to facilitate them to plan their schedule and to ensure meaningful 
par�cipa�on in the mee�ngs. However, in case of a special and urgent business need, the Board’s approval is taken by 
passing resolu�ons by circula�on, as permi�ed by law, which are noted and confirmed in the subsequent Board 
Mee�ng. The Company also provides video conferencing facility to its Directors to enable them to par�cipate in the 
discussions held at the mee�ngs when it may not be possible for them to be physically present for the mee�ng.

  The Board discussions generally include, review of the performance of the Company, and such other ma�ers as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013, Lis�ng Regula�ons and other applicable legisla�ons.
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 c. Composi�on of the board and directorship held in other companies as on 31st March, 2021:

Name of the Category of No. of Board No. of  Whether No of Directorship in No. of Chairmanship / 
Director(s) Directorship Mee�ng Board a�ended other Cos. membership in Board Commi�ee
  En�tled to  Mee�ng last AGM Pvt.  Public Chairman Member
  be a�ended A�ended held on Co Co. 

Krishna Murari  Chairman &  9 9 Yes - - - 2
Singh Managing 
 Director 

Venkatesh S  Independent  9 8 Yes 1 - 1 1
Vastare Director 

M V Subramanian Independent      9 9 Yes 1 - 1 2
 Director 

Beauty  Non-Execu�ve  9 8 Yes 1 - 1 1
Krishnamurari  Director 
Singh 

Amitabh Sinha Execu�ve  9 7 Yes - - - _
 Director 

Nilayini Vamatheva Independent      _ _ No - - — -
 Director 

Charu Golash Independent      2 1 No 1 1 - -
 Director 

Radhika Jhawar Independent      1 _ NA - - - -
 Director 

Note:

1. The Directorships held by Directors men�oned above; do not include Alternate Directorship, Directorship in Foreign 
Companies and Sec�on 8 Companies.

2. In accordance with Regula�on 26 of the Securi�es Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015, Memberships/Chairmanships of only the Audit Commi�ees and Shareholders/Investors Grievance 
Commi�ee in all Public Limited Companies (excluding Globalspace Technologies Limited) have been considered.

3. Membership Includes Chairmanship of Commi�ee

 d. Brief profile of directors of the company:

   Mr. Krishna Murari Singh (DIN: 03160366):

  Mr. Krishna Murari Singh (DIN: 03160366) aged 45 years, is a M.B.A graduate. He joined company in December 2010 as 
a Director of the company and in November 2016, he was appointed as the Managing Director. 

  He has 25 years of experience as a leader, manager & executor across various func�ons in industries like Pharma, 
Healthcare, Banking & Telecom, Krishna Singh is a Green Field Specialist & known to be a thought leader with 
innova�on & team building as his core strengths.

  His passion to innovate & the quest to challenge conven�on was the reason for inita�on of entrepreneurial innings for 
him & hence the incep�on of Globalspace technologies. Globalspace is an organiza�on purely driven by passion & 
innova�on. In 10 Years, Globalspace has already carved a unique posi�on for itself in technology landscape due to its 
innova�ve product offering. Today Globalspace is rated as one of the most advanced & evolved players in Enterprise 
mobility domain.

  At present Mr. Krishna Murari Singh is Managing Director and Chairman of the Company. He is holding 39,29,666 Equity 
Shares of the company as on 31st March, 2021.

  Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Mr. Krishna Murari Singh is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship

 1. NA NA
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 Sr. No. Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

 1. Globalspace Technologies Limited Managing Director

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Mr. Krishna Murari Singh is director:

 Sr. No. Name of Company Name of the Commi�ee in which he is Member

 1. Globalspace Technologies Limited -   Audit Commi�ee (Member)

   - Stakeholder Rela�onship  Commi�ee (Member)

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Mr. Krishna Murari Singh is a member of the Commi�ee of the Board:

 Mr. Venkatesh S Vastare (DIN: 07628898):

 Mr. Venkatesh S Vastare (DIN: 07628898) aged 59 years, is a BSC Graduate and had Diploma in Pharmacy.

 He joined company on December 02, 2016 as an Addi�onal Independent Director and in September 29, 2017 he has been 
designated as Independent Director of the Company. He has a wide experience of 33 years in the field of Pharmaceu�cal 
Industry.

 At present Mr. Venkatesh S Vastare is Independent Director of the Company. He is holding 1600 Equity Shares of the company 
as on 31st March, 2021.

 Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Mr. Venkatesh S Vastare is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship

 1. Morgenall Hospitals Private Limited Director

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Mr. Venkatesh S Vastare is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

 1. Globalspace Technologies Limited Non-Execu�ve Independent Director

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Mr. Venkatesh S Vastare is a member of the Commi�ee of the Board:

 Sr. No. Name of Company Name of the Commi�ee in which he is Member

 1. Globalspace Technologies Limited -   Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee (Chairperson)

   - Audit Commi�ee (Member)

 Mr. M V Subramanian (DIN: 07628898):

 Mr. M V Subramanian (DIN: 07628898) aged 64 years. He is a Science graduate and have CAIIB (Cer�fied Associate of Indian 
Ins�tute of Bankers). He has 35 years of experience in the field of Finance. He was associated with Viridian Capital And 
Financial Services private Limited w.e.f April, 2017 and joined Company i.e Globalspace Technologies Limited as a 
Independent Director from October 17, 2016.

 At present Mr. M V Subramanian is Independent Director of the Company. 

 Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Mr. M V Subramanian is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship

 1. Digivriddhi Technologies Private Limited Director

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Mr. M V Subramanian is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

 1. Globalspace Technologies Limited Non-Execu�ve Independent Director
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 Sr. No. Name of Company    Name of the Commi�ee in which he is Member

 1. Globalspace Technologies Limited -   Audit Commi�ee (Member)

   - Stakeholder Rela�onship  Commi�ee (Member)

   - Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee (Member)

Table showing name of Listed Company in which is a member of the Commi�ee of the Board:

 Mrs. Beauty Krishnamurari Singh (DIN:03481024):

 Mrs. Beauty Krishnamurari Singh (DIN: 03481024) aged 42 years. She has Completed her Master in Arts (Poli�cal Science) 
having 7 years of experience in the field of Administra�on.

 She has joined Company i.e Globalspace Technologies Limited as a Non-Eexcu�ve Director w.e.f July 04, 2016 and she is 
currently associated as the Director in Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private limited.

 Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Mrs. Beauty Krishnamurari Singh is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship

 1. Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private Limited Director

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Mrs. Beauty Krishnamurari Singh is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

 1. Globalspace Technologies Limited Non-Execu�ve Director

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Mrs. Beauty Krishnamurari Singh is a member of the Commi�ee of the Board:

 Sr. No. Name of Company      Name of the Commi�ee in which he is Member

 1. Globalspace Technologies Limited -   Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee Chairman (Chairperson)

   - Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee (Member)

 Mr. Amitabh Adhycharan Sinha (DIN:03480980):

 Mr.Amitabh Adhycharan Sinha (DIN:03480980) aged 57 years. He has 30 years of experience  across various func�ons of 
Pharma Industry. He excels in Sales and marke�ng domain, with key thrust in business management experience 
predominantly in Pharmaceu�cal  in various Indian and Mul�-Na�onal Organiza�ons .He is associated with Machen Pharma 
Limited w.e.f April, 2013 and joined Company i.e Globalspace Technologies Limited as Execu�ve Director from June 24,2020.

 At present Mr. Amitabh Adhycharan Sinha is Execu�ve Director and Chief Execu�ve officer of the Company. 

 Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Mr. Amitabh Adhycharan Sinha is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship

 1. - -

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Mr. Amitabh Adhycharan Sinha is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

 1. Globalspace Technologies Limited  Execu�ve Director

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Mr. Amitabh Adhycharan Sinha is a member of the Commi�ee of the Board:

 Sr. No. Name of Company      Name of the Commi�ee in which he is Member

 - -   -
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 Ms. Radhika Jhawar (DIN: 08560905):

 Ms. Radhika Jhawar (DIN: 08560905) aged 27 years. She has Bachelors in Business Administra�on from St.Xaviers’ College, 
Kolkata, Masters in Gemology and Jewellery Design from Sawansukha Ins�tute of Gemology and Jewellery Design, 
Cer�ficate Course in Design in Bou�que Apparel and Accessory from Na�onal Ins�tute of Fashion Technology, Kolkata. She 
has joined Company i.e Globalspace Technologies Limited as Independent Director from March 21, 2021.

 At present Ms. Radhika Jhawar is Independent Director of the Company. 

 Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Ms. Radhika Jhawar Sinha is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship

 1. - -

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Ms. Radhika Jhawar is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

 1. Globalspace Technologies Limited  Addi�onal Non Execu�ve Independent Director

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Ms. Radhika Jhawar is a member of the Commi�ee of the Board:

 Sr. No. Name of Company Name of the Commi�ee in which he is Member

 - - -

 Nilayini Vamatheva (DIN 08770012):

 Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva (DIN 08770012) aged 37 years. She has 10 years of experience across various func�ons of 
Pharmaceu�cal Industry.  She  holds  an  exper�se in  Internal  and  Rehabilita�on  Medicine.  She has been  working  as  
Physician in various clinics and hospitals. She holds cer�fica�on in Advanced Cardiovascular Life Support, Radia�on 
Protec�on   &   X-Ray   Technique   and   many others. 

 She is also member  of  the following:-

 1. Founda�on Board of Kanthari  Founda�on, Switerland, 2.Founda�on Board of Brighter Life 3. Club Doctor, Samariterverein 
Maur 4. Swiss Asian Chamber of Commerce 5. Swiss Indian Chamber of Commerce 

 At present Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva has ceased to hold office as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f July 24, 2020

 Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Nilayini Vamatheva is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship

 1. - -

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva is director: 

 Sr. No. Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

 1. - -

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva is a member of the Commi�ee of the Board:

 Sr. No. Name of Company Name of the Commi�ee in which he is Member

 - - -
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 Mrs. Charu Golash (DIN  01260597):

 Mrs. Charu Golash (DIN 01260597) aged 38 years. She is a Prac�cing Company Secretary with over 12 years of rich experience 
in the field of Corporate and Business law. She has her own firm by the name M/S Charu Golash and Associates, Company 
Secretaries. And is further associated as Designated Partner in Golash Securi�es Limited liability partnership and in Golash 
Metals securi�es limited liability partnership  also she is associated with Bihar Foundary & Cas�ng Limited as Addi�onal 
Director and with Golash Metals Private  Limited as Director.

 At present Ms. Charu Golash has ceased to hold office as Independent Director of the Company w.e.f  December 22, 2020

 Table showing name of Unlisted Companies in which Ms. Charu Golash is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Unlisted Company Category of Directorship

 1. Bihar Foundry & Cas�ngs Limited Addi�onal Director

 2. Golash Metals Private Limited Director

Table showing name of Listed Company in which Ms. Charu Golash is director:

 Sr. No. Name of the Listed Company Category of Directorship

 1. - -

Table showing Name of the Companies in which Ms. Charu Golash  is a member of the Commi�ee of the Board:

 Sr. No. Name of Company Name of the Commi�ee in which he is Member

 - - -

 A�endance record of the directors:

  The Board of Directors are responsible for the management of the business of the Company and meets regularly for 
discharging its role and func�ons. The Board of Directors of the Company reviews all informa�on provided periodically for 
discussion and considera�on at its mee�ngs in terms of applicable provisions of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 
(Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015. 

 The detailed Agenda is circulated to the Directors in advance, all material informa�on is incorporated in the agenda for 
facilita�ng meaningful and focused discussions at the mee�ngs. Where it is not prac�cable to enclose any document to the 
agenda, the same is placed before the mee�ng. In special and excep�onal circumstances, addi�onal item(s) on the agenda 
are permi�ed to be discussed at the Mee�ng.

 During the Financial Year 2020-2021:

 a) Nine Mee�ngs of Board of Directors were held on June 24, 2020, July 31, 2020, September 12, 2020, October 08, 2020, 
October 21, 2020, November 07, 2020, December 02, 2020, February 02, 2021, March 21, 2021.

 b) Last Annual General Mee�ng (AGM) of the Company was held on December 29, 2020.
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The A�endance of Directors at the Board Mee�ngs and Last AGM were as under:-

Dates on    A�endance of Directors   
which the Krishna   Beauty M V  Venkatesh  Amitabh  Ms. Nilayini  Mrs. Charu  Ms. Radhika
Mee�ngs  Murari  Krishnamurari  Subramanian Vastare  Sinha  Vamatheva  Goals    Jhawar
were held Singh Singh  Shamanna         

June 24, 2020 Present Present Present Present NA* NA* NA* NA*

July 31, 2020 Present Absent Present Present Present NA* NA* NA*

September 12, 2020 Present Present Present Present Present NA* NA* NA*

October 08, 2020 Present Present Present Present Present NA* NA* NA*

October 21, 2020 Present Present Present Absent Absent NA* NA* NA*

November 07, 2020 Present Absent Present Present Present NA* Present NA*

December 02, 2020  Present Present Present Present Present NA* Absent NA*

February 10, 2021  Present Absent Present Present Present NA* NA* NA*

March 21, 2021 Present Present Present Present Present NA* NA* NA*

  *a.  Mr. Amitabh Sinha and Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva was appointed in the Board Mee�ng held on June 24, 2020 and 
Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva ceased w.e.f. July 24, 2020.

  b.  Mrs. Charu Golash was appointed as Addi�onal Non execu�ve Independent director in Board Mee�ng held on   
October 21,2020 and ceased the office w.e.f. December 22, 2020.

  c. Ms. Radhika Jhawar was appointed in the Board Mee�ng held on March 21, 2021.

 e. Disclosure of rela�onship between directors inter-se:

Name of Director Inter - se Rela�onship 

Mr. Krishna Murari Singh Husband of Mrs. Beauty Krishna Murari Singh, Non-Execuive Director of the Company.

Mrs. Beauty Krishna Murari Singh Wife of Mr. Krishna Murari Singh, Managing Director & Chairman of the Company.

Mr. Amitabh Sinha No Rela�on

Mr. M V Subramanian No Rela�on

Mr. Venkatesh Vastare Shamanna  No Rela�on

Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva No Rela�on

Ms. Charu Golash No Rela�on

Ms. Radhika Jhawar No Rela�on

Note:

The Board meets once in quarter wherein they review quarterly performance and financial results. The Board mee�ngs are 
generally scheduled well in advance and the no�ce of each mee�ng is given in wri�ng to each Director. All the items on the agenda 
are accompanied by a note giving comprehensive informa�on on the related subject. The agenda and relevant notes are sent in 
advance separately to each of directors and only in excep�onal cases the same is tabled at the mee�ng. The Board is also free to 
recommend the inclusion of any method for discussion in consulta�on with the Chairman. The informa�on as specified in Part A of 
Schedule of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 is regularly made available to the Board. The 
minutes of the Board mee�ng are circulated within reasonable �me period in accordance with the secretarial standards to all 
directors and are confirmed at subsequent mee�ng. The minutes of audit commi�ee and other commi�ees of the board are 
circulated within the s�pulated �me period to all members of the Commi�ees and are regularly place before the respec�ve 
Commi�ees.

 f. Mee�ng of Independent Directors 

  During the year under review, the Independent Directors met once on February 10, 2021 without the presence of the 
Execu�ve Director or Management representa�ves inter-alia to discuss the performance of Non-Independent 
Directors, the Chairman of the Board and the Board as a whole and asses the quality, quan�ty and �meliness of flow of 
informa�on between the management of the Company and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effec�vely and 
reasonably perform its du�es. All the Independent Directors were present at the mee�ng.



  In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the criteria of Independence as defined under Sec�on 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and qualifica�on of Directors) Rules 
2014, Regula�on 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Regula�ons and are independent of the management of the Company. The 
Independent Directors appointed during the year also fulfill the criteria of integrity, exper�se and experience, in the 
opinion of the Board and will complete the Proficiency test, within the �melines provided by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs.

 g. Number of Shares & Conver�ble Instruments held by non-execu�ve directors as on 31st March, 2021 is as under:

Name of Director Director Category Number of Shares/conver�ble instruments 
  held in the Company

Mrs. Beauty Krishna Murari Singh Non-Execu�ve Director Nil

Mr. Venkatesh  S. Vastare Independent Director 1600

Mr. M V Subramanian Independent Director Nil

Ms. Radhika Jhawar Independent Director Nil

 h. Familiarisa�on Programme:

  All new non-execu�ve Directors are appointed on the Board of the Company are introduced to the culture through 
induc�on sessions. The Execu�ve Directors and senior management provide an overview of the opera�ons and 
familiarize the new Non-execu�ve Directors on ma�ers the morals and principles of the Company.

  They are introduced to the organiza�on structures and various procedures. The Directors are also briefed pertaining to 
the group structure and subsidiaries. The Company has a detailed familiariza�on Programme for Independent 
Directors to familiarize them with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibili�es in the Company, nature of the 
industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company etc.

  The details of such Programme is available on the website of the Company at   
h�ps://www.globalspace.in/document/Policies/FAMILIARIZATION_PROGRAM_FOR_INDEPENDENT_DIRECTORS.pdf

 i. Confirma�on pertaining to independent directors of the company:

  In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, Mr. Venkatesh S Vastare, M V Subramanian, and Radhika 
Jhawar Non-Execu�ve Independent directors are independent of the management and complies with criteria of 
Independent Director as placed in Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 and Companies Act, 2013.

 j.  Reasons for the resigna�on of an Independent Director: 

   Ms. Nilayini Vamatheva resigned as an Addi�onal Independent Director on July 24, 2020, due to personal and 
unavoidable circumstances.

   Mrs. Charu Golash resigned as an Non Execu�ve Independent Director on December 22,2020, due to personal 
and unavoidable circumstances.

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

 a) Preamble:

  In line with the provisions of Sec�on 177 of the Act and Regula�on 18 of the SEBI Regula�ons read with Part C of 
Schedule II thereto. All Members of the AC are financially literate. The Commi�ee invites the Statutory Auditor and the 
Internal Auditor for one-on-one discussion, independent of the Management. 

  As required under sec�on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 18 of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosures Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 read with part C of schedule II thereto, the Board has cons�tuted Audit 
Commi�ee which comprises of the following Directors:
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Name of Director Nature of Membership and Date of Appointment Director Category

Mr. M V Subramanian Chairman  17-06-2017  Non-Execu�ve –Independent Director

Mr. Venkatesh Vastare Member 27-03-2019 Non-Execu�ve –Independent Director

Mr. Krishna Murari Singh Member 07-12-2016 Execu�ve-Managing Director
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Ms. Swa� Arora, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company, acts as Secretary to the Audit commi�ee Mee�ng. 

b) Change in composi�on:

 There was no change in the composi�on of the Audit Commi�ee during the financial year 2020-21.

c) Terms of reference of the Audit Commi�ee:

 The Audit Commi�ee shall have the authority to inves�gate into any ma�er that may be prescribed under Company Law for 
the �me being in force and within its terms of reference.

Role of the Audit Commi�ee, inter-alia, includes the following :-

 Oversight of the Company’s financial repor�ng processes and the disclosure of its financial informa�on to ensure that the 
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible;

 Recommenda�on for appointment, remunera�on and terms of appointment of Auditors of the Company;

 Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;

 Reviewing, with the Management, the annual financial statements before submission to the Board for approval, with 
par�cular reference to:

 a. Ma�ers required to be included in the Directors’ Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s Report in terms 
of sec�on 134(3)(c) of the Act;

 b. Changes, if any, in accoun�ng policies and prac�ces and reasons for the same;

 c. Major accoun�ng entries involving es�mates based on the exercise of judgment by Management;

 d. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

 e. Compliance with lis�ng and other legal requirements rela�ng to financial statements;

 f. Disclosure of any related party transac�ons, if any;

 g. Modified opinion(s), if any, in the dra� audit report. 

 Reviewing with the Management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the Board for approval;

 Reviewing with the Management, the statement of uses / applica�on of funds raised through an issue (public issue, rights 
issue, preferen�al issue, etc.), the statement of funds u�lized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ 
prospectus/ no�ce and the report submi�ed by the monitoring agency monitoring the u�liza�on of proceeds of a public or 
rights issue and making appropriate recommenda�ons to the Board to take up steps in this ma�er;

 Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effec�veness of audit process;

 Approval of transac�ons with related par�es and any subsequent modifica�on of such transac�on in accordance with the Act 
read with the Rules made thereunder and the SEBI Regula�ons;

 Scru�ny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

 Valua�on of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

 Evalua�on of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

 Reviewing with the Management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit func�on, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, staffing 
and seniority of the official heading the department, repor�ng structure coverage and frequency of the internal audit;

 Discussion with the internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon;

 Reviewing the findings of any internal inves�ga�ons by the internal auditors into ma�ers where there is suspected fraud or 
irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and repor�ng the ma�er to the Board;

 Discussion with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit 
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

 Looking into the reasons for substan�al defaults in payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in case of 
non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors, if any;
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 Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer a�er assessing the qualifica�ons, experience and background, etc. of the 
candidate;

Reviewing mandatorily the following informa�on:

a. Management discussion and analysis of financial condi�on and results of opera�ons;

b. Statement of significant related party transac�ons, submi�ed by the Management;

c. Management le�ers / le�ers of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

d. Internal audit reports rela�ng to internal control weaknesses; 

e. The appointment, removal and terms of remunera�on of the internal auditor and statement of devia�ons, if any,:

 i) quarterly statement of devia�on(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submi�ed to stock exchange(s) 
in terms of Regula�on 32(1);

 ii) annual statement of funds u�lized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document/prospectus/no�ce in 
terms of Regula�on 32(7).

Vigil Mechanism:

a.  Ensuring establishment of vigil mechanism for its Directors and employees to report genuine concerns;

b.   Providing for adequate safeguards against vic�miza�on of persons who use such mechanism and make provision for direct 
access to the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee in appropriate or excep�onal cases;

c.   Ensuring  that the existence of vigil mechanism is appropriately communicated within the Company and also made available 
on Company’s website;

d.   Overseeing the func�oning of vigil mechanism and the Whistle blower mechanism and decide on the ma�ers reported 
thereunder and 

e.   Ensuring that the interests of a person who uses such a mechanism are not prejudicially affected on account of such use;

· Reviewing the u�liza�on of loans and/ or advances from/investment in the subsidiary exceeding Rs. 100 crore or 10% of the 
asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower, including exis�ng loans / advances / investments;

  Reviewing compliance with SEBI (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015 atleast once in a financial year; and

  Verifying effec�ve opera�on and adequacy of internal control systems.

 The Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee has briefed the Board of Directors, about the Audit Commi�ees observa�ons on 
various issues discussed at its mee�ngs. Minutes of the Audit Commi�ee Mee�ngs are also circulated to all the Board 
Members along with agenda of the subsequent mee�ng.

d) A�endance record of the Members:

 The a�endance record of each member of the Audit Commi�ee at the Mee�ng held on June 24, 2020, 

 September 12, 2020, October 08, 2020, November 07, 2020, December 02, 2020, February 10, 2021, March 21, 2021 are as 
follows:

Date on which the  A�endance of Members

mee�ng were held Mr. M. V. Subramanian Mr. Venkatesh Vastare Mr. Krishna Murari Singh

June 24, 2020 Present Present Present

September 12, 2020 Present Present Present

October 08, 2020 Present Present Present

November 07, 2020 Present Present Present

December 02, 2020 Present Present Present

February 10, 2021 Present Present Present

March 21, 2021 Present Present Present
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 The previous Annual General Mee�ng was held on Tuesday December 29, 2020. Mr. M V Subramanian, Chairman of the Audit 
Commi�ee has a�ended the Annual General Mee�ng of the Company.

4. RISK MANAGEMENT:

 Preamble:

 The Board takes responsibility for the total process of risk management in the organisa�on. Results of the risk assessments 
and residual risks are presented to the Senior Management and the Audit Commi�ee members. The Management is 
accountable for the integra�on of risk management prac�ces into the day to day ac�vi�es. The scope of the Audit Commi�ee 
includes review of the Company’s financial and risk management policies. The Audit Commi�ee reviews the Audit Reports 
covering opera�onal, financial and other business risk areas.

5. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE :

 a) Preamble:

  Pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 178 (5) of the Act and Regula�on 20 of the SEBI Regula�ons read with Part D of 
Schedule II thereto, the Shareholders’ Commi�ee of the Board was recons�tuted as the Stakeholders’ Rela�onship 
Commi�ee. 

  The Stakeholder Rela�onship Commi�ee comprises of the following Directors: -

Name of Director Nature of Membership Date of Appointment Director Category

Mrs. Beauty Krishnamurari Singh Chairman  07-12-2016 Non-Execu�ve Director

Mr. Krishna Murari Singh Member  07-12-2016 Execu�ve- Managing Director

Mr. M V Subramanian Member  10-12-2019 Non-Execu�ve–Independent Director

Ms. Swa� Arora, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company, acts as Secretary to the SRC.

 b) Change in composi�on:

  There was no change in the composi�on of the Audit Commi�ee during the financial year 2020-21.

 c) Terms of Reference:

  a.   To approve Transfer / Transmission / Dematerializa�on of Equity Shares of the Company;

  b. To approve issue of Duplicate/Consolidated/Split Share Cer�ficate(s);

  c. To do all necessary acts, deeds and things, as may be required, including authorizing any person(s) to endorse the 
Share Cer�ficate(s), affixing Common Seal of the Company on Share Cer�ficate(s) as per Ar�cle of Associa�on of 
the Company etc; 

  d. To do all acts, deeds and things as may be required for admission of Equity Shares of the Company with Na�onal 
Securi�es Depository Limited [NSDL] and Central Depository Services (India) Limited [CDSL];

  e. To decide and approve ma�ers rela�ng to Equity Shares and /or any other securi�es issued by the Company and 
any other ma�ers as may be specifically authorized by the Board of Directors;

  f. To oversee and resolve grievances of shareholders and other security holders of the Company;

  g. To do all acts, deeds and things as may be required to be undertaken in terms of the provisions of Companies Act, 
2013 and rules made there under.

  h. Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the Company including complaints related to 
transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of 
new/duplicate cer�ficates, general mee�ngs etc.

  i. Proac�vely communicate and engage with stockholders including engaging with the ins�tu�onal shareholders at 
least once a year along with members of the Commi�ee/Board/KMPs, as may be required and iden�fying 
ac�onable points for implementa�on.

  j. Review of measures taken for effec�ve exercise of vo�ng rights by shareholders.

  k. Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various services being 
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.
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  l. Review of the various measures and ini�a�ves taken by the Company for reducing the quantum of unclaimed 
dividends and ensuring �mely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory no�ces by the shareholders 
of the Company.

d) A�endance record of the Members:

 The a�endance record of each member of the Stakeholder Rela�onship Commi�ee at the Mee�ng held on February 10, 2021 
is as follows:

Date on which the  A�endance of Members

mee�ng were held Mrs. Beauty Krishna Murari Singh Mr. Krishna Murari Singh Mr. M. V. Subramanian

February 10, 2021 Present Present Present

 All share transfer and correspondence thereon are handled by the Company’s Registrars and Share Transfer Agents viz. Link 
ln�me Private Limited situated at C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400-83.

e) Name and Designa�on of Compliance Officer:

 Ms. Swa� Arora, Company Secretary, has been appointed as the Compliance Officer, as required under Regula�on 6 of the 
Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (“Lis�ng 
Regula�ons”). She has been entrusted the task of overseeing the Share Transfer work done by the Registrars and Share 
Transfer Agents and a�ending to grievances of the Shareholders and Investors in�mated to the Company directly or through 
SEBI and Stock Exchanges. All complaints / grievances have been duly in�mated to exchange under Regula�on 13 of the 
Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 which is as 
follows:

No. of Investor complaints  No. of Investor Investor No. of Investor complaints No. of Investor complaints
pending at the begging of the complaints received during disposed of during the  unresolved at the end of the
quarter ended on 31.03.2021 the quarter ended  quarter ended  quarter ended on 31.03.2021
 on 31.03.2021 on 31.03.2021 

0 0 0 0

6. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

 a) Preamble:

  Pursuant to sec�on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 19 of the SEBI Regula�ons read with Part D of 
Schedule II thereto the Company has cons�tuted the the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee. This Commi�ee 
shall have the authority to Inves�gate into any ma�er that may be prescribed under Company Law for the �me being in 
force and shall also comply with the terms of reference as specified herein as under.

  The Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee consists of the following Directors.

Name of Director Nature of Membership Date of Appointment Director Category

Mr. Venkatesh Vastare Chairman 27-03-2019 Non-Execu�ve –Independent Director

Mrs. Beauty Krishnamurari Singh Member 07-12-2016 Non-Execu�ve Director

Mr. M V Subramanian Member 07-12-2016 Non-Execu�ve –Independent Director

  Ms. Swa� Arora, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company, acts as Secretary to the NRC.

 b) Change in composi�on:

  There was no change in the composi�on of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee during the financial year 
2020-21.

 c) Terms of Reference:

  a. Formula�ng criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of a director and 
recommend to the Board a policy, rela�ng to the remunera�on of the directors, key managerial personnel and 
other employees;

  b. Formula�on of criteria for evalua�on of Independent Directors and the Board and also criteria for evalua�on of 
performance of the Independent Directors;
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  c. Devising a policy on Board diversity;

  d. Iden�fying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal;

  e. To carry out evalua�on of every Director’s performance; 

  f. Such other ma�ers as may be delegated by the Board of Directors of the Company; and

  g. To recommend to the Board policy rela�ng to remunera�on for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior 
Management.

  h. Ensure that level and composi�on of remunera�on is reasonable and sufficient, rela�onship of remunera�on to 
performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks.

  I Recommend to the Board, the Si�ng Fees payable for a�ending the mee�ngs of the Board/Commi�ee thereof, 
and, any other benefits such as Commission, if any, payable to the Non- Execu�ve Directors.

  j. Se�ng the overall Remunera�on Policy and other terms of employment of Directors, wherever required.

  k. Removal should be strictly in terms of the applicable law/s and in compliance of principles of natural jus�ce.

  l. To perform such other func�ons as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its du�es.

   The remunera�on policy of the Company is directed towards rewarding performance based on review of 
achievements on a periodic basis and is inconsonance with the exis�ng industry prac�ce which is hosted on the 
website of the Company at  h�ps://www.globalspace.in/document/Policies/NRC_POLICY.pdf

 d) A�endance record of the Members:

  The a�endance record of each member of the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee at the Mee�ng held on June 24, 
2020, October 21, 2020, December 02, 2020, February 10, 2021 & March 21, 2021 are as follows :

Date on which the  A�endance of Members

mee�ng were held Mr. Venkatesh Vastare Mrs.  Beauty Krishnamurari Singh Mr. Krishna Murari Singh

June 24, 2020 Present Present Present

October 21, 2020 Absent  Present Present

December 02, 2020 Present Present Present

February 10, 2021 Present Absent Present

March 21, 2021 Present Present Present

  The previous Annual General Mee�ng was held on Tuesday December 29, 2020. Mr. Venkatesh Vastare, Chairman of 
the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee has a�ended the Annual General Mee�ng of the Company.

 e) Performance Evalua�on:

  In compliance with the provisions of the Act and SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, the Company has undertaken the 
performance evalua�on process for the Board of Directors, its Commi�ees and that of individual Directors. The 
performance evalua�on was undertaken as per the Guidance Note on Board evalua�on issued by Securi�es and 
Exchange Board of India and framework provided by Nomina�on and Remunera�on/Compensa�on Commi�ee, 
se�ng out parameters for conduc�ng performance evalua�on of the Board, its Commi�ees and that of Individual 
Directors.

  The evalua�on framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises of the following key areas:

  i. A�endance of Board Mee�ngs and Board Commi�ee Mee�ngs.

  ii. Quality of contribu�on to Board delibera�ons.

  iii. Strategic perspec�ves or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its performance.

  iv. Providing perspec�ves and feedback going beyond informa�on provided by the management.

  v. Commitment to shareholder and other stakeholder interests.
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  vi. The evalua�on involves Self-Evalua�on by the Board Member and subsequently assessment by the Board of 
Directors. A member of the Board will not par�cipate in the discussion of his / her evalua�on.

7. INTERNAL COMPLAINT COMMITTEE FOR PREVENTION AND PROHIBITION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMAN

 a) Preamble

  Pursuant to Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“Act”), the 
Board by passing circular resolu�on on November 10,2016, cons�tuted the commi�ee known as Internal Complaint 
Commi�ee (“ICC”) for preven�on and prohibi�on of sexual harassment of woman which comprises of the following 
Directors:

Name of Director Nature of Membership and Date of  Appointment Director Category

Amitabh Sinha 1st January, 2019 Execu�ve Director

Priyanka Potdar 9th December, 2019 Employee

Sumana Guha 1st January, 2019 Employee

Swa� Arora 1st January, 2019 Employee

 b) Change in composi�on:

  There was no change in the composi�on of the ICC during the financial year 2020-21.

 c) Terms of reference of the Commi�ee:

  To provide protec�on against sexual harassment of women at workplace and for the preven�on and redressal of 
complaints of sexual harassment and for ma�ers connected therewith or incidental thereto

 d) A�endance record of the Members:

  The a�endance record of each member of the ICC at the Mee�ng held on March 21, 2021 are as follows:

Date on which the  A�endance of Members

mee�ng were held Amitabh Sinha Priyanka Potdar Sumana Ghua Swa� Arora

March 31, 2021 Present Present Present Present

Under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 2013 the company has received 
Complaints which are enunciated below:

Sr. No. No. of Complaint Received Date of Receipt of Complaint

Nil Nil Nil

8. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS:

 Preamble:

 The Company pays remunera�on by way of salary, allowances and perquisites, performance allowance etc. to the Chairman, 
Managing Director and Company Secretary on recommenda�on of the Nomina�on & Remunera�on Commi�ee as 
approved by the Board of Directors and shareholders of the Company subject to approval of the Central Government if 
necessary. 

 a. Criteria for making payment to Execu�ve Directors 

  The Company’s Board presently consists of two Execu�ve Director viz. Mr. Krishna Murari Singh, Managing Director and 
Promoter of the company and Mr. Amitabh Sinha, Execu�ve Director & Chief Execu�ve Officer of the company.

 1. Details of remunera�on of the Execu�ve Directors during Financial Year  2020-21:

Name of the Director  Fixed Salary  Bonus  Commission Total
 Basic Benefits Total Fixed Performance 
 Salary  Salary linked incen�ves 

*Krishna Murari Singh 48,00,000 0 48,00,000 0 0 48,00,000 

Amita Sinha 18,62,340 0 18,62,340 0 0 18,62,340

Total 66,62,340 0 66,62,340 0 0 66,62,340

(In Rs.)
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 2. Service Contracts:

        In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 our shareholders approve the salary, benefits of 
Execu�ve Directors. We enter into service contracts with each of our Directors containing the terms and condi�ons of 
employment including salary, performance bonus and other benefits including perks to be received by the Execu�ve 
Directors. The Directors are required to serve a no�ce period as deemed fit by the Company before the resigning date.

 3. Tenure:  3 years (From April 01, 2019 to March 31, 2022) 

 4. Severance/ Compensa�on fees:

  The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee is entrusted with the role of reviewing the compensa�on of Directors.

  a. Criteria for making payment to Non - Execu�ve Directors:

   The Non-Execu�ve Directors add substan�al value to the Company through their contribu�on to the 
Management of the Company and thereby they safeguard the interests of the stakeholders at large by playing an 
appropriate control role. Non-Execu�ve Directors bring in their vast experience and exper�se to bear on the 
delibera�ons at the Board and its Commi�ees. Although the Non-Execu�ve Directors would contribute to 
Globalspace Technologies Limited in several ways, including advising the Managing Director & CEO and the Senior 
Managerial Personnel outside the Board/Commi�ee mee�ngs, the bulk of their measurable inputs come in the 
form of their contribu�on at Board/Commi�ee mee�ngs.

   The Company, therefore has a structure for remunera�on to Non-Execu�ve Directors, based on certain financial 
parameters like the performance of the Company, its market capitaliza�on, etc., industry benchmarks, role of the 
Director and such other relevant factors. 

 Si�ng Fees:

   In respect of the financial year 2020-21 the si�ng fees paid/payable to the Non-Execu�ve Directors are as 
detailed below:

Name  Total si�ng fees paid during the Financial Year 2020-21

Mrs. Beauty Krishna Murari Singh `  2,40,000/-

Mr. M V Subramanian `  3,60,000/-

Mr. Venkatesh S. Vastare  `  3,20,000/-

Ms. Radhika Jhawar NIL

Ms. Charu Golash `  20,000/-

   Commission:

   Under the Companies Act, 2013, Sec�on 197 allows a company to pay remunera�on to its NEDs either by way of a 
monthly payment or at a specified percentage of the net profits of the company or partly by one way and partly by 
the other. Further, the sec�on also states that where the company has managing director or whole-�me director 
or manager, then a maximum of 1% of its net profits can be paid as remunera�on to its Non-Execu�ve Director. In 
case there is no managing director or whole-�me director or manager, then a maximum of 3% of net profit can be 
paid. Thus, the basis of payment to the Non-Execu�ve Director is the net profit of the Company. Currently the 
Company is not paying Commission to its Non-Execu�ve Director.

   Reimbursement of actual expenses incurred:

   Non-Execu�ve Director may also be paid / reimbursed such sums either as fixed allowance and /or actual as fair 
compensa�on for travel, boarding and lodging and incidental and /or actual out of pocket expenses incurred by 
such member for a�ending Board/Commi�ee Mee�ngs or for Company’s work.

   Payment and other considera�on to independent directors:

   An independent director shall not be en�tled to any stock op�on and may receive remunera�on only by way of 
fees and reimbursement of expenses for par�cipa�on in mee�ngs of the Board or commi�ee thereof and profit 
related commission up to a certain percentage of net profits in such propor�on, as may be permissible under the 
applicable law.
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   Pecuniary rela�onship or transac�ons of the Non-Execu�ve Directors vis-à-vis the listed en�ty:

   There is no pecuniary or business rela�onship between the Non-Execu�ve/Independent Directors and the 
Company, except for the si�ng fees for a�ending mee�ngs of the Board / Commi�ees thereof and commission 
payable to them annually.

9. GENERAL BODY  MEETING:

 A. Details of the last three Annual General Mee�ngs:

AGM For  Venue Date Time No of  Details of the Special 
Financial     Special  Resolu�ons
Year     Resolu�on  
Ended    Passed 
 
2019-20 Through Video Conference  December, 29 3.00 : P.M 1 1. To consider, approve payment
 Facility  2020   of remunera�on to Mr. Krishna 
     Murari Singh, Managing Director 
     of the Company in excess of limits
      prescribed under Regula�on
     17(6)(e) of SEBI( Lis�ng
     Obliga�ons and Disclosure
     Requirements) Regula�on, 2015

2018-19 Ramada Hotel  September 27,  3.00 : P.M 3 1. To migrate the Company from
 Navi Mumbai, 156,  2019   BSE SME Pla�orm to Main Board
 Millennium Business Park,     of BSE Limited,
 MIDC, Sector 2, Mahape,     2. To re-appoint Mr. Venkatesh S
 Navi Mumbai – 400710     Vastare as      Independent 
     Director.
     3. To re-appoint Mr. M V 
     Subramanian as Independent
     Director

2017-18 Ramada Hotel Navi Mumbai,  September 10,  3.30 : P.M 2 1. To alter the Object Clause of
 156, Millennium Business  2018   the Memo-randum of Associa�on
 Park, Midc, sector 2,     of the Company.
 Mahape,     2. To re-designate
 Navi Mumbai – 400710    Mr. Nurani Venkitakrishnan
      Kailasam (DIN – 06672569) from 
     Whole-Time Director to Execu�ve
     Director of the Company.

 B. Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ngs:

  No Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng has been held during the year. 

 C. During the year, the members have approved the following Special Resolu�ons by way of Postal Ballot: 

  No Members have approved the Special Resolu�on by way of Postal Ballot for the Financial Year 2020-21.

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:

 The Company promptly discloses informa�on on material corporate developments and other events as required under 
Lis�ng Regula�ons. Such �mely disclosures indicate the  good corporate governance prac�ces of the Company. For this 
purpose, it provides mul�ple channels of communica�ons through dissemina�on of informa�on on the on-line portal of the 
Stock Exchanges, Press Releases, the Annual Reports and by placing relevant informa�on on its website.

 a. Publica�on of financial results:

  Quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial results of the Company published in English in Financial Express  and in 
Marathi in Mumbai Lakshadweep and are displayed on Company’s website at Search Results Web results 
h�ps://www.globalspace.in/
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 b. Website and News Releases:

  In compliance with Regula�on 46 of the Lis�ng Regula�ons, a separate dedicated sec�on under ‘Investors’ on the 
Company’s website gives informa�on on various announcements made by the Company, status of unclaimed dividend, 
Annual Report, Quarterly/Half yearly/ Nine-months and Annual financial results along with the applicable policies of 
the Company. The Company’s official news releases and presenta�ons made to the ins�tu�onal investors and analysts 
are also available on the Company’s website h�ps://www.globalspace.in/.Quarterly Compliance Reports and other 
relevant informa�on of interest to the Investors are also placed under the Investors Sec�on on the Company’s website.

 c. Stock Exchange:

         The Board of Directors has approved a policy for determining materiality of events for the purpose of making disclosure 
to the stock exchanges. The CFO & Company Secretary are empowered to decide on the materiality of informa�on for 
the purpose of making disclosures to the stock exchanges. The Company makes �mely disclosures of necessary 
informa�on to BSE Limited (BSE) in terms of the Lis�ng Regula�ons and other applicable rules and regula�ons issued by 
the SEBI.

 d. BSE Corporate Compliance & the Lis�ng Centre:

  BSE Lis�ng is a web-based applica�on designed by BSE for corporates. All periodical compliance filings, inter alia, 
shareholding pa�ern, Corporate Governance Report, corporate announcements, amongst others, are in accordance 
with the Lis�ng Regula�ons filed electronically. Further, in compliance with the provisions of Lis�ng Regula�ons, the 
disclosures made to the stock exchanges, to the extent possible, are in a format that allows users to find relevant 
informa�on easily through a searching tool.

11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

 The Company is registered with the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai. The Corporate Iden�ty Number (CIN) 
allo�ed to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) is L64201MH2010PLC211219.

 Date, �me and venue of 11th Annual General Mee�ng of the Company:

Date November 26, 2021

Time 3.00 P.M.

Venue / Video Conferencing Video Conferencing

Date of Book Closure connec�on November 18, 2021 to November 26, 2021
with 11th Annual General Mee�ng 

 b) Current Financial Year: April to March

 c) Dividend payment date: 

  The Company has not declared any dividend for the Financial Year 2020-21.

 d) Unclaimed dividend: 

  The Company has not declared any dividend for the Financial Year 2020-21.

 e) Name and address of the stock exchange where Company’s shares are listed:

Name BSE Limited

Address Phiroz Jeejebhoy Tower, Dalal Street, Kala Ghoda, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001, Maharashtra, India 

 f) Confirma�on of Payment of Lis�ng Fess to BSE Limited:

  The Company has made payment of lis�ng fees to BSE Limited for the Financial Year 2020-21.

 g) Scrip Code and ISIN Number:

Scrip Code 540654

ISIN Number INE632W01016
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 h) Financial Calendar:

  For the year ended March 31, 2021, results were announced on

Annual  Announcement on 29th June, 2021.

Quarterly For Quarter ended March 31, 2020: Announced on 24th June, 2020.

 For Quarter ended June 30, 2020: Announcement on 12th September, 2020.

 For Quarter ended September 30, 2020: Announcement on 7th November, 2020.

 For Quarter ended December 31, 2020: Announcement on 10th February, 2021.

 For Quarter ended March 31, 2021: Announcement on 29th June, 2021.

 i) High/Low of Market Price of Company's Shares traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) Up-to 31st March, 2021:

Month (April 2020 to March 2021) High Low Close No. of Shares Total 
    Traded Turnover

April 60.00 44.00 50.00 50,279 25,13,867

May 73.95 48.00 63.80 75,643 45,86,077

June 89.65 51.05 74.15 2,45,498 1,72,50,193

July 87.50 60.40 75.15 12,97,914     9,44,89,275

August 135.85 74.00 95.90 12,93,527  13,21,72,174

September 96.45 70.40 79.05 3,50,813 2,96,30,574

October 82.40 65.70 68.30 1,77,827 1,30,18,117

November 73.50 52.85 55.50 2,35,232 1,49,57,638

December 67.40 56.00 59.60 2,76,144 1,68,51,968

January 71.75 57.20 61.65 1,56,384 1,00,62,980

February 69.85 58.60 61.30 2,03,140 1,27,71,570

March 69.80 56.00 60.40 2,59,195 1,67,60,989

(Source : BSE website)

 i) High/Low of Market Price of Shares traded on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) vis-à-vis Company’s Shares traded on 
the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) Up-to 31st March, 2021:

Month (April 2020 to March 2021) Globalspace Technologies Limited’s Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE)

 High Low Close High Low Close

April 60.00 44.00 50.00 33,887.25 27,500.79 33,717.62

May 73.95 48.00 63.80 32,845.48 29,968.45 32,424.10

June 89.65 51.05 74.15 35,706.55 32,348.10 34,915.80

July 87.50 60.40 75.15 38,617.03 34,927.20 37,606.89

August 135.85 74.00 95.90 40,010.17 36,911.23 38,628.29

September 96.45 70.40 79.05 39,359.51 36,495.98 38,067.93

October 82.40 65.70 68.30 41,048.05 38,410.20 39,614.07

November 73.50 52.85 55.50 44,825.37 39,334.92 44,149.72

December 67.40 56.00 59.60 47,896.97 44,118.10 47,751.33

January 71.75 57.20 61.65 50,184.01 46,160.46 46,285.77

February 69.85 58.60 61.30 52,516.76 46,433.65 49,099.99

March 69.80 56.00 60.40 51,821.84 48,236.35 49,509.15          

(Source : BSE website)
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Graphical Representa�on of Performance of Globalspace Technologies Limited's Share Price (closing price on BSE)
in comparison with S&P BSE Sensex.

Address: C-101, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), Mumbai 400083.

Telephone No : 022-49186000 Extn: 2330

E-mail address : bharat.rajpurohit@linkin�me.co.in

Fax No : 022-49186060.

(Source : BSE website)

 k) Suspension of Securi�es of the Company from Stock Exchange:

  During the year 2020-21, the Company’s securi�es have not been suspended from trading on BSE Limited.

 l) Investor Services : 

  The Company has appointed M/s. Link ln-�me India Private Limited (LIIPL) (Formerly known as M/s. ln-�me Spectrum 
Registry Limited, whose address is given below, as its Registrar and Transfer Agents. The Registrar handles all ma�ers 
rela�ng to the shares of the Company including transfer, transmission of shares, dematerialisa�on of share cer�ficates, 
subdivision /consolida�on of share cer�ficates and investor grievances. LIIPL is also the Depository interface of the 
Company with both NSDL & CDSL

  Details of LIIPL are as follows:

  The Company has appointed M/s. Link ln-�me India Private Limited (LIIPL) (Formerly known as M/s. ln-� me Spectrum 
Registry Limited, whose address is given below, as its Registrar and Transfer Agents. The Registrar handles all ma�ers 
rela�ng to the shares of the Company including transfer, transmission of shares, dematerialisa�on of share cer�ficates, 
subdivision /consolida�on of share cer�ficates and investor grievances. LIIPL is also the Depository interface of the 
Company with both NSDL & CDSL.

 m) Share Transfer System:

  All the transfers received are processed by Registrar and Transfer Agents. Share transfers are registered and returned 
within maximum of 21 days from the date of lodgment if documents are complete in all respects. In case the shares are 
transferred through demat mode, the procedure is adopted as stated in Depositories Act, 2018.
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 n)  Categories of Shareholding as on 31st March,2021:

Category No. of Shares Shareholding %

Promoters and their rela�ves / Promoter Group Companies 63,36,171 55.31

Clearing Members 15,222 0.13

Indian Companies Nil Nil

Foreign Company Nil Nil

Financial Ins�tu�ons 168452 1.47

Hindu Undivided Family 2,63,003 2.03

Mutual Funds Nil Nil

Na�onalised Banks Nil Nil

Non Na�onalised Banks  Nil Nil

Non Residents Indians  50477 0.44

Bodies Corporate 4,62,119 4.03

Office Bearers Nil Nil

Indian Public  4,159,557 36.30

Trusts Nil Nil

Directors/Rela�ves of Directors  Nil Nil

Independent Director 1600 0.02

Foreign Por�olio Investors (Corporate) Nil Nil

Employee Benefit Trust - under SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regula�ons, 2014 Nil Nil

Alternate Investment Funds Nil Nil

Total 1,14,56,601 100

 o) Distribu�on of shareholding as on 31st March, 2021:

Sr. No Shareholding of  Shareholders Percentage of  Total Shares Percentage of
 shares  total Shareholders   Total Shares

1. 1 to 500 1083 75.0520 140680 1.2279

2. 501 to 1000 123 8.5239 99138 0.8653

3. 1001 to 2000 131 9.0783 222602 1.9430

4. 2001 to 3000 33 2.2869 83204 0.7263

5. 3001 to 4000 11 0.7623 39756 0.3470

6. 4001 to 5000 6 0.4158 28034 0.2447

7. 5001 to 10000 18 1.2474 122801 1.0719

8. 10001 or Above             38 2.6334 10720386 93.5739

 p) Outstanding Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipts or Warrants Or Any Conver�ble 
Instruments: 

  There are no Outstanding Global Depository Receipts or American Depository Receipts or Warrants or Any Conver�ble 
Instruments for the Financial Year 2020-21. 

 q) Credit Ra�ngs and revisions thereto for all debt instruments or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or 
proposal of / the Company obtained during the year under review:

  The Company did not have any debt instruments or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal during the 
year under review.



62

 r) Dematerialisa�on of  Shares:

  The Company's shares are tradable compulsorily in electronic form. The Company has established through its Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agents, connec�vity with Na�onal Securi�es Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depository 
Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL). 98.53% of the equity shares of the company have been dematerialized as on 31st March, 
2021.

 s)  Plant  Loca�on:

Name of the Company: Globalspace Technologies Limited,

Address  :  605, 6th floor, Rupa Solitaire Building, Millennium Business Park Navi Mumbai 400710.

Telephone : 022- 49452015

12. OTHER DISCLOSURES:

 (a) Materially Significant related party transac�ons: 

  The par�culars of transac�ons between the Company and its related par�es as per the Accoun�ng Standard -18 are set 
out at Note 34 in Notes to Accounts in the Annual Report. These transac�ons are not likely to have any conflict with 
Company’s interest. The Company also has the policy on Materiality of Related Party Transac�on. The details of such 
policy are available on the website of the Company at  

  h�ps://www.globalspace.in/document/Policies/Policy_for_determina�on_of_materiality_FINAL.pdf.

  The Policy intends to ensure that proper repor�ng, approval and disclosure processes are in place for all transac�ons 
between the Company and Related Par�es. This policy specifically deals with the review and approval of Material 
Related Party Transac�ons keeping in mind the poten�al or actual conflicts of interest that may arise because of 
entering into these transac�ons. 

  All Related Party Transac�ons are placed before the Audit Commi�ee for review and approval. Prior omnibus approval 
is obtained for Related Party Transac�ons on a quarterly basis for transac�ons which are of repe��ve nature and / or 
entered in the ordinary course of business and are at Arm’s Length. All Related Party Transac�ons entered during the 
year were in Ordinary Course of the business and on Arm’s Length basis. No Material Related Party Transac�ons, i.e. 
transac�ons exceeding ten percent of the annual consolidated turnover as per the last audited financial statements, 
were entered during the year by your Company.

  During the year the Board of Directors had adopted the updated Related Party Transac�on policy in line with 
amendments to the Lis�ng Regula�ons.

 (b) Management Disclosures: 

  The Senior Management Personal have been making disclosures to the Board rela�ng to all material, financial and 
commercial transac�ons, where they have personal interest that may have a poten�al conflict with the interest of the 
Company at large. Based on the disclosures received, none of the Senior Management Personnel has entered into any 
such transac�ons during the year.

 (c) Statutory Compliance, Penal�es and Strictures: 

  There were no penal�es, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBI or any statutory authority on 
any ma�er rela�ng to the capital markets since the date i. e  August 07, 2017, on which company i.e Globalspace 
Technologies Limited got listed on Bombay Stock Exchange.

 (d) Risk Management Framework: 

  The Board of Directors has adopted the Risk Assessment Procedure. The procedure provides an approach by the top 
Management to iden�fy poten�al events that may affect the Company, to manage the risk within its risk appe�te and to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objec�ves of the Company. The Senior Management 
priori�es the risk and finalize the ac�on plan for mi�ga�on of the key risks.

 (e) Whistle Blower Policy: 

  The Company has a vigil mechanism and whistle blower policy under which it takes cognizance of complaints made and 
sugges�ons given by the employees and others. Even anonymous complaints are looked into and whenever necessary, 
suitable correc�ve steps are taken. No employee of the Company has been denied access to the Audit Commi�ee the 
policy has been put up on the company’s website at 

  h�ps://www.globalspace.in/document/Policies/WHISTLE_BLOWER_POLICY.pdf
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 (f) Details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adop�on of the non-mandatory requirements:

  Mandatory Compliance:

       The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Lis�ng Regula�ons rela�ng to Corporate 
Governance.

  Non- Mandatory Compliance:

  The Company has complied with the following non-mandatory requirements of the Lis�ng Regula�ons rela�ng to 
Corporate Governance. The status of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements listed in Regula�on 27 (1) read 
with Part E of Schedule II of the Lis�ng Regula�ons is as under:

  i) Maintenance of the Chairman’s Office: 

   The Company has an Execu�ve Chairman and the office provided to him for performing his execu�ve du�es is also 
u�lized by him for discharging his du�es as Chairman. No separate office is maintained for the Non-Execu�ve 
Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee but Secretarial and other assistance is provided to him whenever needed in 
performance of his du�es.

  ii) Shareholder’s Rights: 

   The Half yearly and yearly financial performance along with significant events are published in the newspapers 
and also posted on the Company’s Website.

  iii) Modified Opinion in Auditor’s Report: 

   The Company’s financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021 does not contained any modified audit 
opinion.

  iv) Repor�ng of Internal Auditor: 

   The Internal Auditor directly reports to Audit Commi�ee.

 (g) Material Subsidiaries:

  The Company does not have any material non-listed Indian subsidiary whose turnover or net worth (i.e. paid-up capital 
and free reserves) exceeds 20% of the consolidated turnover or net worth respec�vely, of the listed holding company 
and its subsidiaries in the immediately preceding accoun�ng year.

 (h) Total fees for all services paid by the listed en�ty and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory auditor 
and all en��es in the network firm/network en�ty of which the statutory auditor is a part :  Rs. 2,25,000

 (i) Details of u�liza�on of funds raised through preferen�al allotment or qualified ins�tu�ons placement:

  During the year 2020-21, the Company has not raised any amount through preferen�al allotment or qualified 
ins�tu�ons placement as specified under Regula�on 32 (7A).

 (j) Acceptance of recommenda�on of Commi�ee:

  During the year 2020-21, all the sugges�ons / recommenda�ons of all the commi�ees of the Board, have been 
accepted by the Board of Directors.

13. CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS:

 A cer�ficate provided by M/s. CS Nuren Lodaya & Associates, Prac�sing Company Secretaries, was placed before the Board of 
Directors of the Company in its mee�ng held on August 13, 2021. On the basis of cer�ficate provided by M/s. Jadhav & 
Associates, Prac�sing Company Secretaries, the Board of Directors of the Company take a cognizance that none of the 
directors on the board of the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or con�nuing as directors of 
companies by the Board / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. Cer�ficate provided by M/s. CS Nuren 
Lodaya & Associates, Prac�sing Company Secretaries, is annexed hereto and marked as Exhibit – B to this report.

14. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING :

 The Company has adopted ‘The Code of Conduct for Regula�ng, Monitoring and Repor�ng of Trading by Designated Persons’ 
(“Code of Conduct”) in accordance with the SEBI (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015, as amended from �me to 
�me (“SEBI Insider Regula�ons”). The Code of Conduct is applicable to Designated Persons as defined therein.
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 The Company has also formulated ‘The Code of Prac�ces and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price Sensi�ve 
Informa�on’ (“the Code”) in compliance with the SEBI Insider Regula�ons. This Code is uploaded on the website of the 
Company h�ps://www.globalspace.in/document/Policies/Code_of_Conduct_of_Insider_Trading.pdf.

 The Company’s Code of Conduct inter alia prohibits dealing in securi�es of the Company by the designated persons defined 
therein, while in possession of unpublished price sensi�ve informa�on.  

 The Audit Commi�ee reviews cases of non-compliances, if any, and makes necessary recommenda�ons to the Board w.r.t. 
ac�on taken against such defaulters. The said non – compliances are promptly in�mated to SEBI in the prescribed format.

15. CODE OF CONDUCT AND CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE THEREOF:

 Cer�ficate signed by the chief financial officer sta�ng that the members of Board and Senior Management personnel have 
affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of board of directors and senior management is annexed hereto and marked 
as Exhibit – C to this report.

 16. CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION:

 The cer�ficate is placed before the Board by the Chairman and Managing Director & CFO of the Company. This cer�ficate is 
being given to the Board pursuant to Regula�on 17 (8) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015 read with Schedule II Part B of the said regula�ons.

 The aforesaid cer�ficate duly signed by the Chairman and Managing Director & CFO in respect of the financial period ended 
31st March, 2021 has been placed before the Board in the mee�ng held on February 10,2021 is annexed hereto and marked 
as Exhibit – D to this report.

17. SECRETARIAL AUDIT FOR RECONCILIATION OF CAPITAL:

 As s�pulated by SEBI a qualified Prac�cing Company Secretary carries out Secretarial Audit to reconcile the total admi�ed 
capital with Na�onal Securi�es Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the 
total issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out periodically and thereon is submi�ed to the Listed Stock Exchanges. 
The audit confirms that the total Listed and Paid-up Capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number of shares 
in dematerialised form (held with NSDL and CDSL) and total number of shares in physical form.

18. ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE:

Globalspace Technologies Limited Link ln�me India Pvt. Ltd (RTA) 
 (Formerly known   as ln�me Spectrum Registry Ltd),

Regd. Office: 605, 6th Floor, Rupa Solitaire Building,  C 101, 247  Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli West, 
Millennium Business Park Navi Mumbai 400710  Mumbai-400 083Telephone No. 022-49186000 
Tel : 022 49452015

Fax : NA Fax No. 022-49186060

E-mail :  E-mail : cs@globalspace.in mt.helpdesk@linkin�me.co.in

Website : h�ps://www.globalspace.in/ Website : h�ps://linkin�me.co.in/contact.us.html 
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EXHIBIT - A

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To 
The Members,
Globalspace Technologies Limited

We have examined the compliance of condi�ons of Corporate Governance by Globalspace Technologies Limited, for the year 
ended on 31st March, 2021 as s�pulated in Regula�ons 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-
regula�on (2) of regula�on 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (collec�vely referred to as “SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, 2015).

The compliance of condi�ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our examina�on has been limited 
to a review of the procedures and implementa�on thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with the condi�ons of 
the Corporate Governance as s�pulated in the said Clause. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial 
statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us and based on the representa�ons 
made by the Directors and the Management, we cer�fy that the Company has complied with the condi�ons of Corporate 
Governance as s�pulated in SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements), Regula�ons 2015. 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effec�veness 
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

Sd/-
CS Nayan A. Deshmukh
Membership Number: A55324
CP Number : 23730
UDIN : A055324C001238121

Date: October 21, 2021
Place: Navi Mumbai
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EXHIBIT – B

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regula�on 34 (3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10) (i) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015)

To, 
The Members
Globalspace Technologies Limited
605, 6th Floor, Rupa Solitaire Building,
Millennium Business Park, Navi Mumbai,
Thane – 400710.

I have examined the relevant disclosures provided by the Directors (as enlisted in Table A) to Globalspace Technologies Limited. 
having CIN L64201MH2010PLC211219 and having registered office at 605, 6th Floor, Rupa Solitaire Building, Millennium 
Business Park, Navi Mumbai, Thane – 400710 (hereina�er referred to as ‘the Company’) for the purpose of issuing this Cer�ficate, 
in accordance with Regula�on 34 (3) read with Schedule V Para C clause 10 (i) of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng 
Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my informa�on and according to the verifica�ons (including Directors Iden�fica�on Number (DIN) 
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and based on the disclosures of the Directors, we hereby cer�fy that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company (as enlisted in Table A) have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed 
or con�nuing as Directors of the companies by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such 
other Statutory Authority for the period ended as on March 31, 2021.

Table A

Sr. No. Name of the Directors Director Iden�fica�on  Original date of 
  Number appointment in Company

1 Krishna Murari Singh 03160366 22/12/2010

2 Beauty Krishnamurari Singh 03481024 04/07/2016

3 Amitabh Adyacharan Sinha 03480980 24/06/2020

4 Mundamuka Venkateswaran Subramanian 07628898 17/10/2016

5 Venkatesh Vastare Shamanna 07648334 02/12/2016

6 Radhika Jhawar 08560905 21/03/2021

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / con�nuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verifica�on. This cer�ficate is neither an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company.

For and on behalf of CS Nuren Lodaya & Associates

Sd/-
Nuren Lodaya
ACS No. 60128 
COP No. 24248
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 17/06/2021
UDIN: A060128C000480537
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EXHIBIT - C

CODE OF CONDUCT AND CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE THEREOF

This is to confirm that Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Company and is 
available on the website of the Company.

I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained affirma�on from all the Members of the Board and the Senior Management 
Personnel that they have complied with the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 2020-21.

This cer�ficate is being given pursuant to Part D of Schedule V of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula�ons, 2015

For Globalspace Technologies Limited,

Sd/-
Amitabh Sinha
Chief Execu�ve Officer
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EXHIBIT - D

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 17(8) OF SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) 
REGULATIONS, 2015

To
The Board of Directors, 
Globalspace Technologies Limited

A. I have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of Globalspace Technologies Limited for the year ended 
31st March, 2021 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

 I. These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
might be misleading;

 II. These statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with exis�ng 
accoun�ng standards, applicable laws and regula�ons.

B. There are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transac�ons entered into by the company during the year which are 
fraudulent, illegal or viola�ve of the company’s code of conduct.

C. I accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial repor�ng and that we have evaluated 
the effec�veness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial repor�ng and have disclosed to the 
auditors and the Audit Commi�ee, deficiencies in the design or opera�on of such internal controls, if any, of which we are 
aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rec�fying these deficiencies.

D. I have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Commi�ee:

 I. Significant changes in internal control over financial repor�ng during the year;

 II. Significant changes in accoun�ng policies made during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to 
the financial statements; and

 III. Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management 
or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial repor�ng.

 For Globalspace Technologies Limited For Globalspace Technologies Limited   

      
 Sd/- Sd/-
 Prodyot Bha�acharyya Amitabh Adyacharan Sinha 
 Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer
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FORM NO. MR.3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

For The Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2021

[Pursuant to sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To
The Members,
GLOBALSPACE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
605, 6TH FLOOR, RUPA SOLITAIRE BUILDING, MILLENNIUM BUSINESS PARK NAVI MUMBAI THANE 400710

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
prac�ces by Globalspace Technologies Limited (hereina�er called the “Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 
that provided us a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 
thereon. 

Based on my verifica�on of the Company’s  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company and also the informa�on provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representa�ves during the 
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial 
year ended on 31st March, 2021 (hereina�er called the ‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and 
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the repor�ng made hereina�er:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

(ii) The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and Bye-laws framed there under; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula�ons made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, External Commercial Borrowings and Overseas Direct Investment (Not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit Period)

(v) The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’):-

 (a)  The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and Takeovers) Regula�ons, 2011 

 (b) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015. (“PIT Regula�ons”)

 (c) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2018 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

 (d) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regula�ons, 2014 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period) 

 (e) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Debt Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2008 (Not applicable to 
the Company during the Audit Period) 

 (f) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regula�ons, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client 

 (g) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 2009 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period) and

 (h) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period).
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(vi) As iden�fied, no law is specifically applicable to the Company.

 I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

 (i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India. 

 (ii) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015. 

 During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regula�ons, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. men�oned above. 

 I further report that the Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper balance of Execu�ve Directors, 
Non-Execu�ve Directors and Independent Directors. The composi�on of the Board of Directors during the period under 
review was in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

 Adequate no�ce is given to all directors to schedule the Board Mee�ngs, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent in 
advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informa�on and clarifica�ons on the agenda items before the 
mee�ng and for meaningful par�cipa�on at the mee�ng.

 All decisions at Board Mee�ngs and Commi�ee Mee�ngs are carried out either unanimously as recorded in the minutes of 
the mee�ngs of the Board of Directors or Commi�ee of the Board, as the case may be.

 I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and opera�ons 
of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines.          

Sd/-
CS Nayan Arun Deshmukh

Prac�cing Company Secretary
ACS: 55324 CP: 23730

UDIN: A055324C000868807
Date: 01-09-2021
Place: Nashik

This report is to be read with my le�er of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.
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‘Annexure A’ 

To
The Members,
GLOBALSPACE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
605, 6TH FLOOR, RUPA SOLITAIRE BUILDING, MILLENNIUM BUSINESS PARK NAVI MUMBAI THANE 400110

 My report of even date is to be read along with this le�er. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit prac�ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verifica�on was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. I believe that the processes and prac�ces, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company. 

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representa�on about the compliance of laws, rules and regula�ons 
and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, standards is the responsibility of 
management. My examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or 
effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Sd/-
CS Nayan Arun Deshmukh

Prac�cing Company Secretary
ACS: 55324 CP: 23730

UDIN: A055324C000868807
Date: 01-09-2021
Place: Nashik
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ANNEXURE VII

     Disclosure under Sec�on 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of Companies 
(Appointment & Remunera�on) Rules, 2014

The percentage increase in remunera�on of the Execu�ve Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during the 
financial year 2019-20, the ra�o of remunera�on of each director to the median remunera�on of the employees of the Company 
for the financial year and the comparison of remunera�on of each Key Managerial personnel (KMP) against the performance of the 
Company is as under:

Sr.  Name Designa�on Remunera�on Percentage Ra�o of 
No   for FY 2020-21 increase/decrease remunera�on of
    in the remunera�on Director to media 
    for the FY 2020-21 remunera�on
     of employee

1 Mr. Krishna Murari  Chairman &  Rs. 48,00,000/- Nil 24.58:1
 Singh Managing Director 

2. Ms. Swa� Arora Company Secretary Rs. 3,53,716 /- (27.17%) 1.81:1

3. Mr. Prodyot  Chief Financial  Rs. 3,25,074/- (13.31%) 1.66:1
 Bha�acharyya Officer 

4. Mr. Amitabh Sinha Chief Execu�ve  Rs. 18,62,340/- 39.58% 9.54:1
  Officer & Execu�ve 
  Director 

I. The median remunera�on of employees during the financial year was Rs. 1,95,241.18

II. There were 65 permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31 March, 2021.

III. In the financial year there was a decrease of 0.001% in the median remunera�on.

 It is hereby affirmed that the remunera�on is paid as per the remunera�on policy of the company.

IV. List of top 10 employees in terms of remunera�on drawn

Sr. Name  of the Designa�on Remunera�on Nature of Date of  Age of Last  Quali If the employee
No. Employee  (in Rupees) Employment common  Empl- Employment fica�on is a rela�ve of
     cement of oyee held by such  Director or
     Employment  Employee  Manager

1. Amitabh Sinha CEO & Execu�ve  18,62,340 Permanent 01.04.2016 57 Reliance  B.sc No
  Director     Life Sciences 

2. Rajeev  Vice President -  9,85,860 Permanent 01.09.2017 43 Cipla Ltd B.Sc. No
 Srivastava Business  
  Development 

3. Shraddhanand  Senior So�ware  8,57,070.54 Permanent 01.04.2016 32 Nihilent  B.Sc No
 Shukla Analyst     Technolgies 
       Pvt Ltd 

4. Rohit Dubey AGM-Technology 5,69,438.50 Permanent 22.07.2013 34 Travel on  B.com/ No
       wheels M.B.A 

5. Sa�sh Soni TL-  5,39,958 Permanent 15.09.2014 30 - MCA No
  Developmemnt 

6. Sumana Guha Head-HR & 5,21,237.50 Permanent 26.10.2016 46 Neelkamal PGDM,  No
  Admin      M.A 

7. Pavan Sapkale Associate 
  So�ware Analyst 4,35,465.53 Permanent 21.05.2018 24 - B.E. No

8. Gajendra Singh AGM-Technology 4,34,036 Permanent 21.12.2012 30 - MCA No

9. Sushant Girkar Java Developer 4,20,437.68 Permanent 08.06.2020 30 Masstech  B. Sc No
       Business 
       Solu�on 
       Private 
       Limited 

10. Rajesh Chorasia Manager Finance 4,15,466.5 Permanent 15.02.2013 52 Colosceum  B.com No
       Media  M.B.A        
       Pvt. Ltd. 
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ANNEXURE VIII

Annual Report on CSR Ac�vi�es 

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken:-

 The CSR Policy was approved by the Board of Directors & the policy outlines the company’s strategy to bring a posi�ve impact 
on society through programs rela�ng to healthcare, poverty, environment and lowering its resource footprint.

2. Composi�on of CSR Commi�ee: As the CSR Expenditure was less than 50 Lakhs, the company was not required to form 
separate CSR Commi�ee for the FY 2020-21.

3. Provide the web-link where Composi�on of CSR commi�ee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed 
on the website of the company: h�ps://www.globalspace.in/investor.html 

4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (a�ach the report): NA

 5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: NA

 6. Average net profit of the company as per sec�on 135(5): Rs. 3,63,83,883

 7. (a)  Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sec�on 135(5): Rs. 7,27,678

 (b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or ac�vi�es of the previous financial years: NA

 (c)  Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NA

 (d) Total CSR obliga�on for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 7,27,678

8.  (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount   Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Spent for the   Total Amount Transferred to Unspent  Amount transferred to any fund specified
Financial year  CSR Account as per sec�on 135 (6)  under Schedule VII as per second provisio 
(in Rs.)    to sec�on  135(5)

 Amount Date of Transfer Name of the Fund Amount Date of Transfer

Rs. 7,30,678/- NA NA NA NA NA
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 (b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: NA

  (c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 

Sr. Name  of  Item from the list Local Loca�on of  Amount  Mode of  Mode of 
No. Project of  ac�vi�es in  Area the project spent for  implementa�on  implementa�on through
  Schedule VII Yes /   the  Direct (Yes / No.) implemen�ng Agency
  to the Act No.  project 
     (in Rs.) 
    State District Name CSR Registra�on
       Number

1.  PM Cares  Hunger, Poverty,  NA NA  NA NA NA
 fund  Malnutri�on and   7,30,678/-
  Health,
  Educa�on,
  Gender Equality 
  and  Women 
  Empowerment,
  Environmental 
  Sustainability,
  Protec�on Of 
  Na�onal Heritage,
  Armed Forces,
  Promo�on Of 
  Sports, 
  Contribu�on To 
  Government Funds,
  Technology 
  Incubators, Rural 
  Development 
  Projects,Slum Area 
  Development,
  Disaster 
  Management
  
  Total:   NA    Rs. 7,30,678/-

 (d)  Amount spent in Administra�ve Overheads: NA

 (e)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA

 (f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 7,30,678/-

 (g)  Excess amount for set off, if any: NA

Sr. No. Par�cular Amount (In Rs.

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per sec�on 135(5) Rs. 7,27,678

(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year Rs. 7,30,678

(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-( i ) Rs. 3,000

(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac�vi�es of the 
 previous financial years, if any NA

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Rs. 3,000

9.  (a)  Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: NA 

 (b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): NA

 10. In case of crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset, furnish the details rela�ng to the asset so created or acquired through CSR 
spent in the financial year: NA

  (asset-wise details).

 a. Date of crea�on or acquisi�on of the capital asset(s).
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 b. Amount of CSR spent for crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset.

 c. Details of the en�ty or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address 
etc.

 d. Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and loca�on of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average profit as per sec�on 135(5): NA

Sd/- Sd/-
Krishna Murari Singh Amitabh Sinha
Managing Director and Chairman of the Company Execu�ve Director & Chief Execu�ve Officer
DIN: 03160366 DIN: 03480980
Address: F/702, Hawre Panchwa� Plaza, Plot No. 92-96,  Address: Flat - 402, Tower 1, Sea Breeze Tower, Sector 16 A,
Sector-5, Opp. Police Sta�on, Ghansoli,  Nerul West, Navi Mumbai - 400706 
Navi Mumbai- 400701 

Date: October 22, 2021
Place : Navi Mumbai
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TOLIA & ASSOCIATES
 Chartered Accountants

B/7, Madhu Parag, Road 4, 69 Swas�k Society, JVPD Scheme, Vile Parle (West), Mumbai 400056.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To
The members of,
Globalspace Technologies Limited
(formerly Globalspace Tech Private Limited
 formerly Globalspace Technologies Private Limited)

Report on the audit of the Standalone financial statements

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Globalspace Technologies Limited ('the Company') which comprise the 
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of 
Changes in Equity and Statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accoun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial 
statements give the informa�on required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the 
accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021 and total 
comprehensive income (comprising of profit and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
than ended.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs) specified under 
sec�on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibili�es for the Audit of the standalone Financial Statements sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 
Standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Ma�ers

We have determined that there are no key audit ma�ers to communicate in our report.

Informa�on Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the informa�on 
included in the Annual report 2020-21, but does not include the Standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in doing 
so, consider whether such other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on; we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibili�es of Management for Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in sec�on 134(5) of the Act with respect to the prepara�on 
of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial posi�on, financial performance and cash 
flows of the Company in accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, including the Accoun�ng Standards 
specified under sec�on 133 of the Act as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records 
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in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the  Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds 
and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepara�on and 
presenta�on of the Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to con�nue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.Those 
Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial repor�ng process.

Auditor's Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skep�cism throughout the 
audit. We also:

 Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from  fraud is higher than for 
one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,  inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override 
of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate  internal financial controls system in place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and related 
disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty  exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on 
the Company's  ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,  we are required to 
draw a�en�on in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report.  However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

  Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that 
achieves fair  presenta�on.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were of most significance 
in the audit of the Standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and are therefore the key audit 
ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor's report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in terms of 
sub-sec�on (11) of sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the 'Annexure A' a statement on the ma�ers specified in 
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paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

As required by sec�on 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary 
for the purposes of our audit;

(a) We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examina�on of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income) the Statement of Changes in 
Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards specified under Sec�on 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 
164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the Company with respect to these 
standalone financial statements and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 
B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the Company's internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ng.

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remunera�on for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid / provided by the Company to 
its directors in accordance with the provisions of sec�on 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us: 

 i. The Company does not have any pending li�ga�ons which would impact its financial posi�on other than as disclosed in 
Note 37 of the financial  statements;

 ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

 iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund by the 
Company.

For  Tolia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number:111017W

Sd/-
Kiran P. Tolia
Proprietor
Membership Number : 043637 
UDIN: 21043637AAAAIG7075

Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021
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Annexure A referred to in Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date to the 
shareholders Globalspace Technologies Limited 

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of repor�ng a true and fair view on the financial statements of the 
Company and taking into considera�on the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and the books of account and other records 
examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

1. a. The Company is maintaining proper records showing full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details and situa�on of fixed 
assets. However, the records need to be updated.

 b. Fixed assets could not be physically verified by the management due to prevailing Covid situa�on. Hence, discrepancies 
if any are not ascertained.

 c.  The �tle deeds of immovable proper�es are held in the name of the company.

2. Inventories could not be verified at the year end due the prevailing Covid situa�on. Hence, discrepancies if any are not 
ascertained.

3. The Company has not granted loans secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other par�es covered in the registers 
maintained under sec�on 189 of the Act other than loans given to a subsidiary. The terms and condi�ons of grant of such 
loans are not prejudicial to the interests of the Company. The loan is repayable on demand and no amount is overdue. 

4. The Company has not given any loans, guarantees and security. In respect of investments, the provisions of sec�on 186 of the 
Act are complied with.  Sec�on 185 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

5. a) The Company has not accepted any deposits and therefore the direc�ves issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the 
provisions of sec�ons 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules framed there under are not 
applicable. 

 b) No order has been passed by Company Law Board or Na�onal Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any 
court or any other tribunal against the Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 5 (b) of the Order are not 
applicable.

6. The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government under sec�on (1) of sec�on 148 of the 
Act for the ac�vi�es of the Company. 

7. a) Undisputed statutory dues in respect of income tax and other material statutory dues (other than GST) have generally 
been regularly deposited by the Company though there have been delays in a few cases . There were no arrears of 
outstanding dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six months from the date 
they became payable other than in respect of GST which the Company has since paid. No disputed amounts payable in 
respect of income tax/sales tax/GST were outstanding as at the last day of the financial year other than as disclosed in 
the standalone financial statements note no. 37.

 b) No amount is required to be transferred to investor educa�on and protec�on fund in accordance with the relevant 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made there under.

8. The Company has not defaulted in borrowings from a bank. There are no loans form financial ins�tu�ons, government or 
dues to debenture holders.

9.  No moneys were raised by way of ini�al public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Amounts raised by 
way of term loans were applied for purposes for which it was raised.  

10. No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been no�ced or reported during the 
year.

11. The managerial remunera�on has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the 
provisions of sec�on 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. 

12. The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 12 of the Order are not applicable.

13. All transac�ons with related par�es are in compliance with sec�on 177 and sec�on 188 of the Act and the details have been 
disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the  applicable accoun�ng standards. 

14. The Company has not made preferen�al allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly paid conver�ble 
debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 14 of the Order are not applicable.

15. The Company has not entered into non-cash transac�ons covered by sec�on 192 of the Act with directors or persons 
connected with them. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 15 of the Order are not applicable.
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16. The Company is not required to be registered under sec�on 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly the 
provisions of clause 16 of the Order are not applicable.

For  Tolia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number:111017W

Sd/-
Kiran P. Tolia
Proprietor
Membership Number : 043637 
UDIN: 21043637AAAAIG7075

Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021
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ANNEXURE-B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF GLOBALSPACE TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the  Act

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of Globalspace Technologies Limited (“the Company”) as of 
March 31, 2021 in conjunc�on with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng (GNAIFC) issued by the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the 
Act. 

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial repor�ng based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the GNAIFC and the Standards on Audi�ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under sec�on 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. 

Those Standards and the GNAIFC require that, we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng 
effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgments, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that, the audit evidence, we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company's internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

A Company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accoun�ng principles. 

A Company's internal financial control over financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that:

(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and 
disposi�ons of the assets of the Company; 

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisa�ons of management and directors of the Company; and 

(3)  provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi�on, use, or disposi�on of 
the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.  
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng 
and such internal financial controls over financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal 
control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control 
stated in the GNAIFC issued by the ICAI.

For  Tolia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number:111017W

Sd/-
Kiran P. Tolia
Proprietor
Membership Number : 043637 
UDIN: 21043637AAAAIG7075

Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

I� ASSETS � �
1)� Non-current assets � � � �
� (a)� Property, plant and equipment� 3� 59,065,985� 27,086,531 � 29,781,698 
� (b)� Intangible assets� 4� 81,979,952� 46,216,762� 57,770,953
� (c)� Intangible assets under development� 5� 9,858,584� 19,581,333� -
� (d)� Investment in a subsidiary� 6� 21,032,050� 21,032,050� 90,000
� (e)� Financial assets
� � (i)� Trade receivables� 7� -� 32,676,384� 62,757,384 �
� �  (ii) � Other non current financial assets� 8� 105,949,059� 951,480� 4,410,909
� (f)� Other non-current assets� 9� 2,678,258� 2,678,258� 2,678,258 

� � Total non current assets� � 280,563,888� 150,222,798� 157,489,202 

2)� Current assets
� a)� Inventories� 10� 52,158,972� 67,699,907� 5,785,823 
� b)� Financial assets
� � (i)� Trade receivables� 11� 110,485,166� 100,184,346� 142,557,870
� � (ii)� Cash and cash equivalents� 12� 22,093,450� 1,168,035� 4,264,530
� � (iii)� Loans� 13� 8,161,670� 8,392,076� 978,236
� � (iv)� Other financial assets� 14� 470� -� 12,857
� c)� Current tax assets (net)� 15� 13,220,187� 13,409,381� 5,837,437
� d)� Other current assets� 16� 25,327,363� 83,283,547� 59,253,763

� � Total current assets� � 231,447,276� 274,137,291� 218,690,516

� � Total assets� � 512,011,165� 424,360,090� 376,179,718 

II� Equity and liabili�es
� Equity
� a)� Equity share capital� 17� 114,566,010� 114,566,010� 114,566,010
� b)� Other equity� 18� 249,822,548� 190,974,890� 149,629,839

� � Total equity� � 364,388,558� 305,540,900� 264,195,84

� Liabili�es
� 1)� Non-Current Liabili�es
� a)� Financial liabili�es
� � (i)� Long term borrowings� 19� 33,303,902� 29,078,763� 30,701,651
� b)� Long term provisions� 20� 1,449,365� 3,882,516� 4,158,353
� c)� Deferred tax liabili�es (net)� 15� 4,511,471� 583,019� 282,361

� � Total non current liabili�es� � 39,264,738� 33,544,298� 35,142,365

� 2)� Current liabili�es
� a)� Financial liabili�es
� � (i)� Short term borrowings� 21� 43,913,807� 24,853,239� 7,369,794
� � (ii)� Trade payables� 22
� � � total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises� � -� -� - 
� � � total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro� � 8,978,917� 7,132,471� 15,460,311
� � � and small enterprises
� � (iii)� Other current financial  liabili�es� 23� 9,030,956� 14,847,759� 6,584,536
� b)� Other current liabili�es� 24� 46,406,190� 38,339,399� 47,320,226
� c)� Short term provisions� 25� 28,000� 102,024� 106,637 

� � Total current liabili�es� � 108,357,869� 85,274,892� 76,841,504

� � Total equity and liabili�es� � 512,011,165� 424,360,090� 376,179,718

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements�

Sl.� Par�culars� � Notes� As at March 31,  � As at March 31, As at March 31,
No.� � � � � 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

As per report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of�
For Tolia & Associates� Globalspace Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants�
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 111017W Sd/-� Sd/-
 Krishna Murari Singh � Beauty Singh�
Sd/-� Chairman & Managing Director� Director�
Kiran P. Tolia� DIN : 03160366� DIN : 03481024�
Proprietor� �
Membership Number: 043637� Sd/-� Sd/-
UDIN:21043637AAAAIG7075 Prodyut Bha�acharya� Swa� Arora
� Chief Financial Officer � Company Secretary
Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021 Mem. No. 55545 & Compliance Officer
  Mem. No. A44529
 Sd/-
 Amitabh Sinha
 CEO & Director
 DIN : 03480980
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� Income�
� Revenue from opera�ons� 26� 250,295,725� 249,088,698 

� Other Income� 27� 858,166 � 85,371 

� Total income� � 251,153,891� 249,174,069 

� Expenses

� Purchase of stock in trade� � 106,761,161� 184,577,192 

� Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade� 28� 15,540,935� (61,914,084)

� Emloyee benefit expense� 29� 7,055,888� 10,424,137 

� Finance cost� 30� 7,465,130� 8,701,165 

� Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expense� 31� 19,109,933� 14,680,721 

� Other expenses� 32� 23,654,585� 37,400,961

� Total expenses� � 179,587,631� 193,870,092

� Profit before tax� � 71,566,261� 55,303,977 

� Tax expense�
� Current tax� 15� 11,531,068� 13,317,000 

� Tax adjustment of earlier years� � 294,088� -   

� Deferred tax� 15� 3,060,442 � 300,658 

� Total tax expense� � 14,885,598� 13,617,658 

� Profit a�er tax� � 56,680,662� 41,686,319

� Other comprehensive income

� - Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

� Remeasurements of defined benefit liabili�es� � 3,035,008� (341,268)

� - Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss� � (868,012)� -   

� Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax� � 2,166,996� (341,268)

� Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax� � 58,847,658� 41,345,051

� Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each� 33

� a)� Basic� �  5.14� 3.64

� b)� Diluted � � 5.14� 3.64 

Sl.� Par�culars�� Notes For the  For the 
No.     year ended year ended
     March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements

As per report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of�
For Tolia & Associates� Globalspace Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants�
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 111017W Sd/-� Sd/-
 Krishna Murari Singh � Beauty Singh�
Sd/-� Chairman & Managing Director� Director�
Kiran P. Tolia� DIN : 03160366� DIN : 03481024�
Proprietor� �
Membership Number: 043637� Sd/-� Sd/-
UDIN:21043637AAAAIG7075 Prodyut Bha�acharya� Swa� Arora
� Chief Financial Officer � Company Secretary
Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021 Mem. No. 55545 & Compliance Officer
  Mem. No. A44529
 Sd/-
 Amitabh Sinha
 CEO & Director
 DIN : 03480980
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A Cash Flow From Opera�ng Actvi�es
 Net profit before tax 71,566,261 55,303,977
 Adjustments for: 
 Provision for expected credit loss 4,032,774 13,995 
 Deprecia�on/amor�sa�on 19,109,933 14,680,721 
 Interest and finance charges 7,465,130 8,701,165
 OCI adjustments 3,035,008 (341,268)
 Interest  income (858,166) (85,371)

 Opera�ng  profit before working capital changes 104,350,938 78,273,220 

 Adjustments: 
 Trade receivables 20,883,789 72,440,529 
 Inventories 15,540,935 (61,914,084)
 Loans  230,403 (7,413,840)
 Other current  assets/other non current financial assets (37,757,235) (20,570,355)
 Trade payables 1,846,446 (8,327,840)
 Other current liabili�es/other current financial liabili�es 2,249,987 (8,980,830)
 Provisions  (14,332,331) (280,450)
 Cash Generated from Opera�ons 93,012,932 43,226,350 
 Taxes paid (net of refunds, if any) (11,635,963) (20,888,944)

 Net cash generated from opera�ng ac�vites  (A) 81,376,970 22,337,406

B Cash Flow From Inves�ng Ac�vi�es
 Purchase of fixed assets (77,129,828) (20,012,693)
 (including intangible assets under development) 
 Investment in subsidiary - (20,942,050)
 Interest income 857,696 98,228 

 Net cash (used in ) inves�ng ac�vi�es (B) (76,272,132) (40,856,515)

C Cash Flow From Financing Ac�vi�es
 Interest and finance charges (7,465,130) (8,705,731)
 Increase in long term borrowings (net) 4,225,139 6,644,901 
 Increase in short term borrowings (net) 19,060,568 17,483,445
 Net cash generated from financing ac�vi�es (C ) 15,820,578 15,422,614 
 Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 20,925,416 (3,096,495)
 Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of the year 1,168,035 4,264,530 
 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22,093,451 1,168,035 

 Net (decrease) as disclosed above 20,925,416 (3,096,495)

Sl.� Par�culars� � � For the year ended For the year ended
No.� � � � � March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Notes:    
1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.
2 Figures in bracket indicates cash ou�low.
3 Components of cash and cash equivalents (closing):

Balance with banks in current accounts 114,950 278,915 
Cheque in hand 21,042,001 -
in fixed deposits with a bank (original maturity less than 3 months) 936,500 889,120 

Total 22,093,451 1,168,035 

Par�culars� As at March 31,  � As at  31, March
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these standalone financial statements
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As at April 1, 2018 11,456,601 114,566,010
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31, 2019 11,456,601 114,566,010
Changes during the year - -   
Balance as at March 31, 2020 11,456,601 114,566,010 
Changes during the year - -

Balance as at March 31, 2021 11,456,601 114,566,010

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up Number of Amount 
 Shares� (Rs.)

  A�ributable to owners

� � Reserves and surplus

Other Equity� Securi�es premium �  Retained earnings Total 
� Rs. �  Rs. Rs.

Balance at April 01, 2018� 174,032,280� (34,470,304)� 139,561,976

Add: Profit for the year� -� 10,909,412� 10,909,412
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)� -� (656,664)� (656,664)
Less:Share issue expenses� 184,885� - � 184,885

Balance at March 31, 2019� 173,847,395 � (24,217,556)� 149,629,839

Add: Profit for the year� -� 41,686,319� 41,686,319
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)� -� (341,268)� (341,268)
Total comprehensive income for the year� -� 41,345,051� 41,345,051 

Balance as at March 31, 2020� 173,847,395� 17,127,495� 190,974,890

Add: Profit for the year� -� 56,680,662� 56,680,662
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)� -� 2,166,996� 2,166,996 
Total comprehensive income for the year� -� 58,847,658� 58,847,658
Transac�ons with owners of company

Balance as at March 31, 2021� 173,847,395� 75,975,153 � 249,822,548 

As per report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of�
For Tolia & Associates� Globalspace Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants�
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 111017W Sd/-� Sd/-
 Krishna Murari Singh � Beauty Singh�
Sd/-� Chairman & Managing Director� Director�
Kiran P. Tolia� DIN : 03160366� DIN : 03481024�
Proprietor� �
Membership Number: 043637� Sd/-� Sd/-
UDIN:21043637AAAAIG7075 Prodyut Bha�acharya� Swa� Arora
� Chief Financial Officer � Company Secretary
Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021 Mem. No. 55545 & Compliance Officer
  Mem. No. A44529
 Sd/-
 Amitabh Sinha
 CEO & Director
 DIN : 03480980



87

Notes to the Standalone Financial statements 

1 Corporate Informa�on: 

 Globalspace Technologies (the ‘Company’) was converted to a public limited company on November 14, 2016 and was 
incorporated as a private limited company in Mumbai, India on December 22, 2010 under the ‘Companies Act, 1956’. The 
Company’s business ac�vity is that of providing technology enabled business enhancement solu�ons . As part of its business 
ac�vi�es, the Company has formed a wholly owned subsidiary. The Company made an ini�al public offer (‘IPO’) in India in 
August, 2017 and its shares are listed on the BSE Limited.

2 Significant accoun�ng policies: 

 a Basis of accoun�ng and prepara�on of Financial Statements: 

  Compliance with Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS): 

  a) These Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements (“Financial Statements”) of the Company, have been prepared in 
accordance with the recogni�on and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accoun�ng Standards (“Ind AS”) 
as no�fied under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian 
Accoun�ng Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accoun�ng principles 
generally accepted in India. These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of 
Directors on June 29, 2021.

  Func�onal and Presenta�on Currency: 

   These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the func�onal currency of the Company. All 
financial informa�on presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest rupee, except otherwise 
indicated.

  Basis of measurement:

   These Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost conven�on unless otherwise indicated.

  b Revenue Recogni�on: 

   Revenue is measured at the fair value of the considera�on received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue 
are and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes and Goods and Service Tax.

   Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and 
the revenue can be reliably measured.

   i)  Sale of goods: Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue is 
measured net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates. The �ming of the transfer of risks and rewards 
varies depending on the individual terms of the sales contract.

   ii) Rendering of services : In contracts involving rendering of services, revenue is recognised in profit or loss in 
the propor�on of the stage of comple�on of the transac�on at the repor�ng date and are measured net of 
sales tax, works contract tax, service tax and Goods and Service Tax.

   iii) Interest income

    Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the EIR method or propor�onate basis. The 
effec�ve interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts es�mated future cash receipts through the expected 
life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While calcula�ng the effec�ve 
interest rate, the Company es�mated the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the 
financial instrument (for example prepayment, extension, call and similar op�ons but does not consider the 
expected credit losses).

 c Property, Plant and Equipment, Deprecia�on and Impairment: 

  i) Property, Plant and Equipment:

   Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost / deemed cost, less accumulated deprecia�on and 
impairment losses, if any. Cost of Property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import 
du�es and non-refundable purchase taxes, a�er deduc�ng trade discounts and rebates, any directly a�ributable 
cost of bringing the asset to its working condi�on for its intended use and es�mated a�ributable costs of 
dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located.
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   Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate 
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss during the repor�ng period in which they are incurred.

   Gains or losses arising from derecogni�on of plant, property and equipment are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

    An asset’s carrying amount is wri�en down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 
is greater than its es�mated recoverable amount. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

    Deprecia�on on addi�ons / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / up to the date on which asset 
isready for use / disposed of

    The Company has elected to use the exemp�on available under Ind AS 101 to con�nue the carrying value for all of 
its Property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transi�on to Ind AS, 
measured as per the previous GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as at the date of transi�on (April 01, 2018).

  ii) Deprecia�on:

   Deprecia�on on Property, Plant and Equipment has been provided on wri�en down value basis and manner 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. 

  iii) Intangible Assets:

    Intangible Assets are stated at acquisi�on cost, net of accumulated amor�za�on and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amor�sed on wri�en down value basis over a period of five years.

   The Company has elected to con�nue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets as recognised in the 
standalone financial statements as at the date of transi�on to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use 
that as the deemed cost as at the transi�on date pursuant to the exemp�on under Ind AS 101.

  iv) Intangible assets under development:

   Expenditure incurred for intangible assets during development stage  are included under intangible assets under 
development and later  allocated to the respec�ve intangible asset on comple�on of the development stage.

 d Impairment of Assets:

  i) Financial assets:

   In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) model for measurement and 
recogni�on of impairment loss on the financial assets measured at amor�sed cost and debt instruments 
measured at FVOCI. Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the ‘simplified approach’ at an 
amount equal to the life�me ECL at each repor�ng date. In respect of other financial assets, the loss allowance is 
measured at 12 month ECL only if there is no significant deteriora�on in the credit risk since ini�al recogni�on of 
the asset or asset is determined to have a low credit risk at the repor�ng date. The amount of ECLs (or reversal) 
that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the repor�ng date to the amount that is required to be recognized is 
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in Statement of Profit and Loss.

  ii) Non-financial assets:

    The carrying values of assets / cash genera�ng units at each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for impairment if 
any indica�on of impairment exists.

   An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For 
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
iden�fiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets 
(cash genera�ng units). The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 e Investment in subsidiary: 

  Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost in the separate financial statements. Investment carried at cost is tested for 
impairment as per IND AS 36.
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 f Inventories: 

  Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present loca�on and condi�on. Cost is determined on a FIFO basis.

  Costs of purchased inventory are determined a�er deduc�ng rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the 
es�mated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less es�mated costs of comple�on and es�mated costs 
necessary to make the sale.

  Net realizable value is the es�mated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less es�mated costs of comple�on 
and es�mated costs necessary to make the sale.

 g Employee Benefits: 

  i) Short-term obliga�ons

   Liabili�es for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be se�led wholly within 
12 months a�er the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect 
of employees services up to the end of the repor�ng period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabili�es are se�led. The liabili�es are presented as current employee benefit obliga�ons in the 
Balance Sheet.

  ii) Other long-term employee benefit obliga�ons

    The liabili�es for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be se�led wholly within 12 months a�er the end 
of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present 
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the 
repor�ng period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at 
the end of the repor�ng period that have terms approxima�ng to the terms of the related obliga�on. 
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assump�ons are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The obliga�ons are presented as current liabili�es in the Balance Sheet if the 
Company does not have an uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement for at least twelve months a�er the repor�ng 
period, regardless of when the actual se�lement is expected to occur.

  iii) Post-employment obliga�ons

   The  Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

   (a)  defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and

   (b)  defined contribu�on plans such as provident fund. 

   Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity obliga�ons

   The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present 
value of the defined benefit obliga�on at the end of the repor�ng period less the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefit obliga�on is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. 

   The present value of the defined benefit obliga�on is determined by discoun�ng the es�mated future cash 
ou�lows by reference to market yields at the end of the repor�ng period on government bonds that have terms 
approxima�ng to the terms of the related obliga�on.

   The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obliga�on and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee Benefit expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assump�ons are recognised in the year in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income they are 
included in retained earnings in the Statement of changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet.

   Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on resul�ng from plan amendments or curtailments 
are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost.

    Defined contribu�on plan

   The Company pays provident fund and ESIC contribu�ons to publicly administered provident funds / ESIC as per 
local regula�ons. The Company has no further payment obliga�ons once The contribu�ons have been paid. The 
contribu�ons are accounted for as Defined contribu�on Plans and The contribu�ons are recognised as employee 
Benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contribu�ons are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash 
refund or a reduc�on in the future payments is available.
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 h Leases (where the Company is a lessee): 

  At the incep�on of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At the 
incep�on or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, the Company separates payments and other 
considera�on required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of 
their rela�ve fair values.

  Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, in which a significant por�on of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as opera�ng leases. Payments made 
under opera�ng leases (net of any incen�ves received from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
as per the terms of the lease or on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to 
increase in line with expected general infla�on to compensate for the lessor’s expected infla�onary cost increases.

 i Borrowings: 

  Borrowings are ini�ally recognised at fair value, net of transac�on costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amor�sed cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transac�on costs) and the redemp�on 
amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effec�ve interest 
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facili�es are recognised as transac�on costs of the loan to the extent 
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred un�l the draw down 
occurs.

  Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obliga�on specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled 
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been ex�nguished or transferred 
to another party and the considera�on paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabili�es assumed, is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  Borrowings are classified as current liabili�es unless the Company has an uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement of the 
liability for at least 12 months a�er the repor�ng period.

 j Borrowing Costs: 

  Borrowing costs consist of interest and transac�ons costs incurred in connec�on with the borrowing of funds. 
Borrowing costs may include exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

  Borrowing costs that are a�ributable to the acquisi�on or construc�on of qualifying assets (i.e. an asset that 
necessarily takes a substan�al period of �me to get ready for its intended use) are capitalized as a part of the cost of such 
assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 k Foreign Currency Transac�ons / Transla�ons: 

  Transac�ons and balances

  Foreign currency transac�ons are translated into the func�onal currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 
transac�ons. Foreign exchange gains and losses resul�ng from the se�lement of such transac�ons and from the 
transla�on of monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are 
generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as either profit or loss. A monetary item for which se�lement is 
neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of the en�ty’s net investment in that 
foreign opera�on.

  Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other income 
and expenses accordingly.

  Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value was determined. Transla�on differences on assets and liabili�es carried at fair value are 
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. For example, transla�on differences on 
nonmonetary assets and liabili�es such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are included in net 
profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and transla�on differences on non-
monetary assets such as equity investments classified as Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”) 
are recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI”).

 l Taxes on Income: 

  Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the 
extent that it relates items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

  The income tax expense or credit for the period is tax payable on the current year’s taxable income based on the 



applicable income tax rate adjusted by change in deferred tax assets and liabili�es a�ributable to temporary differences 
and to unused tax losses. 

  The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substan�vely enacted at the 
repor�ng date. Current tax comprises of expected tax payable or receivable on taxable income/loss for the year or any 
adjustment or receivable in respect of previous year. Management periodically evaluates posi�on taken in tax returns 
with respect to situa�ons in which applicable tax regula�on is subject to interpreta�on. It establishes provisions where 
appropriate on the basis of amount expected to be paid to the tax authori�es.

  Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the Balance Sheet method, on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabili�es and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabili�es 
are not recognised if they arise from the ini�al recogni�on of goodwill. Deferred income tax is determined using tax 
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substan�ally enacted by the end of the repor�ng date and are expected to 
apply to the Company when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is 
se�led.

  Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deduc�ble temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits 
(Minimum alternate tax credit en�tlement) only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to u�lise 
those temporary differences, unused losses and unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets – unrecognised or recognised, 
are reviewed at each repor�ng date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable or no longer probable 
respec�vely that the related tax benefit will be realized.

  Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabili�es and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxa�on authority. Current tax assets and tax liabili�es 
are offset where the en�ty has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to se�le on a net basis, or to realise 
the asset and se�le the liability simultaneously.

 m Earnings Per Share

  (i)  Basic earnings per share - Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:- the profit a�ributable to owners of 
the Company;- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted 
for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

  (ii)  Diluted earnings per share - Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing:- the net profit or loss a�er tax for 
the year a�ributable to owners of the Company , and- the weighted average number of shares outstanding during 
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilu�ve poten�al equity shares.

 n Provisions: 

  Provisions are recognized when there is a present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and a 
reliable es�mate can be made of the amount of the obliga�on. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and 
are determined based on best es�mate required to se�le the obliga�on at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best es�mates.

 o Con�ngent Liabili�es: 

  A con�ngent liability is a possible obliga�on that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present 
obliga�on that is not recognized because it is not probable that an ou�low of resources will be required to se�le the 
obliga�on. A con�ngent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a con�ngent liability but discloses its 
existence in the financial statements.

 p Cash and cash equivalents: 

  Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet include cash on hand, cheques on hand, deposits held at call with 
financial ins�tu�ons, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturi�es of three months or less that 
are readily conver�ble to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

  For the purpose of presenta�on in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
deposits held at call with financial ins�tu�ons, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturi�es of 
three months or less that are readily conver�ble to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value and overdrawn bank balances.
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  Cash Flows

  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transac�ons of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future opera�ng cash receipts or payments and 
item of income or expenses associated with inves�ng or financing cash flows. The cash flows from opera�ng, inves�ng 
and financing ac�vi�es are segregated.

 q Financial instruments: 

  a. Financial Liabili�es

   Ini�al recogni�on and measurement: 

   Financial liabili�es are ini�ally recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. Financial liability is ini�ally measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit 
and loss, transac�on costs that are directly a�ributable to its acquisi�on or issue.

   Subsequent measurement: 

   Financial liabili�es are subsequently carried at fair value through profit and loss. For trade payables and other 
liabili�es maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 
to the short maturity of these instruments.

   Derecogni�on 

   A financial liability is derecognised when the obliga�on under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an exis�ng financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substan�ally different terms, 
or the terms of an exis�ng liability are substan�ally modified, such an exchange or modifica�on is treated as the 
de-recogni�on of the original liability and the recogni�on of a new liability. The difference in the respec�ve 
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.  

  b. Financial Assets

   Ini�al recogni�on and measurement 

   Trade Receivables are ini�ally recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets are ini�ally 
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial 
assets other than those measured subsequently at fair value through profit and loss, are recognised ini�ally at fair 
value plus transac�on costs that are a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the financial asset.

   Classifica�on and subsequent measurement 

   Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classifica�on of the respec�ve financial assets. 
Based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteris�cs of the 
financial asset, the Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amor�sed cost, fair value 
through OCI or fair value through profit and loss.

   i) Financial assets amor�sed at cost

    A financial asset is subsequently measured at amor�sed cost if it is held with in a business model whose 
objec�ve is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely consis�ng payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

   ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

    A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held 
within a business model whose objec�ve is achieved by both collec�ng contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

   iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

    A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through 
profit or loss.
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   Equity investments 

   All equity investments within the scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Such equity instruments which 
are held for trading are classified as FVTPL. For all other such equity instruments, the Company decides to classify 
the same either as FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such elec�on on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classifica�on is made on ini�al recogni�on and is irrevocable. 

   For equity instruments classified as FVOCI, all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are 
recognized in OCI. Dividends on such equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

   Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends on such equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss.

   Derecogni�on 

   A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Company has 
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obliga�on to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:- the Company 
has transferred substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, or- the Company has neither transferred nor 
retained substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.On de-
recogni�on, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments measured at FVOCI) and 
equity instruments (measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses in 
respect of debt instruments measured at FVOCI and that are accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss 
on de-recogni�on. Gains or losses on equity instruments measured at FVOCI that are recognised and 
accumulated in OCI are not reclassified to profit or loss on de-recogni�on.

 r Current–non-current classifica�on: 

  All assets and liabili�es are classified into current and non-current.

  Assets

  An asset is classified as current when it sa�sfies any of the following criteria:

  a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consump�on in, the company’s normal opera�ng cycle;

  b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trade;

  c) it is expected to be realised on demand or within 12 months a�er the repor�ng date; or

  d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to se�le a liability for at least 12 
months a�er the repor�ng date.

   Current assets include the current por�on of non-current financial assets. 

   All other assets are classified as non-current.

  Liabili�es

  A liability is classified as current when it sa�sfies any of the following criteria:

  a) it is expected to be se�led in the company’s normal opera�ng cycle;

  b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trade;

  c) it is due to be se�led in demand or within 12 months a�er the repor�ng date; or

  d) there is no uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement of the liability for at least 12 months a�er the repor�ng date. 
Terms of a liability that could, at the op�on of the counterparty, result in its se�lement by the issue of equity 
instruments do not affect its classifica�on.

   Current liabili�es include current por�on of non-current financial liabili�es. 

   All other liabili�es are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are classified as non-current 
assets and liabili�es.

 s Opera�ng cycle: 

  Based on the nature of products / ac�vi�es of the Company and the normal �me between acquisi�on of assets and 
their realisa�on in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its opera�ng cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of classifica�on of its assets and liabili�es as current and non-current.
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Cost�  Building � Furniture and � Office � Vehicles �  Computer�  Total 
� � fixtures �  equipments �  �  systems 

As at  April 1, 2018� 20,480,000� 1,077,091� 1,633,768� -� 2,810,520� 26,001,379

Addi�ons�  1,161,146� 294,839� 11,257,913� 81,279� 12,795,178 

As at  March 31, 2019� 20,480,000� 2,238,237� 1,928,607� 11,257,913� 2,891,799� 38,796,557 

Addi�ons� � 431,360� -� -� -� 431,360 

As at  March 31, 2020� 20,480,000� 2,238,237� 2,359,967� 11,257,913� 2,891,799 � 39,227,917 

Addi�ons� � -� 971,205� -� 40,821,373� 41,792,578

As at March 31, 2021� 20,480,000� 2,238,237� 3,331,172� 11,257,913� 43,713,172� 81,020,495 

Note 3 :    Property, Plant and Equipment Rs.

Cost�  Building � Furniture and � Office � Vehicles �  Computer�  Total 
� � fixtures �  equipments �  �  systems 

As at  April 1, 2018� 1,366,268� 630,088� 1,620,666� -� 2,779,910� 6,396,932 

Deprecia�on charge for the year� 997,376� 510,980� 105,106� 943,878� 60,586� 2,617,926

As at  March 31, 2019� 2,363,644� 1,141,068� 1,725,772� 943,878� 2,840,496� 9,014,858

Deprecia�on charge for the year� 997,376 � 579,480 � 274,863� 1,225,306 � 49,503 � 3,126,528

As at March 31, 2020� 3,361,020 � 1,720,548 � 2,000,635� 2,169,184� 2,889,999� 12,141,386

Deprecia�on charge for the year� 833,694� 517,689� 448,040� 1,079,741� 6,933,958� 9,813,123

As at March 31, 2021� 4,194,714� 2,238,237 � 2,448,675 � 3,248,925� 9,823,957� 21,954,509

Cost�  Building � Furniture and � Office � Vehicles �  Computer�  Total 
� � fixtures �  equipments     systems 

As at March 31, 2018 19,113,732 447,003 13,102 -  30,610 19,604,447 

As at March 31, 2019 18,116,356 1,097,169 202,835  10,314,035 51,303 29,781,698 

As at  March 31, 2020 17,118,980  517,689  359,333  9,088,729 1,800 27,086,531 

As at March 31, 2021 16,285,286  0 882,498  8,008,988 33,889,215 59,065,985 

Note 4 :      Intangible Assets

Cost      So�ware 

As at April 1, 2018 135,913,967 

Addi�ons 12,968,661 

As at  March 31, 2019 148,880,828 

Addi�ons -   

As at  March 31, 2020 148,880,828 

Addi�ons 45,060,000 

As at  March 31, 2021 193,940,828 

Rs.

Amor�sa�on So�ware 

As at April 1, 2018� 57,337,634 

Amor�sa�on for the year� 33,772,242 

As at March 31, 2019� 91,109,876 

Amor�sa�on for the year� 11,554,191 

As at  March 31, 2020� 102,664,067 

Amor�sa�on for the year� 9,296,810 

As at 31st March 2021� 111,960,877 

Rs.

Net book value�  So�ware 

As at March 31, 2018� 78,576,333 

As at March 31, 2019� 57,770,953 

As at 31st March 2020� 46,216,762 

As at 31st March 2021� 81,979,952 

Rs.
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          Rs.

As at March 31, 2021� 9,858,584 � � � �
As at March 31, 2020� 19,581,333 � � � �
As at March 31, 2019� -� � � �
As at March 31, 2018� -

5. Intangible assets under development:     

 Intangible assets under development comprises of so�ware projects under development 

Non trade, unquoted
Equity instruments (fully paid up)
In a subsidiary company
79,990 (March 31, 2020-  79,990   March 31, 2019 - 9,000) 
equity shares of Rs.10 each of Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons 
Private Limited 21,032,050 21,032,050 90,000 

Total 21,032,050 21,032,050 90,000 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

6. Investment in a subsidiary

Aggregate value of quoted investments - - -

Aggregate market value of quoted investments  - - 

Aggregate value of unquoted investments 21,032,050 21,032,050 90,000 

Aggregate provision for impairment in the value of investments  - -  

7. Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables - 32,676,384 62,757,384

Total   - 32,676,384 62,757,384 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Note: 

Trade receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk - - - 

Trade receivables - credit impaired - -  -      

Note:   

a First pari passu charge by way of hypotheca�on or indenture of mortgage and /or  hypotheca�on of servers, Pcs, tablets or 
any such Items lying in the premises, in transit or elsewhere,  book debts and other receivables.

b Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. 

8. Other non-current financial assets

Unsecured, considered good   

Equity commitment in an LLP                                     105,042,579  - - 

Sundry deposits 906,480 951,480 1,201,480 

Fixed deposit with a bank (original maturity more than 12 months) - - 3,209,429 

Total 105,949,059 951,480 4,410,909 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)
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9. Other non-current assets

Unsecured, considered good   

Deposit with statutory authori�es under protest 2,678,258 2,678,258 2,678,258 

Total                                          2,678,258 2,678,258 2,678,258 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

10. Inventories

Stock-in-trade (traded goods) 52,158,972 67,699,907 5,785,823 

Total 52,158,972 67,699,907 5,785,823 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

11. Trade Receivables

Unsecured, considered good   

Trade receivables                                     110,485,166 100,184,346 142,557,870

Total 110,485,166 100,184,346 142,557,870                                   

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Note:

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - - -   

Trade receivables - credit impaired 1,505,771 1,253,344 1,239,349 

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doub�ul debts)* 1,505,771 1,253,344 1,239,349 

* The provision for the impairment of trade receivables has been made  on the basis of the expected credit loss method.

Note:

a Trade receivable are receivable in normal opera�ng cycle and are shown net of an allowance for doub�ul debts, if any.

b First pari passu charge by way of hypotheca�on or indenture of mortgage and /or  hypotheca�on of servers, Pcs, tablets or 
any such Items lying in the premises, in transit or elsewhere,  book debts and other receivables.

c Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. 

12 Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks 

in current accounts 114,950 278,915 3,416,270 

Cheque in hand 21,042,000 - -

in fixed deposits with a bank (original maturity less than 3 months) 936,500 889,120 848,260 

Total 22,093,450 1,168,035 4,264,530 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

13 Loans

Unsecured ,considered good

Loan to a related party (Subsidiary) 7,929,679 7,397,737 -   

Loans and advances to employees 231,991 994,339 978,236 

Total 8,161,670 8,392,076 978,236 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

96



14. Other current financial assets

Unsecured, considered good   

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 470 - 12,857

Total 470 - 12,857 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

15 Income Tax and Deferred Tax

 Current tax assets (net)

Advance tax and tax deducted at source 13,220,187 13,409,381 5,837,437 
(net of provision for tax)

Total 13,220,187 13,409,381 5,837,437 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Reconcilia�on of tax expense and the accoun�ng profit mul�plied by India’s domes�c tax rate for year ended March 31, 2021 
and  March 31, 2020:

Accoun�ng profit before tax 56,680,662 55,303,977 

At India’s statutory income tax rate of 28.60% 16,210,669 13,920,011 

(March 31, 2020  25.17%)

Adjustment for tax purposes:

Difference in Book deprecia�on and deprecia�on as per Income 17,299,974 (53,700)

Tax Act, 1961

Others (4,560,607) (235,872)

At the effec�ve income tax rate of 24.63% (March 31, 2019: 4.15%) 12,739,367 13,630,439 

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 11,531,068 13,317,000 

Tax adjustment for earlier years 294,088 -   

Deferred tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 3,060,442 300,658 

Total 14,885,598  13,617,658 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

Deferred tax expense/(income) relates to the following:

Deferred tax liability on account of:
- Difference in WDV between book and income tax records (A) 4,947,793 347,166 363,383

- Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be reclassified to 
 profit or loss 868,012 - -

-   Deferred tax liability (A)  5,815,805 347,166 363,383

Deferred tax (asset) on account of:

- Employee benefits/gratuity 1,304,334 235,853 (81,022)

Deferred tax (asset)  (B) 1,304,334 235,853 (81,022)

Net deferred tax liability (A) - (B) 4,511,471 583,019 282,361

Opening balance 583,019 282,361 4,022,192

Deferred tax expenses  for the year 3,060,442 300,658 (3,739,831)

Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss 868,012 - -

Balance as at the close of the year 4,511,471 583,019 282,361 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)
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16.    Other current assets

Prepaid expenses 10,784 54,456 274,019 

Advance to suppliers 24,669,879 77,673,728 58,495,164 

Less : ECL provision 2,540,998 - -

  22,128,881  77,673,728 58,495,164 

Balance with revenue authori�es 2,450,504 4,971,659 -   

TDS amount receivable from NBFC's  737,193 583,704 484,580 

Total 25,327,363 83,283,547 59,253,763 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

17. Equity share capital Authorised share capital

As at April 1, 2018  12,000,000 120,000,000

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2019  12,000,000 120,000,000 

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2020  12,000,000 120,000,000

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2021 12,000,000 120,000,000 

Par�culars Number of  Amount
 Shares Rs.

Terms / rights a�ached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is en�tled to one vote per equity 
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring Annual 
General Mee�ng, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquida�on on the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible 
to receive remaining assets of the Company, a�er distribu�on of all preferen�al amounts, in propor�on to their shareholding.

As at April 1, 2018  11,456,601 114,566,010 

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2019  11,456,601 114,566,010  

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2020  11,456,601 114,566,010 

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2021 11,456,601 114,566,010  

Par�culars Number of  Amount
 Shares Rs.

Issued equity capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 No. of Shared held % of holding No. of Shared held % of holding No. of Shared held % of holding

Shareholders holding more than 5% of the paid up equity share capital of the Company: Rs.

Name of the shareholders 
Krishna Murari Singh 3,929,666  34.30% 3,929,666 34.30% 3,929,666 34.30%

Dhiraj Kumar Sharma 1,202,825 10.50% 1,202,825 10.50% 1,202,825 10.50%

Sidhhartha Xavier 1,202,825 10.50% 1,202,825 10.50% 1,202,825 10.50%
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Reconcilia�on of the number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor�ng year:

As at April 1, 2018 11,456,601 114,566,010

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2019  11,456,601 114,566,010

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2020  11,456,601 114,566,010

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2021 11,456,601 114,566,010 

Par�culars Number of  Amount
 Shares Rs.

Par�culars Bonus Shares issued for  Shares
 Shares considera�on bought 
  other than cash back

2020-21 - - -

2019-20 - - -

2018-19 - - -

2017-18 6,984,280 - -

2016-17 - 7,6000 -

Aggregate number of bonus shares, shares issued for considera�on other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five 
years immediately preceding the repor�ng date:

Securi�es premium reserve 18.1 173,847,395 173,847,395 173,847,395

Retained earnings 18.2 75,975,153 17,127,495 (24,217,556)

  249,822,548 190,974,890 149,629,839

Par�culars� Notes� As at March 31,  � As at March�31, � As at March 31, 
� � 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

18. Other equity

18.1 Securi�es Premium Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 173,847,395  173,847,395 174,032,280 

Less:Share issue expenses  - 184,885 

  173,847,395 173,847,395 173,847,395 

Balance at the end of the year 173,847,395 173,847,395 173,847,395 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March 31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)
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18.2 Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 17,127,495 (24,217,556) (34,470,304)

Add:Profit for the year 56,680,662 41,686,319  10,909,412

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :

- Remeasurement of defined benefit obliga�on  3,035,008 (341,268) (656,664)    

- Income tax rela�ng to above (868,012) - -

Balance at the end of the year 75,975,153 17,127,495 (24,217,556)

Total 249,822,548 190,974,890  149,629,839 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Note:

Nature of reserves

a) Securi�es premium reserve

 Securi�es premium account comprises of premium on issue of shares. The reserve is u�lised in accordance with the specific 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Retained earnings

 Retained earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribu�on to shareholders.

19. Long term borrowings

Secured

Term loan from a bank: 21,228,354 13,806,000 15,381,000 

Less: Current maturity of long term debt (Refer Note 19.1.1) 2,400,000 2,150,000 1,425,000

  18,828,354 11,656,000 13,956,000

Unsecured 
From others:

From Non Banking Finance Companies - Term loans 
(Refer Note 19.1.2) 11,968,425 19,414,000 11,337,033 

Less: Current maturi�es of long term debt 3,603,481 9,444,312 1,335,359 

  8,364,944 9,969,688 10,001,674

From banks-term loans  (Refer Note 19.1.3) 6,013,572 10,380,696 10,237,761

Less: Current maturi�es of long term debt 3,027,475 2,927,621 3,493,785

  2,986,097 7,453,075 6,743,977

Unsecured
From a Director  2,000,000 - -

Inter Corporate Deposit (Both interest free and  1,124,507 - -

repayable on demand) 

  3,124,507 - -

Total 33,303,902 29,078,763 30,701,651 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)
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19.1 Details of long term borrowings:

� Par�culars� Security� Monthly instalment - Rs.� Rate of � Tenure 
� � � � interest %� (months)

19.1.1� Axis Bank Limited� Office premises located at �  75,000 for first 17 months, � 9.10*� 84 
� � unit No 605, Rupa Solitaire, � 1,50,000 for next 12 months, 
� � Millenium Business Park, � 2,00,000 for next 37 months, 
� � Mahape,� 3,00,000 for next  17 months and 
� � Navi Mumbai 400 710.� 7,06,000 for  the last month � �

19.1.2� ICICI Bank Limited� Underlying vehicle� 159,234� 8.31� 60 

19.1.3� ICICI Bank Limited� Underlying vehicle � 24,805� 8.50� 60 

19.2� Bajaj Finserv Limited� Unsecured� No monthly instalment � 9.5% upto 
� � � � March 2018 
� � � � and 9.75% 
� � � � from 
� � � � April-2018� 240 

� Shriram City Union 
 Finance Limited� Unsecured�  156347 for first 12 months, � 19.51 � 36
� � � 108548  for next 12 months and � (Fixed)�  
� � � 54274 for last 12 months�

� Clix Capital Services 
 Pvt Limited� Unsecured� 162,953� 16.00� 36 

� Edelweiss Retail 
 Finance Limited � Unsecured� 74,558 � 17.00� 60 

� IDFC First Bank Limited� Unsecured� 199,770 � 16.00� 24 

20. Long term provisions:

Provision for employee benefits

For gratuity (unfunded) 1,164,250 2,812,478 2,929,556

For compensated absences (unfunded) 285,115 1,070,038 1,228,797 

Total 1,449,365 3,882,516 4,158,353

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

21 Short term borrowings:

Secured (Refer Notes 21.1.1-21.1.3)

Repayable on demand from a bank:

Cash credit 43,913,807 24,853,239 7,369,794

Total 43,913,807 24,853,239 7,369,794

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

21.1 Details of secured loans:

21.1.1 Primary security: Hypotheca�on of servers, Pcs, tablets or any such Items lying in the premises, in transit or elsewhere,  
book debts and other receivables.

21.1.2 Collateral security:  Office premises located at unit No 605, Rupa Solitaire, Millenium Business Park, Mahape, Navi Mumbai 
400 710 and also personal guarantee of directors viz. Krishna Murari Singh and Beauty Singh and Amitabh Sinha jointly 
aggrega�ng to Rs.5,00,00,000 ( March 31, 2020 Rs. 5,00,00,000 and March 31, 2019  Rs.5,00,00,000).

21.1.3 Aprrox. rate of interest -9.10% per annum (March 31, 2020  8.75% per annum and March 31, 2019  9.65% per annum).
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22. Trade payables

Total Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
(Refer Note 22.1) 

Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 
small enterprises  8,978,917 7,132,471 15,460,311

Total 8,978,917 7,132,471 15,460,311

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

22.1 Disclosure under the Micro ,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 :

 Amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises are disclosed on the basis of and to the extent of informa�on available with the 
Company regarding status of the suppliers, which are as follows :

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

1 The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 
 unpaid to any supplier at the end of the accoun�ng year; - - -

2 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of 
 sec�on 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
 Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the 
 payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 
 day during each accoun�ng year; - - -

3 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
 delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond 
 the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
 interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 
 Enterprises Development Act, 2006; - - -

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
 end of each accoun�ng year; - - -

5 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
 even in the succeeding years, un�l such date when the 
 interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, 
 for the purpose of disallowance of a deduc�ble expenditure 
 under sec�on 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
 Development Act, 2006. - - -

23 Other  current  financial  liabili�es

Current maturi�es of long term debt 9,030,956 14,521,932 6,254,143

Interest accrued but not due - 325,827 330,393

Total 9,030,956 14,847,759 6,584,536

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

24 Other  current  liabili�es

Advances from customers 8,453,755 314,507 118,817

Statutory dues 37,952,435 38,024,892 47,201,409

Total 46,406,190 38,339,399 47,320,226

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)



26. Revenue from opera�ons

Sale of:

Products (including accessories) 76,053,477 121,735,566

So�ware 22,675,000 -  

Professional fees 141,967,248 87,300,000 

Services - AMC 9,600,000 40,053,132 

Total 250,295,725 249,088,698 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

27. Other Income

Interest                                858,166                                  85,371

Total                               858,166                                  85,371 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

28. Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Closing inventory

Stock-in-trade (traded goods)                         52,158,972                         67,699,907

Opening inventory

Stock-in-trade (traded goods)                         67,699,907 5,785,823 

Total                         15,540,935 (61,914,084)

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

29. Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries and bonus                           5,956,473                            6,856,656

Contribu�on to provident and other funds                               663,476                            2,171,499 

Gratuity                               399,783                             (105,985)

Employees welfare                                   36,156                            1,501,967 

Total                           7,055,888                         10,424,137 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020
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25 Short term provisions

Provision for employee benefits

For gratuity - unfunded 15,822 58,865 47,772

For compensated absences-unfunded 12,178 43,159 58,865

Total 28,000 102,024 106,637

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)



31 Deprecia�on & amor�sa�on expense

Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment                          9,813,123                            3,126,530 

Amor�sa�on of an intangible asset                           9,296,810                         11,554,191 

Total                         19,109,933                         14,680,721 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

32. Other Expenses

Rent  -                              929,800 

Payments to auditor as: 

a. auditors                               225,000                               225,000 

Miscellaneous expenses                            1,754,685                            5,188,720 

Communica�on expenses                               747,457                               765,291 

Legal fees                                79,864                               118,500 

Insurance                               231,960                               348,089 

Conveyance and travelling                               633,759                            2,705,064 

Repairs and maintenance-Others                                 13,363                               220,885 

Business promo�on                         10,475,577                         12,721,515 

Commission                                          -                                 500,000 

Professional fees                           4,540,147                         13,264,102 

Provision for expected credit loss                           4,032,774                                  13,995 

Directors si�ng fees                               920,000                               400,000 

Total                         23,654,585                         37,400,961 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020
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30. Finance costs

Interest expense on:

Borrowings:

Term loans                            904,160                               983,874 

Working capital                        4,037,579                            3,931,693    

Vehicle Loans                               441,703                               582,533    

Other unsecured loans                           1,286,164                            2,589,654 

Other borrowing costs

Processing charge 738,252                               451,924  
Bank charges                                 57,272                               161,487 

Total                           7,465,130                            8,701,165 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020



33 Earnings per share (EPS) 

Profit for the year                         56,680,662                         41,686,319 

Amount available for equity share holders                         56,680,662                         41,686,319 

Weighted average number of equity shares (nos.)                         11,456,601                         11,456,601 

Basic EPS                                      4.95                                      3.64 

Diluted EPS                                      4.95                                      3.64 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

34 Related party disclosures:

34.1 The following table provides the list of related par�es and material transac�ons that have been entered into with related 
par�es for the relevant financial years

Sl. No Name of the related party Rela�onship

1 Krishna Murari Singh- Chairman and Managing Director Key Management Personnel (KMP's) 

2 Nirani Venkitakrishnan Kailasam (Director)  represented on the Board

3 Beauty Krishnamurari Singh (Director)

4 Swa� Arora Key Management Personnel (KMP's)

5 Amitabh Sinha

6 Prodyut Bha�acharya (CFO) 

7 Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private Limited 
 (from January 9, 2019) Subsidiary with 79.99 % holding

8 Miljon Medi App LLP  En�ty in which a KMP is interested 
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34.2 Transac�ons with related par�es (excluding re-imbursements, if any):

1 Capital transac�ons
 Equity commitment in an LLP
 Miljon Medi App LLP  72,366,195  -

 Unsecured loans given
 Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private Limited  4,028,706 37,325,722

 Unsecured loans repaid
 Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private Limited 3,496,765 29,927,986 

 Unsecured loans taken 
 Krishna Murari Singh 2,000,000

 Equity shares allo�ed
 Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private Limited  -  20,942,050

 Security Deposit repaid 
 Beauty Krishnamurari Singh - 200,000  

2 Revenue transac�ons
 Expenses
 Si�ng Fees-Beauty Krishnamurari Singh 240,000 80,000 
 Rent Paid- Beauty Krishnamurari Singh  -

 Salary/fees to KMP's* 
 Krishna Murari Singh 4,800,000 4,800,000 
 Nirani Venkitakrishnan Kailasam  - 85,000 
 Prodyut Bha�acharya  325,074 375,000 
 Swa� Arora 353,716 420,000 
 Amitabh Sinha 1,862,340 -   

 Sales
 Miljon Medi App LLP (excluding GST) 22,675,000 1,050,000 

 Purchases
 Miljon Medi App LLP (excluding GST) 17,500,000 -   

 Sales return
 Miljon Medi App LLP (excluding GST) - 15,000,000 

Sl Par�culars For the Year For the Year
No. Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

(*excluding incremental liability for gratuity as employee wise breakup of such liability based on estimation is not ascertainable)
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34.3 Amounts outstanding for related par�es:

  Assets
1 Non current financial assets
 Equity commitment in an LLP
 Miljon Medi App LLP  105,042,579 - -

2 Loans 
 Subsidiary 
 Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private Limited 7,929,677 7,937,736 -

3 Trade Receivables
 Miljon Medi App LLP  - 32,676,384 59,757,384 

 Equity and liabili�es
1 Unsecured Loans    
 Krishna Murari Singh  2,000,000 - 156,428

2 Current Liabili�es
 Krishna Murari Singh  1,860,000 - - 
 Amitabh Sinha 121,268 - -

Sl. No. Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Notes:

(a) Related party rela�onships are as iden�fied by the Company on the basis of informa�on available and relied upon by the 
auditors.

(b) No amount has been wri�en off or wri�en back in respect of debts due from or to related par�es.

35 Employee benefit obliga�ons

i Defined Contribu�on Plans

 Provident Fund: Contribu�on towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authori�es, where the Company 
has no further obliga�ons. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribu�on Schemes as the Company does not carry any 
further obliga�ons, apart from the contribu�ons made on a monthly basis.

Contribu�on to Defined Contribu�on Plans, recognized as expense for the year as under:

Employer's Contribu�on to Provident Fund 663,476 2,171,499

Total                           663,476              2,171,499 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

ii) Defined Benefits Plans

 Gratuity: 

 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees in accordance with 
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at re�rement, death, 
incapacita�on or termina�on of employment, of an amount based on the respec�ve employee’s salary and the tenure of 
employment. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each 
year. The fair value of the plan assets of the trust administered by the Company, is deducted from the gross obliga�on.

 The following table sets forth the status of the gratuity plan of the Company, and the amounts recognized in the Balance sheet 
and Statement of profit and loss.

 Funding :

 The liability for gratuity is not funded by the Company.
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Reconcilia�on of the net defined benefit obliga�on:

Opening defined benefit obliga�on 2,871,343                2,977,328 

Benefits paid from the fund - -

Benefit paid directly by the employer - -

Current service cost 207,690 614,505

Interest cost 192,093 227,170

Past service cost - -

Liability transfererd out - (606,393)

Actuarial losses / (gain) recognized in other comprehensive income - -

changes in demographic assump�ons - -

changes in financial assump�ons (23,550) 396,527

experience adjustments (2,067,504) (737,794)

Liabili�es assumed / (se�led) - - 

Closing defined benefit obliga�on 1,180,072 2,871,343 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

Reconcilia�on of the fair value of plan assets:

Opening fair value of plan assets - -

Interest Income - -

Employer contribu�ons - -

Benefits paid - -

Actuarial gains on Plan Assets - -

Closing fair value of plan assets - -

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

Balance sheet reconcilia�on

Opening defined benefit obliga�on 2,871,343                2,977,328 

Opening fair value of plan assets - -

Expenses recognised in profit and loss 399,783                   841,675 

Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income                        (2,091,054)                 (341,267)

Employer contribu�ons - -

Transfer in/Out - -

Benefits paid - -

Net (Asset) / Liability recognised in the Balance sheet 1,180,072              2,871,343

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:

Current service cost 399,783 841,675 

Interest cost                 - (341,267)

Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (2,091,054)                           -

Transfer in/Out - -

 (1,691,271)             2,871,343 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020
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Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obliga�on (2,091,054)                 (341,267)

 (2,091,054)               (341,267)

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

Actuarial assump�on

Principal actuarial assump�on used to determine net periodic benefit cost and benefit obliga�on at the repor�ng dates :

Discount Rate (p.a.) 6.69% 6.83% 7.63%

Salary escala�on rate (p.a.) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Expected rate of return on assets 7.57% 7.57% NA

A�ri�on rate 10.00% 10.00% 1%

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  31, March� As at  31, March
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Mortality rate a�er employment NA NA NA

Mortality rate during employment Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
 Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)

Notes :

Salary escala�on rate: 

The es�mates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valua�on, take account of infla�on, seniority, promo�on and other 
relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Discount rate: 

The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securi�es for the es�mated term of the 
obliga�ons.Assump�ons regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the sta�s�cs published by the Life 
Insurance Corpora�on of India.The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on 
that date, applicable to the period over which the obliga�on is to be se�led. There has been significant change in expected rate of 
return on assets due to change in the market scenario.

Sensi�vity analysis : 

Reasonably possible changes at the repor�ng date to one of the relevant actuarial assump�ons, holding other assump�ons 
constant, would have affected the defined benefit obliga�ons by the amounts shown below;

Projected Benefit Obliga�on on Current Assump�ons
Discount Rate: 1% increase 1,027,238  2,452,110
Discount Rate:  1% decrease 1,365,309 3,393,416

Future salary growth:  1% increase 1,018,528 3,302,488
Future salary growth:  1% decrease 1,206,013 2,529,489

Change in Rate of Employee Turnover :  1% Increase 1,206,013  2,983,565
Change in Rate of Employee Turnover :  1% Decrease 1,149,164 2,739,305

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020
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iii) Compensated absences

 The Company accrues for the compensated absences, a long term employee benefit plan based on the en�re available leave 
balance standing to the credit of the employees at year end. The value of such leave balance eligible for carry forward, is 
determined by actuarial valua�on as at the Balance sheet date and is charged to Statement of profit and loss in the period 
determined. The provision as at balance sheet dates are as follows:

Compensated absences liability 1,113,197                1,351,633 1,287,662 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Discount rate  6.83% 6.69% 6.69%

Long–term rate of compensa�on increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Surplus recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss towards compensated absences are � 1,28,050  (March 31, 2020 � 5,29,802)

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Actuarial assump�on

36 Impairment review 

 Assets are tested for impairment annually or whenever there are any indicators for impairment. Impairment test is 
performed at the level of each Cash Genera�ng Unit (‘CGU’) or group of CGUs within the Company at which assets are 
monitored for internal  management purpose. The impairment assessment is based on higher of value in use and fair value 
less cost of disposal. 

37 Con�ngent liabili�es:

Income tax ma�ers disputed in appeal  6,516,790               6,516,790               6,516,790 
(Paid under protest  Rs. 1,000,000 
(March 31, 2020 Rs.10,00,000 March 31, 2019 Rs. 10,00,000)

Sales tax ma�ers disputed in appeal 1,422,752               6,411,244               6,804,565 
(Paid under protest Rs. 14,22,752 (March 31, 2020  Rs. 14,22,752 
March 31, 2019 Rs.14,22,752)

GST ma�er pending appeal (Paid under protest Rs.6,00,00,000 
(March 31, 2020 Rs. Nil March 31, 2019 Rs.Nil)                         99,000,000 - -

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Note:

Con�ngent liabili�es in respect of above ma�ers arising in the ordinary course of business, it is an�cipated that no material 
liabili�es will arise.

38 The Company was earlier known as: 

 Globalspace Tech Private Limited upto September 28, 2016

 Globalspace Technologies Private Limited upto November 13, 2016 

39 Segment informa�on

 In line with the provisions of IND AS 108 ‘Opera�ng segments’ and basis the review of opera�ons being done by the Senior 
Management, the opera�ons of the Company fall under the business of providing technology enabled solu�ons and allied 
ac�vi�es, which is considered to be the only reportable segment by the Management. 
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Par�culars Opening  Balance Addi�ons Dele�ons Close Balance Purpose

40 Disclosure under Sec�on 186(4)of the Companies Act,2013:

 Loans given during the year:

Loan to wholly owned subsidiary -  7,397,737               4,028,707       3,496,765       7,929,679  Interest 
Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons      free loan
Private Limited         

Note:

The above par�culars does not include loans given to employees ,accrued interest etc, if any.

41. For assets taken on lease : leases are cancellable in nature/ of short term term tenure. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is not 
applicable.

42 In compliance with Ind AS 27 "Separate Financial Statements" the required informa�on is as under :

Subsidiary

Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private Limited India 79.99 79.99 100

Par�culars Principal place of Percentage of Ownership (%
 business / country Interest as on
 of incorpora�on March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 

43 Financial Instruments - Accoun�ng Classifica�ons and Fair Value Measurements

 The fair values of the financial assets and liabili�es are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged 
in a current transac�on between willing par�es, other than in a forced of liquida�on sale. 

 The following methods and assump�ons were used to es�mate the fair values:

 Fair value of cash and cash equivalent, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, 
other current financial liabili�es approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturi�es of these 
instruments. 

 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valua�on 
technique:

 Level 1 :  quoted (unadjusted) prices in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es

 Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either 
directly or indirectly.

 Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on 
observable market data. 



Par�culars  Carrying value
  at amor�sed cost Fair value
  as at March 31,2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Non current financial assets
Trade receivables  62,757,384 
Other non current financial assets  4,410,909 - - -

 Total  67,168,293  - - -
Current financial assets
Trade receivables  142,557,870 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents  4,264,530  - - -
Loans  5,837,437    - - -
Other financial assets  12,857 - - -

 Total  152,672,694  - - -
Non current financial liabili�es
Long term borrowings  30,701,651 - - -

 Total  30,701,651  - - -
Current financial liabili�es
Short term borrowings  7,369,794 - - -
Trade payables  15,460,311 - - -
Other current financial  liabili�es  6,584,536 - - -

 Total  29,414,641 - - -
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Par�culars  Carrying value
  at amor�sed cost Fair value
  as at March 31,2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Non current financial assets
Trade receivables  32,676,384
Other non current financial assets  951,480 - - -

 Total  33,627,864  - - -
Current financial assets
Trade receivables  100,184,346 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents  1,168,035  - - -
Loans  8,392,076    - - -

 Total  109,744,457 - - -
Non current financial liabili�es
Long term borrowings  29,078,763 - - -

 Total  29,078,763 - - -
Current financial liabili�es
Short term borrowings  24,853,239 - - -
Trade payables  7,132,471 - - -
Other current financial  liabili�es  14,847,759 - - -

 Total  46,833,470 - - -



Par�culars  Carrying value
  at amor�sed cost Fair value
  as at March 31,2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Non current financial assets
Trade receivables  105,949,059

 Total  105,949,059 - - -
Current financial assets
Trade receivables  110,485,166 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents  22,093,450  - - -
Loans  8,161,670    - - -

 Total  140,740,286 - - -
Non current financial liabili�es
Long term borrowings  33,303,902 - - -

 Total  33,303,902 - - -
Current financial liabili�es
Short term borrowings  43,913,807 - - -
Trade payables  8,978,917 - - -
Other current financial  liabili�es  9,030,956 - - -

 Total  61,923,680 - - -

During the repor�ng period there was no transfer between level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements.

44 Financial risk management objec�ves and policies

 The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments :

 - Credit risk;

 - Liquidity risk; and

 - Market risk

 The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework who is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. 

 The Company’s risk management policies are established to iden�fy and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are 
reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market condi�ons and the Company’s ac�vi�es. The Company, through its 
training, standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and construc�ve control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obliga�ons.

 The board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policies and 
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in rela�on to the risks faced by the Company. 

 Credit risk

 Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter  party may not be able to se�le their obliga�ons as agreed. To manage this, 
the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condi�on, current 
economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set 
accordingly.

 The Company considers the probability of default upon ini�al recogni�on of asset and whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk on an ongoin basis throughout each repor�ng period. To assess whether there is a significant increase 
in credit risk that company caompares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the repor�ng date with the risk of 
default as at the date of ini�al recogni�on. It considers reasonable and suppor�ve forwarding-looking informa�on such as:

 i)  Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

 ii)  Actual or expected significant changes in the opera�ng results of the counterparty,

 ii)  Financial or economic condi�ons that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty's ability to meet its 
obliga�ons,

 iv)  Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty, Financial assets are wri�en 
off when there is no reasonable expecta�on of recovery, such as a debtor/borrower failing to engage in a repayment 
plan with the Company. Where receivables/loans have been wri�en off, the Company con�nues to engage in 
enforcement ac�vity to a�empt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in 
statement of profit and loss.
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 Trade and other receivables

 “The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteris�cs of each customer. Credit risk is 
managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and con�nuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers 
to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Credit terms are in line with industry trends.”

 Summary of the Company's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows :

Less than 180 days 85,046,696 73,007,691 87,269,265 

More than 365 days 25,438,469 59,853,040 118,045,989

Total                  110,485,165 132,860,730 205,315,255 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31,� As at  March 31,
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Expected credit loss assessment for customers as at March 31, 2019,  March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each repor�ng period are reviewed by the Company to determine credit losses. 
Given that the macro economic indicators affec�ng customers of the Company have not undergone any substan�al change, the 
Company expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to con�nue.The movement in the allowance for impairment in 
respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows.

Par�cular Rs.

Balance as at April 01, 2019 1,239,349

Impairment loss recognised 13,995 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,253,344 

Impairment loss recognised 252,427 

Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,505,771 

Cash and bank balance

The Company held cash and bank balance with credit worthy banks and financial ins�tu�ons of ₹ 2,23,90,450,  ₹ 1,168,035 and ₹ 
42,64,530 as at March 31, 2021,  March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, respec�vely.The credit worthiness of such banks and 
financial ins�tu�ons is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to se�le or meet its obliga�ons on �me. The board of directors 
are  responsible for liquidity, funding as well as se�lement management. In addi�on, processes and policies related to such risks 
are overseen by the board of directors. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity posi�on through rolling forecast on the 
basis of expected cash flows.
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The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturi�es of financial liabili�es at the repor�ng date based 
on contractual undiscounted payments.

Borrowings (including interest 

accrued and due) 52,994,763 33,303,902 39,700,999 29,078,763 37,813,858 -

Trade payables                    8,978,917  - 7,132,471 - 18,648,274 -  

Par�culars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
� Less than 1 year 1 - 3 years Less than 1 year 1 - 3 years Less than 1 year 1 - 3 years

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a 
financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency 
exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensi�ve instruments. Market risk is a�ributable 
to all market risk sensi�ve financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables and payables. 
The Company market risk is managed by the board of directors which evaluates and excercises independent control over the 
en�re process of market risk management. It also recommends risk management objec�ves and policies ans also management of 
cash resources, implemen�ng hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures and ensuring compliance with market risk limits 
and policies.



 Foreign Currency Exposure

Trade payable USD - - 40,000

Foreign currency sensi�vity

The table below demonstrates sensi�vity on profit a�er tax and total equity due to change in foreign exchange rates of 
currencies where it has significant exposure :

Foreign currency exposure� Currency� As at � As at  � As at  
  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019

Increase / (decrease) in profit and loss - - (27,658) 27,658

Foreign currency (USD) For the year ended For the year ended
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

 1% increase 1% Decrease 1% increase 1% Decrease

b)  Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk 
of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing financial assets or borrowings because of fluctua�ons in the interest rates, if 
such assets/borrowings are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future 
cash flows of floa�ng interest bearing borrowings will fluctuate because of fluctua�ons in the interest rates.

 Exposure to interest rate risk

 The Company’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing 
borrowings is as follows:

a)  Foreign currency risk

 The Company operates interna�onally and por�on of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the 
Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk mainly in US dollar currency.

Interest rate sensi�vity

The following table demonstrates the sensi�vity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that por�on of loans and 
borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is effected through the impact on floa�ng rate 
borrowings, as follows:

Increase / (decrease) in profit and loss before tax

Term loans (392,104) 392,104 (109,319) 109,319

Working capital (459,138) 459,138 (449,336) 449,336 

Total                 (851,242)             851,242                (558,656)           558,656 

Par�culars For the year ended For the year ended
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

 1% increase 1% Decrease 1% increase 1% Decrease
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Floa�ng rate borrowings 12,165,554                   13,806,000 15,381,000 

Fixed rate borrowings 74,083,111                   54,647,934            28,944,588 

Total         86,248,665             68,453,934       44,325,588 

Par�culars As at  As at  As at 
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
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45 Capital  management: 

 The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company while maximising the return to stakeholders through 
op�misa�on of debt and equity balance.

 The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of 
the Company.

 Gearing Ra�o

 The gearing ra�o at the end of the repor�ng period was as follows:

46 The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever considered necessary.

47 The Company has presented Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019 as there was some errors and omissions in earlier years 
amoun�ng to Rs.3,74,01,649. The same is  adjusted by adjus�ng the opening balance in retained earnings and credi�ng 
statutory dues.  

48 The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic is causing disturbance and slowdown of economic ac�vity throughout 
the world and is impac�ng opera�ons of the businesses. The Company has considered the possible effects that may result 
from the pandemic rela�ng to COVID-19. According to the management,  there will not be any impact on these financial 
statements and/or on the business of the company.

As per report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of�
For Tolia & Associates� Globalspace Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants�
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 111017W Sd/-� Sd/-
 Krishna Murari Singh � Beauty Singh�
Sd/-� Chairman & Managing Director� Director�
Kiran P. Tolia� DIN : 03160366� DIN : 03481024�
Proprietor� �
Membership Number: 043637� Sd/-� Sd/-
UDIN:21043637AAAAIG7075 Prodyut Bha�acharya� Swa� Arora
� Chief Financial Officer � Company Secretary
Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021 Mem. No. 55545 & Compliance Officer
  Mem. No. A44529
 Sd/-
 Amitabh Sinha
 CEO & Director
 DIN : 03480980

Debt  77,217,709 68,453,934 44,325,588 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents 22,093,450 1,168,035 4,264,530 

Net debt 55,124,259             67,285,899       40,061,058 

Total equity 364,388,558                 305,540,900          264,195,849

Net debt to equity ra�o (%) 15.13% 22.02% 15.16%

The Management of the Company reviews the capital structure of the Company on a periodic basis.

Par�culars As at  As at  As at 
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Rs.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

 

To
The members of
GlobalSpace Technologies Limited
(formerly Globalspace Tech Private Limited
 Formerly Globalspace Technologies Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GlobalSpace Technologies Limited (hereina�er referred 
to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) 
comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31 2021, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity, the consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then 
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accoun�ng policies and other 
explanatory informa�on (hereina�er referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us and based on the considera�on of 
report of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial informa�on of the subsidiary, the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of 
affairs of the Group, as at March 31, 2021, their consolidated profit including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash 
flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Audi�ng (SAs), as specified 
under sec�on 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibili�es under those Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibili�es 
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with 
the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules hereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Ma�ers

We have determined that there are no key audit ma�ers to communicate in our report.

Informa�on Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other informa�on. The other informa�on comprises the informa�on 
included in the Annual Report 2020-21, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec�on with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other informa�on and, in 
doing so, consider whether such other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other informa�on, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.



Responsibili�es of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the prepara�on and presenta�on of these consolidated financial 
statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial posi�on, consolidated 
financial performance and, consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted 
in India. The respec�ve Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate 
accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preven�ng and 
detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and 
es�mates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls, that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the 
prepara�on and presenta�on of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of prepara�on of the consolidated financial 
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respec�ve Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are 
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to 
ceaseopera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so. 

Those respec�ve Boards of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for overseeing the financial 
repor�ng process of the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in 
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skep�cism throughout the 
audit. We also:

 Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial  statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher     
than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the 
override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates and related 
disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, based on the audit 
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi�ons that may cast significant doubt on 
the ability of the Group to con�nue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw  a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor’s report. However,  future events or condi�ons may cause the Group to cease to con�nue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presenta�on.

 Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial informa�on of the en��es or business ac�vi�es within 
the Group of which we are the independent auditors and whose  financial informa�on we have audited, to express an 
opinion on the consolidated financial  statements. We are responsible for the direc�on, supervision and performance of the 
audit of  the financial statements of such en��es included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors.
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For the other en��es included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other 
auditors remain responsible for the direc�on, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 
responsible for our audit opinion. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other 
en��es included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other 
ma�ers, the planned scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we iden�fy during our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other ma�ers 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the ma�ers 
communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that were of most significance in the audit of the 
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and are therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describe 
these ma�ers in our auditor’s report unless law or regula�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of 
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Other Ma�ers

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial informa�on, in respect of the subsidiary whose Ind As financial 
statements include total assets of Rs. 4,87,04,814 as at March 31, 2021, total revenues of Rs. 2,05,98,953, total net profit a�er tax of 
Rs. 87,612 and total comprehensive income of Rs.18,88,779 and net cash inflows of (Rs3,52,226) for the year ended on that date. 
These Ind As financial statements and other financial informa�on have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements, 
other financial informa�on and auditor’s reports have been furnished to us by the management. Our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the subsidiary and our report in 
terms of sub-sec�ons (3) of Sec�on 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is based solely on the report of 
such other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is 
not modified in respect of the above ma�ers with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors 
and the financial statements and other financial informa�on cer�fied by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the considera�on of report of the other auditors on separate 
financial statements and the other financial informa�on of the subsidiary , as noted in the ‘other ma�er’ paragraph we report, to 
the extent applicable, that:

(a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons 
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements;

(b)  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law rela�ng to prepara�on of the aforesaid consolida�on of the 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examina�on of those books and report of the other auditor;

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other 
Comprehensive Income) and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt 
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of prepara�on of the 
consolidated financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards specified under 
Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors of the Holding  Company as on March 31, 2021 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed 
under Sec�on 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary company none of the directors of the Group’s companies is  disqualified as on 
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on  164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy and the opera�ng effec�veness of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng with 
reference to these consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 1” to 
this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remunera�on for the year ended March 31, 2021 has been paid / provided by the Holding 
Company to their directors in accordance with the provisions of sec�on 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons 

118



given to us and based on the considera�on of the report of the other auditors on separate financial statements as also the 
other financial informa�on of the subsidiary, as noted in the ‘Other ma�er’ paragraph:

 i. The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its consolidated financial posi�on of 
the Group in its consolidated financial statements – Refer Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements;

 ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses in long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts during the 
year ended March 31, 2021;

 iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor  Educa�on and Protec�on Fund by the 
Group.

For  Tolia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number:111017W

Sd/-
Kiran P. Tolia
Proprietor
Membership Number : 043637 
UDIN: 21043637AAAAIG7075

Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021
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Annexure 1 to the Auditors’ Report
(to The Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of 

Globalspace Technologies Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the Act

In conjunc�on with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 31, 2021, 
we have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of Globalspace Technologies Limited (hereina�er referred 
to as “the Holding Company”) and its subsidiary company as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respec�ve Board of Directors of the Holding company and its subsidiary company  to whom repor�ng under clause (i) of sub 
sec�on 3 of Sec�on 143 of the Act in respect of the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng is applicable 
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial repor�ng 
criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng (GNAIFC) issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng 
records, and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Act. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial repor�ng based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the GNAIFC and the Standards on Audi�ng, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 
under sec�on 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of 
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. 

Those Standards and the GNAIFC require that, we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng was established and maintained 
and if such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and tes�ng and evalua�ng the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgments, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that, the audit evidence, we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

A Company’s internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the 
reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accoun�ng principles. 

A Company’s internal financial control over financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that:

(1)  pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and 
disposi�ons of the assets of the Company; 

(2)  provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara�on of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisa�ons of management and directors of the Company; and 

(3)  provide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi�on, use, or disposi�on of 
the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng

Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
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projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company and its subsidiary company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial repor�ng and such internal financial controls over financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at March 31, 2021, 
based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of 
internal control stated in the GNAIFC issued by the ICAI.

Other Ma�ers

Our aforesaid reports under Sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the internal financial 
controls over financial repor�ng insofar as it relates to its subsidiary company  is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors 
of such company. Our opinion is not qualified in respect of this ma�er. 

For  Tolia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number:111017W

Sd/-
Kiran P. Tolia
Proprietor
Membership Number : 043637 
UDIN: 21043637AAAAIG7075

Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

I ASSETS      
1) Non-current assets      
 (a) Property, plant and equipment 3 59,100,774 27,179,161 29,779,899 
 (b) Goodwill on consolida�on  4,046,174 4,046,174 -   
 (c ) Intangible assets 4 96,605,261 58,278,493 57,772,752 
 (d ) Intangible assets under development 5 9,858,584 19,581,333 -   
 (e) Financial assets
   (i)  Trade receivables 6 - 32,676,384 62,757,384 
  (ii)  Other non current financial assets 7 113,816,559 8,818,980 4,410,909 
 (f) Other non-current assets 8 2,678,258  3,941,763  2,678,258 

  Total non current assets  286,105,609 154,522,287 157,399,202 

2) Current assets
 a) Inventories  9 60,350,808 78,495,213 5,785,823 
 b) Financial assets 
  (i) Trade receivables 10 127,000,154  101,501,153 142,557,870 
  (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 22,147,911 1,574,723 4,364,530 
  (iii) Loans 12 1,383,991 1,014,301 978,236 
  (iv) Other financial assets 13 470  - 12,857 
 c) Current tax assets (net) 14 13,484,118 13,505,225 5,837,437 
 d) Other current assets  15 25,327,363 83,283,547 59,253,763 

  Total current assets  249,694,814 279,374,161  218,790,515 

  Total assets  535,800,424 433,896,449 376,189,717 

II Equity and liabili�es 
  Equity     
 a) Equity share capital 16 114,566,010 114,566,010 114,566,010 
 b) Other equity 17 241,220,664 181,432,962 149,629,839 

 Equity a�ributable to the shareholders of the Holding Company  355,786,674  295,998,972 264,195,849 
 c) Non-controlling interest  2,069,522 1,862,143 10,000 

  Total equity  357,856,196  297,861,115 264,205,849 

  Liabili�es    
  1) Non-Current Liabili�es
 a) Financial liabili�es
  (i)  Long term borrowings 18 41,163,902 36,938,763  30,701,651 
 b) Long term provisions 19 1,897,721 5,376,048 4,158,353 
 c) Deferred tax liabili�es (net) 14 5,346,180 816,691 282,361 

  Total non current liabili�es  48,407,803 43,131,502 35,142,365 

 2) Current liabili�es
 a) Financial liabili�es    
   (i)  Short term borrowings 20 53,207,975 24,853,239 7,369,794
  (ii) Trade payables 21 18,926,328 14,504,589 15,460,311
  (iii) Other current financial  liabili�es  22 9,030,956 14,847,759 6,584,536 
 b) Other current liabili�es 23 48,335,076 38,568,244 47,320,226 
 c) Short term provisions 24 36,092 129,999 106,637 

  Total current liabili�es  129,536,425 92,903,831 76,841,504 

  Total equity and liabili�es  535,800,424 433,896,448 376,189,718 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Sl.� Par�culars� � Notes� As at March 31,  � As at March 31, As at March 31,
No.� � � � � 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

As per report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of�
For Tolia & Associates� Globalspace Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants�
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 111017W Sd/-� Sd/-
 Krishna Murari Singh � Beauty Singh�
Sd/-� Chairman & Managing Director� Director�
Kiran P. Tolia� DIN : 03160366� DIN : 03481024�
Proprietor� �
Membership Number: 043637� Sd/-� Sd/-
UDIN:21043637AAAAIG7075 Prodyut Bha�acharya� Swa� Arora
� Chief Financial Officer � Company Secretary
Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021 Mem. No. 55545 & Compliance Officer
  Mem. No. A44529
 Sd/-
 Amitabh Sinha
 CEO & Director
 DIN : 03480980
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Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2021
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 Income
 Revenue from opera�ons 25 270,894,677 259,136,580 
 Other Income 26 858,166 85,371 

 Total income  271,752,843 259,221,951 

 Expenses

 Purchase of stock in trade  110,405,139 195,423,377 
 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 27 18,144,405 (72,709,390)
 Employee benefit expense  28 9,380,946  17,668,341 
 Finance cost  29 8,329,222 8,728,044 
 Deprecia�on and amor�sa�on expense  30 22,849,099 14,791,797 
 Other expenses 31 30,722,463  51,711,037 

 Total expenses   199,831,273  215,613,204 

 Profit before tax  71,921,571 43,608,747 

 Tax expense
 Current tax   11,531,068  13,317,000 
 Tax adjustment of earlier years  294,088  -   
 Deferred tax  3,328,141 534,330 

 Total tax expense  15,153,297  13,851,330 

 Profit a�er tax  56,768,274  29,757,417 

 Other comprehensive income   
  -  Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
  Remeasurements of defined benefit liabili�es   4,317,075 (341,268)
 - Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                      (1,201,350)                                   -   

 Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  3,115,725 (341,268)

 Profit a�ributable
 Owners of the company  56,560,901 32,144,391 
 Non controlling interest  207,372 (2,386,973)
 Other comprehensive income a�ributable to    
 Owners of the company  2,925,885 31,803,123 
 Non controlling interest  189,841 (2,386,973)

 Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax  59,883,999 29,416,149  

 Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each 32
 a) Basic   4.94 2.81 
 b) Diluted  4.94 2.81 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

Sl.� Par�culars�� Notes For the  For the 
No.     year ended year ended
     March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

As per report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of�
For Tolia & Associates� Globalspace Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants�
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 111017W Sd/-� Sd/-
 Krishna Murari Singh � Beauty Singh�
Sd/-� Chairman & Managing Director� Director�
Kiran P. Tolia� DIN : 03160366� DIN : 03481024�
Proprietor� �
Membership Number: 043637� Sd/-� Sd/-
UDIN:21043637AAAAIG7075 Prodyut Bha�acharya� Swa� Arora
� Chief Financial Officer � Company Secretary
Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021 Mem. No. 55545 & Compliance Officer
  Mem. No. A44529
 Sd/-
 Amitabh Sinha
 CEO & Director
 DIN : 03480980
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2021
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     A Cash Flow From Opera�ng Actvi�es  
 Net profit before tax                        71,921,571                    43,608,748 
 Adjustments for:  
   Deprecia�on/amor�sa�on                       22,849,099                    14,791,797 
   Interest and finance charges                         8,329,222                      8,728,044 
   OCI adjustments                         4,317,075                       (341,268)
 Provision for ECL                         4,155,817                            17,957 
   Interest  income                          (858,166)                         (85,371)

 Opera�ng  profit before working capital changes                    110,714,618                    66,719,907 

 Adjustments:                                     -   
   Trade receivables 5,562,564                    71,119,760 
   Inventories 18,144,405                 (72,709,390)
   Loans  (369,690)                         (36,065)
  Other current  assets/other non current financial assets (48,319,358)                (29,508,420)
  Trade payables                         4,421,739                       (955,723)
  Other current liabili�es                         3,950,028                    (8,751,981)
  Provisions                       (3,461,155)                     1,241,057 
 Cash Generated from Opera�ons                       90,643,151                    27,119,145 
 Taxes paid (net of refunds, if any)                    (11,804,050)                (20,984,788)

 Net cash generated from opera�ng ac�vites  (A)                       78,839,101                      6,134,357 

B  Cash Flow From Inves�ng Ac�vi�es  
   Purchase of fixed assets                    (83,374,731)                (32,278,130)
    (including intangible assets under development)  
  Interest income                             858,166                            98,228 

 Net cash (used in ) inves�ng ac�vi�es (B)                    (82,516,565)                (32,179,902)

C Cash Flow From Financing Ac�vi�es     
 Interest and finance charges                                                     (8,329,222)                   (8,732,610)
 Increase in long term borrowings (net)                         4,225,139                    14,504,902 
 Increase in short term borrowings (net)                       28,354,735                    17,483,446 
 Net cash generated from financing ac�vi�es (C )                       24,250,652                    23,255,738 
 Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)                       20,573,188                    (2,789,807)
 Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of the year                         1,574,723                      4,364,530 
 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                       22,147,911                      1,574,723 

 Net increase/(decrease) as disclosed above                       20,573,188                    (2,789,807)

Sl.� Par�culars� � � For the year ended For the year ended
No.� � � � � March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

Notes:    
1 The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.
2 Figures in bracket indicates cash ou�low.
3 Components of cash and cash equivalents (closing):

Balance with banks in current accounts 21,206,219 652,930
in fixed deposits with a bank (original maturity less than 3 months) 941,692 921,793

Total 22,147,911 1,574,723 

Par�culars� As at March 31,  � As at  31, March
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements

As per report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of�
For Tolia & Associates� Globalspace Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants�
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 111017W Sd/-� Sd/-
 Krishna Murari Singh � Beauty Singh�
Sd/-� Chairman & Managing Director� Director�
Kiran P. Tolia� DIN : 03160366� DIN : 03481024�
Proprietor� �
Membership Number: 043637� Sd/-� Sd/-
UDIN:21043637AAAAIG7075 Prodyut Bha�acharya� Swa� Arora
� Chief Financial Officer � Company Secretary
Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021 Mem. No. 55545 & Compliance Officer
  Mem. No. A44529
 Sd/-
 Amitabh Sinha
 CEO & Director
 DIN : 03480980
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
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As at April 1, 2018 11,456,601 114,566,010
Changes during the year - -
As at March 31, 2019 11,456,601 114,566,010
Changes during the year - -   
Balance as at March 31, 2020 11,456,601 114,566,010 
Changes during the year - -

Balance as at March 31, 2021 11,456,601 114,566,010

Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up Number of Amount 
 Shares� (Rs.)

  A�ributable to owners

� � Reserves and surplus

Other Equity� Securi�es premium �  Retained earnings Total 
� Rs. �  Rs. Rs.

Balance at April 01, 2018� 174,032,280� (34,470,304)� 139,561,976

Add: Profit for the year� -� 10,909,412� 10,909,412
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)� -� (656,664)� (656,664)
Less:Share issue expenses� 184,885� - � 184,885

Balance at March 31, 2019� 173,847,395 � (24,217,556)� 149,629,839

Add: Profit for the year� - 32,144,391 32,144,391
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)� -� (341,268)� (341,268)
Total comprehensive income for the year� - 31,803,123 31,803,123

Balance as at March 31, 2020� 173,847,395 7,585,567 181,432,962

Add: Profit for the year� - 56,768,274 56,768,274
Other comprehensive income (net of tax)� -� 3,019,428  3,019,428 
Total comprehensive income for the year� - 59,787,702 59,787,702
Transac�ons with owners of company

Balance as at March 31, 2021� 173,847,395 67,373,269 241,220,664

As per report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of�
For Tolia & Associates� Globalspace Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants�
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 111017W Sd/-� Sd/-
 Krishna Murari Singh � Beauty Singh�
Sd/-� Chairman & Managing Director� Director�
Kiran P. Tolia� DIN : 03160366� DIN : 03481024�
Proprietor� �
Membership Number: 043637� Sd/-� Sd/-
UDIN:21043637AAAAIG7075 Prodyut Bha�acharya� Swa� Arora
� Chief Financial Officer � Company Secretary
Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021 Mem. No. 55545 & Compliance Officer
  Mem. No. A44529
 Sd/-
 Amitabh Sinha
 CEO & Director
 DIN : 03480980
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 Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements as at March 31, 2020  

1 Corporate Informa�on: 

 Globalspace Technologies (the ‘Company’) was converted to a public limited company on November 14, 2016 and was 
incorporated as a private limited company in Mumbai, India on December 22, 2010 under the ‘Companies Act, 1956’. The 
Company’s business ac�vity is that of providing technology enabled business enhancement solu�ons . As part of its business 
ac�vi�es, the Company has formed a wholly owned subsidiary. The Company made an ini�al public offer (‘IPO’) in India in 
August, 2017 and its shares are listed on the BSE Limited.

2 Significant accoun�ng policies: 

 a Basis of accoun�ng and prepara�on of Financial Statements: 

  Compliance with Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS): 

  a) These Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements (“Consolidated Financial Statements”) of the Company and its 
subsidiary (“the Group”), have been prepared in accordance with the recogni�on and measurement principles 
laid down in Indian Accoun�ng Standards (“Ind AS”) read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Indian Accoun�ng 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accoun�ng principles generally 
accepted in India. These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of 
Directors on June 29, 2021.

  b) These Consolidated Financial Statements are the first Consolidated Financial Statements prepared in accordance 
with Indian Accoun�ng Standards (Ind AS). For all periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2019, the 
Group reported its Consolidated Financial statements in accordance with the accoun�ng standards no�fied 
under the sec�on 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with relevant rules framed there under (“Indian 
GAAP”). The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the opening Balance 
Sheet as at April 1, 2018 (for the holding company) have been restated in accordance with Ind AS for compara�ve 
informa�on. Reconcilia�ons and explana�ons of the effect of the transi�on from IGAAP to Ind AS on the Group’s 
Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and Statement of Cash Flows are provided in note 43.

  Func�onal and Presenta�on Currency

   These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the func�onal currency of the 
parent Company. All financial informa�on presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest rupee, 
except otherwise indicated.

  Basis of measurement 

   These Consolidated Financial statements are prepared under the historical cost conven�on unless otherwise 
indicated.

 B Basis of consolida�on:

  i) Subsidiaries

     Subsidiaries are en��es controlled by the Group. The Group controls an en�ty when it is exposed to, or has rights 
to, variable returns form its involvement with the en�ty and has the ability to affect those returns through its 
power over the en�ty. The financial statements of a subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial 
statements from the date on which control commences un�l the date on which control ceases.

  ii) Non-controlling interests (NCI)

    The non-controlling interests comprise the por�on of equity of subsidiaries that are not owned, directly or 
indirectly, by the Group.

    Non-controlling interest in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated 
statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of changes in equity and balance sheet respec�vely.

    The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired en�ty on an acquisi�on-by-acquisi�on basis 
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s propor�onate share of the acquired en�ty’s net iden�fiable 
assets.

   Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as 
equity transac�ons.
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  iii) Loss of control

   When a Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and the liabili�es of the subsidiaries, and 
any NCI and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value 
at the date that control is lost. Any resul�ng gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

  iv) Transac�ons eliminated on consolida�on

   Intra-group balance and transac�ons, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from intra-group 
transac�ons, are eliminated. Unrealised gains arising from transac�ons with equity accounted investees are 
eliminated against the investment to the extent of Group’s interest in the investee. Unrealised losses are 
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

 b Revenue Recogni�on: 

  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the considera�on received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are 
and net of returns, trade allowances, rebates, value added taxes and Goods and Service Tax.

  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the 
revenue can be reliably measured.

  i) Sale of goods: Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods have been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Revenue is measured net of returns, 
trade discounts and volume rebates. The �ming of the transfer of risks and rewards varies depending on the 
individual terms of the sales contract.

  ii) Rendering of services : In contracts involving rendering of services, revenue is recognised in profit or loss in the 
propor�on of the stage of comple�on of the transac�on at the repor�ng date and are measured net of sales tax, 
works contract tax, service tax and Goods and Service Tax.

  iii) Interest income :    Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the EIR method or propor�onate 
basis. The effec�ve interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts es�mated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While calcula�ng the effec�ve 
interest rate, the Company es�mated the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the 
financial instrument (for example prepayment, extension, call and similar op�ons but does not consider the 
expected credit losses).

 c Property, Plant and Equipment, Deprecia�on and Impairment: 

  i) Property, Plant and Equipment:

    Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost / deemed cost, less accumulated deprecia�on and 
impairment losses, if any. Cost of Property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import 
du�es and non-refundable purchase taxes, a�er deduc�ng trade discounts and rebates, any directly a�ributable 
cost of bringing the asset to its working condi�on for its intended use and es�mated a�ributable costs of 
dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located.

   Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate 
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit 
and Loss during the repor�ng period in which they are incurred.

   Gains or losses arising from derecogni�on of plant, property and equipment are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

   An asset’s carrying amount is wri�en down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount 
is greater than its es�mated recoverable amount. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and 
equipment is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss.

   Deprecia�on on addi�ons / disposals is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from / up to the date on which asset is 
ready for use / disposed of.

   The Company has elected to use the exemp�on available under Ind AS 101 to con�nue the carrying value for all of 
its Property, plant and equipment as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transi�on to Ind AS, 
measured as per the previous GAAP and used that as its deemed cost as at the date of transi�on (April 01, 2018).



  ii) Deprecia�on:

   Deprecia�on on Property, Plant and Equipment has been provided on wri�en down value basis and manner 
prescribed in Schedule II to the Act. 

  iii) Intangible Assets:

   Intangible Assets are stated at acquisi�on cost, net of accumulated amor�za�on and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Intangible assets are amor�sed on wri�en down value basis over a period of five years.

   The Company has elected to con�nue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets as recognised in the 
standalone financial statements as at the date of transi�on to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use 
that as the deemed cost as at the transi�on date pursuant to the exemp�on under Ind AS 101.

  iv) Intangible assets under development:

   Expenditure incurred for intangible assets during development stage  are included under intangible assets under 
development and later  allocated to the respec�ve intangible asset on comple�on of the development stage.

 d Impairment of Assets: 

  i) Financial assets:

   In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) model for measurement 
andrecogni�on of impairment loss on the financial assets measured at amor�sed cost and debt instruments 
measured at FVOCI. Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the ‘simplified approach’ at an 
amount equal to the life�me ECL at each repor�ng date. In respect of other financial assets, the loss allowance is 
measured at 12 month ECL only if there is no significant deteriora�on in the credit risk since ini�al recogni�on of 
the asset or asset is determined to have a low credit risk at the repor�ng date. The amount of ECLs (or reversal) 
that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the repor�ng date to the amount that is required to be recognized is 
recognized as an impairment gain or loss in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

  ii) Non-financial assets:

   The carrying values of assets / cash genera�ng units at each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for impairment if 
any indica�on of impairment exists.

   An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds itsrecoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For 
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
iden�fiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets 
(cash genera�ng units). The impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 e Investment in subsidiary: 

  Investment in subsidiary is carried at cost in the separate financial statements. Investment carried at cost is tested for 
impairment as per IND AS 36.   

 f Inventories: 

  Traded goods are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs 
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present loca�on and condi�on. Cost is determined on a FIFO basis.

  Costs of purchased inventory are determined a�er deduc�ng rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the 
es�mated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less es�mated costs of comple�on and es�mated costs 
necessary to make the sale.

  Net realizable value is the es�mated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less es�mated costs of comple�on 
and es�mated costs necessary to make the sale.

 g Employee Benefits: 

  i) Short-term obliga�ons

   Liabili�es for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be se�led wholly within 
12 months a�er the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect 
of employees services up to the end of the repor�ng period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabili�es are se�led. The liabili�es are presented as current employee benefit obliga�ons in the 
Balance Sheet.
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  ii) Other long-term employee benefit obliga�ons

   The liabili�es for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be se�led wholly within 12 months a�er the end 
of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present 
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of the 
repor�ng period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at 
the end of the repor�ng period that have terms approxima�ng to the terms of the related obliga�on. 
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assump�ons are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.The obliga�ons are presented as current liabili�es in the Balance Sheet if the 
Company does not have an uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement for at least twelve months a�er the repor�ng 
period, regardless of when the actual se�lement is expected to occur.

  iii) Post-employment obliga�ons

   The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

   (a)  defined benefit plans such as gratuity; and

   (b) defined contribu�on plans such as provident fund.  

   Defined Benefit Plans - Gratuity obliga�ons 

   The liability or asset recognised in the Balance Sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present 
value of the defined benefit obliga�on at the end of the repor�ng period less the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefit obliga�on is calculated annually by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present 
value of the defined benefit obliga�on is determined by discoun�ng the es�mated future cash ou�lows by 
reference to market yields at the end of the repor�ng period on government bonds that have terms 
approxima�ng to the terms of the related obliga�on.

   The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit 
obliga�on and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee Benefit expense in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss. Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial 
assump�ons are recognised in the year in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income they are 
included in retained earnings in the Statement of changes in equity and in the Balance Sheet.

   Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obliga�on resul�ng from plan amendments or curtailments 
are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as past service cost.- Defined contribu�on planThe 
Company pays provident fund and ESIC contribu�ons to publicly administered provident funds / ESIC as per local 
regula�ons. The Company has no further payment obliga�ons once The contribu�ons have been paid. The 
contribu�ons are accounted for as Defined contribu�on Plans and The contribu�ons are recognised as employee 
Benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contribu�ons are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash 
refund or a reduc�on in the future payments is available.

 h Leases (where the Company is a lessee):

  At the incep�on of an arrangement, the Company determines whether the arrangement is or contains a lease. At the 
incep�on or on reassessment of an arrangement that contains a lease, the Company separates payments and other 
considera�on required by the arrangement into those for the lease and those for the other elements on the basis of 
their rela�ve fair values.

  Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, in which a significant por�on of the risks and 
rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as opera�ng leases. Payments made 
under opera�ng leases (net of any incen�ves received from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
as per the terms of the lease or on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured 
to increase in line with expected general infla�on to compensate for the lessor’s expected infla�onary cost increases.

  i Borrowings: 

   Borrowings are ini�ally recognised at fair value, net of transac�on costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently 
measured at amor�sed cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transac�on costs) and the redemp�on 
amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss over the period of the borrowings using the effec�ve 
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facili�es are recognised as transac�on costs of the loan to 
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred un�l 
the draw down occurs.

   Borrowings are removed from the Balance Sheet when the obliga�on specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been 
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ex�nguished or transferred to another party and the considera�on paid, including any non-cash assets 
transferred or liabili�es assumed, is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

   Borrowings are classified as current liabili�es unless the Company has an uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement 
of the liability for at least 12 months a�er the repor�ng period.

 j Borrowing Costs: 

  Borrowing costs consist of interest and transac�ons costs incurred in connec�on with the borrowing of funds. 
Borrowing costs may include exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

  Borrowing costs that are a�ributable to the acquisi�on or construc�on of qualifying assets (i.e. an asset that 
necessarily takes a substan�al period of �me to get ready for its intended use) are capitalized as a part of the cost of such 
assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

 k Foreign Currency Transac�ons / Transla�ons: 

  Transac�ons and balances

  Foreign currency transac�ons are translated into the func�onal currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the 
transac�ons. Foreign exchange gains and losses resul�ng from the se�lement of such transac�ons and from the 
transla�on of monetary assets and liabili�es denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are 
generally recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as either profit or loss. A monetary item for which se�lement is 
neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is considered as a part of the en�ty’s net investment in that 
foreign opera�on.

  Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a net basis within other income 
and expenses accordingly.

  Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the 
date when the fair value was determined. Transla�on differences on assets and liabili�es carried at fair value are 
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss in the Statement of Profit and Loss. For example, transla�on differences on 
nonmonetary assets and liabili�es such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are included in net 
profit in the Statement of Profit and Loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and transla�on differences on non-
monetary assets such as equity investments classified as Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVOCI”) 
are recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI”). 

 l Taxes on Income: 

  Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the 
extent that it relates items recognised directly in equity or in OCI.

  The income tax expense or credit for the period is tax payable on the current year’s taxable income based on the 
applicable income tax rate adjusted by change in deferred tax assets and liabili�es a�ributable to temporary 
differences and to unused tax losses. 

  The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substan�vely enacted at the 
repor�ng date. Current tax comprises of expected tax payable or receivable on taxable income/loss for the year or any 
adjustment or receivable in respect of previous year. Management periodically evaluates posi�on taken in tax returns 
with respect to situa�ons in which applicable tax regula�on is subject to interpreta�on. It establishes provisions where 
appropriate on the basis of amount expected to be paid to the tax authori�es.

  Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the Balance Sheet method, on temporary differences arising between the 
tax bases of assets and liabili�es and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax 
liabili�es are not recognised if they arise from the ini�al recogni�on of goodwill. Deferred income tax is determined 
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substan�ally enacted by the end of the repor�ng date and are 
expected to apply to the Company when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax 
liability is se�led.

  Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deduc�ble temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits 
(Minimum alternate tax credit en�tlement) only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to u�lise 
those temporary differences, unused losses and unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets – unrecognised or recognised, 
are reviewed at each repor�ng date and are recognised / reduced to the extent that it is probable or no longer probable 
respec�vely that the related tax benefit will be realized.

  Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and 
liabili�es and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxa�on authority. Current tax assets and tax liabili�es 
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are offset where the en�ty has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to se�le on a net basis, or to realise 
the asset and se�le the liability simultaneously.

 m Earnings  Per  Share 

  (i) Basic earnings per share : Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:- the profit a�ributable to owners of the 
Company;- by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for 
bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

  (ii) Diluted earnings per share : Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing:- the net profit or loss a�er tax for 
the year a�ributable to owners of the Company , and- the weighted average number of shares outstanding during 
the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilu�ve poten�al equity shares

 n Provisions: 

  Provisions are recognized when there is a present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve) as a result of a past event, it is 
probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and a 
reliable es�mate can be made of the amount of the obliga�on. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and 
are determined based on best es�mate required to se�le the obliga�on at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed 
at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best es�mates. 

 o Con�ngent Liabili�es: 

  A con�ngent liability is a possible obliga�on that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present 
obliga�on that is not recognized because it is not probable that an ou�low of resources will be required to se�le the 
obliga�on. A con�ngent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized 
because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a con�ngent liability but discloses its 
existence in the financial statements. 

 p Cash and cash equivalents: 

  Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet include cash on hand, cheques on hand, deposits held at call with 
financial ins�tu�ons, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturi�es of three months or less that 
are readily conver�ble to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

  For the purpose of presenta�on in the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, 
deposits held at call with financial ins�tu�ons, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturi�es of 
three months or less that are readily conver�ble to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value and overdrawn bank balances.

  Cash Flows

  Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transac�ons of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future opera�ng cash receipts or payments and 
item of income or expenses associated with inves�ng or financing cash flows. The cash flows from opera�ng, inves�ng 
and financing ac�vi�es are segregated.

 q Financial instruments: 

  a. Financial Liabili�es

   Ini�al recogni�on and measurement: 

   Financial liabili�es are ini�ally recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. Financial liability is ini�ally measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through profit 
and loss, transac�on costs that are directly a�ributable to its acquisi�on or issue.

   Subsequent measurement: 

    Financial liabili�es are subsequently carried at fair value through profit and loss. For trade payables and other 
liabili�es maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 
to the short maturity of these instruments.

   Derecogni�on

   A financial liability is derecognised when the obliga�on under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. 
When an exis�ng financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substan�ally different terms, 
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or the terms of an exis�ng liability are substan�ally modified, such an exchange or modifica�on is treated as the 
de-recogni�on of the original liability and the recogni�on of a new liability. The difference in the respec�ve 
carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

  b. Financial Assets

   Ini�al recogni�on and measurement 

   Trade Receivables are ini�ally recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets are ini�ally 
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial 
assets other than those measured subsequently at fair value through profit and loss, are recognised ini�ally at fair 
value plus transac�on costs that are a�ributable to the acquisi�on of the financial asset.

   Classifica�on and subsequent measurement 

   Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classifica�on of the respec�ve financial assets. 
Based on the business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteris�cs of the 
financial asset, the Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amor�sed cost, fair value 
through OCI or fair value through profit and loss.

   i) Financial assets amor�sed at cost

    A financial asset is subsequently measured at amor�sed cost if it is held with in a business model whose 
objec�ve is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely consis�ng payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

   ii) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income:

    A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held 
within a business model whose objec�ve is achieved by both collec�ng contractual cash flows and selling 
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that 
are solely payments principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

   iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

    A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through 
profit or loss.

   Equity investments 

   All equity investments within the scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Such equity instruments which 
are held for trading are classified as FVTPL. For all other such equity instruments, the Company decides to classify 
the same either as FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such elec�on on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The 
classifica�on is made on ini�al recogni�on and is irrevocable. 

   For equity instruments classified as FVOCI, all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are 
recognized in OCI. Dividends on such equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

   Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Dividends on such equity instruments are recognised in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss.

   Derecogni�on 

   A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Company has 
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obliga�on to pay the received cash 
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either:

   - the Company has transferred substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

   - the Company has neither transferred nor retained substan�ally all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

   On de-recogni�on, any gains or losses on all debt instruments (other than debt instruments measured at FVOCI) 
and equity instruments (measured at FVTPL) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains and losses 
in respect of debt instruments measured at FVOCI and that are accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss 
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on de-recogni�on. Gains or losses on equity instruments measured at FVOCI that are recognised and accumulated 
in OCI are not reclassified to profit or loss on de-recogni�on.

 r Current–non-current classifica�on: 

  All assets and liabili�es are classified into current and non-current.

  Assets

  An asset is classified as current when it sa�sfies any of the following criteria:

  a) it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consump�on in, the company’s normal opera�ng cycle;

  b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trade;

  c) it is expected to be realised on demand or within 12 months a�er the repor�ng date; or

  d) it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to se�le a liability for at least 12 
months a�er the repor�ng date.

   Current assets include the current por�on of non-current financial assets. 

   All other assets are classified as non-current.

  Liabili�es

  A liability is classified as current when it sa�sfies any of the following criteria:

  a) it is expected to be se�led in the company’s normal opera�ng cycle;

  b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trade;

  c) it is due to be se�led in demand or within 12 months a�er the repor�ng date; or

  d) there is no uncondi�onal right to defer se�lement of the liability for at least 12 months a�er the repor�ng date. 
Terms of a liability that could, at the op�on of the counterparty, result in its se�lement by the issue of equity 
instruments do not affect its classifica�on.

   Current liabili�es include current por�on of non-current financial liabili�es. 

   All other liabili�es are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are classified as non-current 
assets and liabili�es.

 s Opera�ng cycle:

  Based on the nature of products / ac�vi�es of the Company and the normal �me between acquisi�on of assets and 
their realisa�on in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its opera�ng cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of classifica�on of its assets and liabili�es as current and non-current.
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As at  April 1, 2018  - - - - - -

Addi�ons - - - - - -

As at  March 31, 2019 19,113,732 1,608,149 307,941 11,257,913 110,089 32,397,825

Addi�ons - - 431,360 - 112,712 544,072 

As at  March 31, 2020 19,113,732 1,608,149 739,301 11,257,913 222,801 32,941,897 

Addi�ons - - 971,205 - 40,823,173 41,794,378 

As at March 31, 2021 19,113,732 1,608,149 1,710,506 11,257,913 41,045,974 74,736,275 

Cost�  Building � Furniture and � Office � Vehicles �  Computer�  Total 
� � fixtures �  equipments �  �  systems 

Note 3 :    Property, Plant and Equipment Rs.

Note 4 :      Intangible Assets

Cost      So�ware 

As at April 1, 2018 -

Addi�ons - 

As at  March 31, 2019 91,544,994 

Addi�ons   12,152,725   

As at  March 31, 2020 103,697,719 

Addi�ons 51,303,103 

As at  March 31, 2021   155,000,822 

Rs.

Amor�sa�on So�ware 

As at April 1, 2018� -

Amor�sa�on for the year� - 

As at March 31, 2019� 33,772,242  

Amor�sa�on for the year�    11,646,984

As at  March 31, 2020�  45,419,225 

Amor�sa�on for the year� 12,976,336 

As at 31st March 2021� 58,395,561 

Rs.

Net book value�  So�ware 

As at March 31, 2018� -

As at March 31, 2019�   57,772,752  

As at 31st March 2020�   58,278,493 

As at 31st March 2021� 96,605,261 

Rs.

Accumulated Deprecia�on�  Building � Furniture and � Office � Vehicles �  Computer�  Total 
� � fixtures �  equipments �  �  systems 

As at  April 1, 2018 - - - - - -

 Deprecia�on charge for the year  - - - - - -

As at  March 31, 2019 997,376 510,980 105,106 943,878 60,586 2,617,926 

Deprecia�on charge for the year 997,376 579,480 274,863 1,225,306 67,786 3,144,811 

As at March 31, 2020 1,994,752 1,090,460  379,969 2,169,184 128,372 5,762,736 

Deprecia�on charge for the year 833,694 517,689  448,040 1,079,741 6,993,599 9,872,763 

As at March 31, 2021 2,828,445 1,608,149 828,009  3,248,925 7,121,970 15,635,501 

Net Book Value�  Building � Furniture and � Office � Vehicles �  Computer�  Total 
� � fixtures �  equipments �  �  systems 

As at March 31, 2018 - - - - - -

As at March 31, 2019 18,116,356  1,097,169  202,835 10,314,035 49,503 29,779,899 

As at  March 31, 2020 17,118,980 517,689  359,333 9,088,729  94,429 27,179,161 

As at March 31, 2021 16,285,287 (0) 882,498 8,008,988 33,924,004 59,100,774 
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          Rs.

As at March 31, 2021� 9,858,584 � � � �
As at March 31, 2020� 19,581,333 � � � �
As at March 31, 2019� -� � � �
As at March 31, 2018� -

5. Intangible assets under development:     

 Intangible assets under development comprises of so�ware projects under development 

6. Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables - 32,676,384 62,757,384

Total   - 32,676,384 62,757,384 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Note: 

Trade receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk - - - 

Trade receivables - credit impaired - -  -      

Note:   

a First pari passu charge by way of hypotheca�on or indenture of mortgage and /or  hypotheca�on of servers, Pcs, tablets or 
any such Items lying in the premises, in transit or elsewhere,  book debts and other receivables.

b Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. 

7. Other non-current financial assets

Unsecured, considered good   

Equity commitment in an LLP                                     105,042,579  - - 

Sundry deposits 8,773,980 8,818,980 1,201,480 

Fixed deposit with a bank (original maturity more than 12 months) - - 3,209,429 

Total 113,816,559 8,818,980 4,410,909 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

8. Other non-current assets

Unsecured, considered good   

Deposit with statutory authori�es under protest 2,678,258 2,678,258 2,678,258 

Balance with revenue authori�es - 1,263,505 -

Total                                          2,678,258 3,941,763 2,678,258 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)



9. Inventories

Stock-in-trade (traded goods) 60,350,808 78,495,213 5,785,823

Total 60,350,808 78,495,213 5,785,823

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)
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10. Trade Receivables

Unsecured, considered good   

Trade receivables                                  127,000,154 101,501,153 142,557,870

Total 127,000,154 101,501,153 142,557,870

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Note:

Trade receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - - -   

Trade receivables - credit impaired 1,628,814 1,253,344 1,239,349

Impairment Allowance (allowance for bad and doub�ul debts)* 1,628,814 1,257,736 1,239,349 

* The provision for the impairment of trade receivables has been made  on the basis of the expected credit loss method.

Note:

a Trade receivable are receivable in normal opera�ng cycle and are shown net of an allowance for doub�ul debts, if any.

b First pari passu charge by way of hypotheca�on or indenture of mortgage and /or  hypotheca�on of servers, Pcs, tablets or 
any such Items lying in the premises, in transit or elsewhere,  book debts and other receivables.

c Trade receivables are non-interest bearing. 

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand - - 100,000

Balances with banks 

in current accounts 21,206,219 652,930 3,416,270 

in fixed deposits with a bank (original maturity less than 3 months) 941,692 921,790 848,260

Total 22,147,911 1,574,723 4.364.530

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

12 Loans

Unsecured ,considered good

Loan to a related party (Subsidiary) 243,991 1,014,301 978,236

Loans and advances to employees 1,140,000 - - 

Total 1,383,991 1,014,301 978,236 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)
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13 Other current financial assets

Unsecured, considered good   

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 470 - 12,857

Total 470 - 12,857 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

14 Income Tax and Deferred Tax

 Current tax assets (net)

Tax deducted at source 13,484,118 13,505,225 5,837,437
(net of provision for tax)

Total 13,484,118 13,505,225 5,837,437

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Deferred tax expense/(income) relates to the following:

Deferred tax liability on account of:
- Difference in WDV between book and income tax records (A) 5,449,164 976,352 363,383  

- Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be reclassified to 
 profit or loss (1,201,350) - -

-   Deferred tax liability (A)  6,650,513 976,352 363,383 

Deferred tax (asset) on account of:

- Employee benefits/gratuity 1,339,524 631,367 (81,022)

Deferred tax (asset)  (B) 1,339,524 631,367 (81,022)

Net deferred tax liability (A) - (B) 5,310,989 816,691 282,361

Opening balance 816,691 282,361 4,022,192 

Deferred tax expenses  for the year 3,328,141 534,330 (3,739,831)

Income tax rela�ng to items that will not be reclassified 
to profit or loss 1,201,350  - -

Balance as at the close of the year  5,346,180 816,691 282,361 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

15    Other current assets

Prepaid expenses 10,784 54,456 274,019 

Advance to suppliers  24,669,879 77,673,728 58,495,164 

Less:ECL provision 2,540,998 - -   

  22,128,881 77,673,728 58,495,164 

Balance with revenue authori�es   2,450,504 4,971,659 -   

TDS amount receivable from NBFC's   737,193 583,704 484,580 

Total 25,327,363 83,283,547 59,253,763 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)
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16 Equity share capital 

 Authorised share capital

As at April 1, 2018  12,000,000 120,000,000

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2019  12,000,000 120,000,000 

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2020  12,000,000 120,000,000

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2021 12,000,000 120,000,000 

Par�culars Number of  Amount
 Shares Rs.

Terms / rights a�ached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs 10 per share. Each shareholder is en�tled to one vote per equity 
share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring Annual 
General Mee�ng, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquida�on on the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible 
to receive remaining assets of the Company, a�er distribu�on of all preferen�al amounts, in propor�on to their shareholding.

As at April 1, 2018  11,456,601 114,566,010 

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2019  11,456,601 114,566,010  

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2020  11,456,601 114,566,010 

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2021 11,456,601 114,566,010  

Par�culars Number of  Amount
 Shares Rs.

Issued equity capital

Equity shares of Rs.10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid

 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

 No. of Shared held % of holding No. of Shared held % of holding No. of Shared held % of holding

Shareholders holding more than 5% of the paid up equity share capital of the Company: Rs.

Name of the shareholders 
Krishna Murari Singh 3,929,666  34.30% 3,929,666 34.30% 3,929,666 34.30%

Dhiraj Kumar Sharma 1,202,825 10.50% 1,202,825 10.50% 1,202,825 10.50%

Sidhhartha Xavier 1,202,825 10.50% 1,202,825 10.50% 1,202,825 10.50%

Reconcilia�on of the number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the repor�ng year:

As at April 1, 2018 11,456,601 114,566,010

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2019  11,456,601 114,566,010

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2020  11,456,601 114,566,010

Changes during the year - -

At March 31, 2021 11,456,601 114,566,010 

Par�culars Number of  Amount
 Shares Rs.
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Par�culars Bonus Shares issued for  Shares
 Shares considera�on bought 
  other than cash back

2020-21 - - -

2019-20 - - -

2018-19 - - -

2017-18 6,984,280 - -

2016-17 - 7,6000 -

Aggregate number of bonus shares, shares issued for considera�on other than cash and shares bought back during the period of five 
years immediately preceding the repor�ng date:

Securi�es premium reserve 17.1 173,847,395 173,847,395 173,847,395

Retained earnings 17.2 67,373,269 7,585,567 (24,217,556)

  241,220,664 181,432,962 149,629,839

Par�culars� Notes� As at March 31,  � As at March 31,� As at  March 31,
� � 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

17 Other equity

17.1 Securi�es Premium Reserve

Balance at the beginning of the year 173,847,395  173,847,395 174,032,280 

Less:Share issue expenses  - 184,885 

  173,847,395 173,847,395 173,847,395 

Balance at the end of the year 173,847,395 173,847,395 173,847,395 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

17.2 Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 7,585,567 (24,217,556) (34,470,304)

Add:Profit for the year 56,768,274 32,144,391 10,909,412

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss :   

- Remeasurement of defined benefit obliga�on (net of tax) 3,019,428 (341,268) (656,664)

Balance at the end of the year 67,373,269 7,585,567 (24,217,556)

Total 241,220,664 181,432,962 149,629,839

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Note:

Nature of reserves

a) Securi�es premium reserve

 Securi�es premium account comprises of premium on issue of shares. The reserve is u�lised in accordance with the specific 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

b) Retained earnings

 Retained earnings represents surplus/accumulated earnings of the Company and are available for distribu�on to shareholders.



Secured
Term loan from a bank: 21,228,354 13,806,000 15,381,000

Less: Current maturity of long term debt (Refer Note 18.1.1)  2,400,000 2,150,000 1,425,000 

  18,828,354 11,656,000 13,956,000 

Unsecured 
From others:
From Non Banking Finance Companies-Term loans 

(Refer Note 18.1.2)                                 11,968,425 19,414,000 11,337,033 

Less: Current maturi�es of long term debt 3,603,481 9,444,312 1,335,359 

  8,364,944 9,969,688 10,001,674 

From banks-term loans  (Refer Note 18.1.3) 6,013,572 10,380,696 10,237,761 

Less: Current maturi�es of long term debt  3,027,475  2,927,621 3,493,785

  2,986,097 7,453,075 6,743,977 
Unsecured

From a Director  2,000,000 - -

Inter Corporate Deposit 1,124,507  - - 

(Both interest free and repayable on demand) 

  3,124,507  - -

Warrants (Refer Note 18.2) 7,860,000 7,860,000 - 

Total 41,163,902 36,938,763 30,701,651 
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18 Long term borrowings

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

18.1 Details of long term borrowings:

� Par�culars� Security� Monthly instalment - Rs.� Rate of � Tenure 
� � � � interest %� (months)

18.1.1� Axis Bank Limited� Office premises located at �  75,000 for first 17 months, � 9.10*� 84 
� � unit No 605, Rupa Solitaire, � 1,50,000 for next 12 months, 
� � Millenium Business Park, � 2,00,000 for next 37 months, 
� � Mahape,� 3,00,000 for next  17 months and 
� � Navi Mumbai 400 710.� 7,06,000 for  the last month � �

18.1.2� ICICI Bank Limited� Underlying vehicle� 159,234� 8.31� 60 

18.1.3� ICICI Bank Limited� Underlying vehicle � 24,805� 8.50� 60 

18.2� Bajaj Finserv Limited� Unsecured� No monthly instalment � 9.5% upto 
� � � � March 2018 
� � � � and 9.75% 
� � � � from April 2018 240 � � �

� Shriram City Union  Unsecured�  156,347 for first 12 months,  19.51 � 36
 Finance Limited� � 108,548  for next 12 months � (Fixed)�   
� � � and 54,274 for last 12 months�

� Clix Capital Services 
 Pvt Limited� Unsecured� 162,953� 16.00� 36 

� Edelweiss Retail 
 Finance Limited � Unsecured� 74,558 � 17.00� 60 

� IDFC First Bank Limited� Unsecured� 199,770 � 16.00� 24 

(* floa�ng rate)
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19 Long term provisions:

Provision for employee benefits

For gratuity (unfunded) 1,484,998 3,844,864 2,929,556

For compensated absences (unfunded) 412,723 1,531,184 1,228,797

Total 1,897,721 5,376,048 4,158,353

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

20 Short term borrowings:

Secured (Refer Notes 20.1.1-20.1.3 and 20.2.1 - 20.2.3)

Repayable on demand from a bank: 

Cash credit 53,207,975 24,853,239 7,369,794

Total 53,207,975 24,853,239 7,369,794

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

20.1 Details of secured loans:

 Holding

20.1.1 Primary security: Hypotheca�on of servers, Pcs, tablets or any such Items lying in the premises, in transit or elsewhere,  
book debts and other receivables.

20.1.2 Collateral security:  Office premises located at unit No 605, Rupa Solitaire, Millenium Business Park, Mahape, Navi Mumbai 
400 710 and also personal guarantee of directors viz. Krishna Murari Singh and Beauty Singh  and Beauty Murari Singh and 
Amitabh Sinha jointly aggrega�ng to Rs.5,00,00,000 (March 31, 2020 Rs. 5,00,00,000 and March 31, 2019  
Rs.5,00,00,000)).

20.1.3 Aprrox. rate of interest -9.10% per annum (March 31, 2020  8.75% per annum and March 31, 2019  9.65% per annum).

 Subsidery

20.2.1 Primary security: Hypotheca�on of servers, Pcs, tablets or any such Items lying in the premises, in transit or elsewhere,  
book debts and other receivables.

20.2.2 Covered under CGTSME Scheme, Personal Gurantee of directors Mr. Amit Verma and Ms. Beauty Singh and Corporate 
Gurantee of Ms. Globalspace Technologies Limited

20.2.3 Aprrox. rate of interest -EBLR+ 3.5% i.e approx 9.5% (March 31, 2020  Nil and March 31, 2019  Nil).

21 Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 
(refer Note 21.1) 

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 
small enterprises  18,926,328 14,504,589 15,460,311

Total 18,926,328 14,504,589 15,460,311

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)
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21.1 Disclosure under the Micro ,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 :

 Amounts due to Micro and Small Enterprises are disclosed on the basis of and to the extent of informa�on available with the 
Company regarding status of the suppliers, which are as follows :

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

1 The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining 
 unpaid to any supplier at the end of the accoun�ng year; - - -

2 The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of 
 sec�on 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
 Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the 
 payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed 
 day during each accoun�ng year; - - -

3 The amount of interest due and payable for the period of 
 delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond 
 the appointed day during the year) but without adding the 
 interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium 
 Enterprises Development Act, 2006; - - -

4 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 
 end of each accoun�ng year; - - -

5 The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 
 even in the succeeding years, un�l such date when the 
 interest dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise, 
 for the purpose of disallowance of a deduc�ble expenditure 
 under sec�on 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
 Development Act, 2006. - - -

22 Other current financial liabili�es

Current maturi�es of long term debt 9,030,956 14,521,932 6,254,143

Interest accrued but not due - 325,827 330,393

Total 9,030,956 14,847,759 6,584,536

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

23 Other current liabili�es

Advances from customers 8,709,941 314,507 118,817

Statutory dues 38,934,786 38,253,737 47,201,409

Salary payable 690,349 - -

Total 48,335,076 38,568,244 47,320,226

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

24 Short term provisions

Provision for employee benefits

For gratuity - unfunded 18,490 67,535 47,772

For compensated absences-unfunded 17,602 62,464 58,865

Total 36,092 129,999 106,637

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)



29 Finance costs

Interest expense on:

Borrowings:

Term loans  1,288,486 983,874

Working capital                        4,037,579 3,931,693

Vehicle Loans 441,703 582,533

Other unsecured loans 1,286,164 2,589,654

Other borrowing costs - -

Processing charge 738,252 451,924
Bank charges 537,038 188,366

Total                           8,329,222 8,728,044

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

28 Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries and bonus                           7,895,759 12,800,355

Contribu�on to provident and other funds                               832,241 2,266,829

Gratuity                               552,216 935,071

Employees welfare                                   100,730 1,666,085

Total                           9,380,946 17,668,341

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020
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25 Revenue from opera�ons

Sale of:

Products (including accessories) 89,319,341 46,919,427

So�ware 22,675,000 56,890,026

Professional fees 149,300,336 77,299,889

Services - AMC 9,600,000 78,027,238

Total 270,894,677 259,136,580

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

26 Other Income

Interest                                858,166                                  85,371

Total                               858,166                                  85,371 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

27 Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade

Closing inventory

Stock-in-trade (traded goods)                         60,350,808 78,495,213

Opening inventory

Stock-in-trade (traded goods)                         78,495,213 5,785,823

Total                         18,144,405 (72,709,390

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020
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30 Deprecia�on & amor�sa�on expense

Deprecia�on on property, plant and equipment                          9,872,763 3,144,813

Amor�sa�on of an intangible asset                           12,976,336 11,646,984 

Total                         22,849,099 14,791,797

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

31 Other Expenses

Rent  -                              929,800 

Payments to auditor as:   

  a. auditors                               255,000                               255,000 

Miscellaneous expenses                            2,669,770                            6,356,784 

Adver�sement                           3,957,247                            8,152,066 

Prin�ng & Sta�onery                                   4,644                               577,852 

Communica�on expenses                               789,567                               796,840 

Legal fees                               111,964                               118,500 

Insurance                               231,960                               348,089 

Conveyance and travelling                               633,759                            4,047,154 

Repairs and maintenance-Others                                 13,363                               220,885 

Business promo�on                         10,678,552                         14,357,455 

Commission                                          -                                 500,000 

Professional fees                           6,300,820                         14,636,615 

Provision for expected credit loss                           4,155,817                                  13,995 

Directors si�ng fees                               920,000                               400,000 

Total                         30,722,463                         51,711,037 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

32 Earnings per share (EPS) 

Profit a�ributable to the equity holders of the Holding Company                         56,560,901                         32,144,391 

Amount available for equity share holders                         56,560,901                         32,144,391 

Weighted average number of equity shares (nos.)                         11,456,601                         11,456,601 

Basic EPS                                      4.94                                      2.81 

Diluted EPS                                      4.94                                      2.81 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

33 Related party disclosures:

33.1 The following table provides the list of related par�es and material transac�ons that have been entered into with related 
par�es for the relevant financial years

Sl. No Name of the related party Rela�onship
1 Krishna Murari Singh- Chairman and Managing Director Key Management Personnel (KMP's) 
2 Nirani Venkitakrishnan Kailasam (Director)  represented on the Board
3 Beauty Krishnamurari Singh (Director)
4 Amit Verma 

4 Swa� Arora Key Management Personnel (KMP's)
5 Amitabh Sinha
6 Prodyut Bha�acharya (CFO) 

7 Miljon Medi App LLP  En�ty in which a KMP is interested 
8 Makebot Robo�cs Solu�on Pvt. Ltd.

9 Shaswa�  Saraswat Rela�ve of Director (Amit Verma)
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33.2 Transac�ons with related par�es (excluding re-imbursements, if any):

1 Capital transac�ons
 Equity commitment in an LLP
 Miljon Medi App LLP  72,366,195  -

 Unsecured loans given
 Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private Limited  4,028,706 37,325,722

 Unsecured loans repaid
 Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private Limited 3,496,765 29,927,986 

 Unsecured loans taken 
 Krishna Murari Singh 2,000,000

 Equity shares allo�ed
 Makebot Robo�c Solu�ons Private Limited  -  20,942,050

 Security Deposit repaid 
 Beauty Krishnamurari Singh - 200,000 

2 Revenue transac�ons
 Expenses
 Si�ng Fees-Beauty Krishnamurari Singh 240,000 80,000 

 Salary/fees to KMP's* 
 Krishna Murari Singh 4,800,000 4,800,000 
 Nirani Venkitakrishnan Kailasam  - 85,000 
 Prodyut Bha�acharya  325,074 375,000 
 Swa� Arora 353,716 420,000 
 Amitabh Sinha 1,862,340 -   
 Amit Verma 1,216,833 1,395,000
 Shashwa� Saraswat 756,312 -

 Sales
 Miljon Medi App LLP (excluding GST) 22,675,000 1,050,000 

 Purchases
 Miljon Medi App LLP (excluding GST) 17,500,000 -   

 Sales return
 Miljon Medi App LLP (excluding GST) - 15,000,000 

Sl Par�culars For the Year For the Year
No. Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

(*excluding incremental liability for gratuity as employee wise breakup of such liability based on es�ma�on is not ascertainable)

33.3 Amounts outstanding for related par�es:

  Assets
1 Non current financial assets
 Equity commitment in an LLP
 Miljon Medi App LLP  105,042,579 - -

2 Trade Receivables
 Miljon Medi App LLP  - 32,676,384 59,757,384 

 Equity and liabili�es
1 Unsecured Loans    
 Krishna Murari Singh  2,000,000 - 156,428

2 Current Liabili�es
 Krishna Murari Singh  1,860,000 - - 
 Amitabh Sinha 121,268 - -

Sl. No. Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March 31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Notes:

(a) Related party rela�onships are as iden�fied by the Company on the basis of informa�on available and relied upon by the auditors.

(b) No amount has been wri�en off or wri�en back in respect of debts due from or to related par�es.
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34 Employee benefit obliga�ons

i Defined Contribu�on Plans

 Provident Fund: Contribu�on towards provident fund for employees is made to the regulatory authori�es, where the Company 
has no further obliga�ons. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribu�on Schemes as the Company does not carry any 
further obliga�ons, apart from the contribu�ons made on a monthly basis.

Contribu�on to Defined Contribu�on Plans, recognized as expense for the year as under:

Employer's Contribu�on to Provident Fund 832,241 2,266,829

Total                           832,241 2,266,829

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

ii) Defined Benefits Plans

 Gratuity: 

 The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering eligible employees in accordance with 
the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at re�rement, death, 
incapacita�on or termina�on of employment, of an amount based on the respec�ve employee’s salary and the tenure of 
employment. The Company’s liability is actuarially determined (using the Projected Unit Credit method) at the end of each 
year. The fair value of the plan assets of the trust administered by the Company, is deducted from the gross obliga�on.

 The following table sets forth the status of the gratuity plan of the Company, and the amounts recognized in the Balance sheet 
and Statement of profit and loss.

 Funding :

 The liability for gratuity is not funded by the Company.

Reconcilia�on of the net defined benefit obliga�on:

Opening defined benefit obliga�on 2,871,343                2,977,328 

Benefits paid from the fund - -

Benefit paid directly by the employer - -

Current service cost 207,690 614,505

Interest cost 192,093 227,170

Past service cost - -

Liability transfererd out - (606,393)

Actuarial losses / (gain) recognized in other comprehensive income - -

changes in demographic assump�ons - -

changes in financial assump�ons (23,550) 396,527

experience adjustments (2,067,504) (737,794)

Liabili�es assumed / (se�led) - - 

Closing defined benefit obliga�on 1,180,072 2,871,343 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

Reconcilia�on of the fair value of plan assets:

Opening fair value of plan assets - -

Interest Income - -

Employer contribu�ons - -

Benefits paid - -

Actuarial gains on Plan Assets - -

Closing fair value of plan assets - -

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020
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Balance sheet reconcilia�on

Opening defined benefit obliga�on 2,871,343                2,977,328 

Opening fair value of plan assets - -

Expenses recognised in profit and loss 399,783                   841,675 

Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income                        (2,091,054)                 (341,267)

Employer contribu�ons - -

Transfer in/Out - -

Benefits paid - -

Net (Asset) / Liability recognised in the Balance sheet 1,180,072              2,871,343

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

Expenses recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss:

Current service cost 399,783 841,675 

Interest cost                 - (341,267)

Expenses recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (2,091,054)                           -

Transfer in/Out - -

 (1,691,271)             2,871,343 

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obliga�on (2,091,054)                 (341,267)

 (2,091,054)               (341,267)

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020

Actuarial assump�on

Principal actuarial assump�on used to determine net periodic benefit cost and benefit obliga�on at the repor�ng dates :

Discount Rate (p.a.) 6.69% 6.83% 7.63%

Salary escala�on rate (p.a.) 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Expected rate of return on assets 7.57% 7.57% NA

A�ri�on rate 10.00% 10.00% 1%

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at  31, March� As at  31, March
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Mortality rate a�er employment NA NA NA

Mortality rate during employment Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives Indian Assured Lives
 Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14) Mortality (2012-14)

Notes :

Salary escala�on rate: The es�mates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valua�on, take account of infla�on, 
seniority, promo�on and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

Discount rate:  The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securi�es for the es�mated term of 
the obliga�ons.Assump�ons regarding future mortality experience are set in accordance with the sta�s�cs published by the Life 
Insurance Corpora�on of India.The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on 
that date, applicable to the period over which the obliga�on is to be se�led. There has been significant change in expected rate of 
return on assets due to change in the market scenario.



Projected Benefit Obliga�on on Current Assump�ons

Discount Rate: 1% increase 1,027,238  2,452,110

Discount Rate:  1% decrease 1,365,309 3,393,416

Future salary growth:  1% increase 1,018,528 3,302,488

Future salary growth:  1% decrease 1,206,013 2,529,489

Change in Rate of Employee Turnover :  1% Increase 1,206,013  2,983,565

Change in Rate of Employee Turnover :  1% Decrease 1,149,164 2,739,305

Par�culars For the Year For the Year
 Ended Marh 31, 2021 Ended Marh 31, 2020
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Sensi�vity analysis : Reasonably possible changes at the repor�ng date to one of the relevant actuarial assump�ons, holding other 
assump�ons constant, would have affected the defined benefit obliga�ons by the amounts shown below;

iii) Compensated absences

 The Company accrues for the compensated absences, a long term employee benefit plan based on the en�re available leave 
balance standing to the credit of the employees at year end. The value of such leave balance eligible for carry forward, is 
determined by actuarial valua�on as at the Balance sheet date and is charged to Statement of profit and loss in the period 
determined. The provision as at balance sheet dates are as follows:

Compensated absences liability 1,113,197                1,351,633 1,287,662 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Discount rate  6.83% 6.69% 6.69%

Long–term rate of compensa�on increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00%

Surplus recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss towards compensated absences are � 1,28,050  (March 31, 2020 � 5,29,802)

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Actuarial assump�on

35 Impairment review 

 Assets are tested for impairment annually or whenever there are any indicators for impairment. Impairment test is 
performed at the level of each Cash Genera�ng Unit (‘CGU’) or group of CGUs within the Company at which assets are 
monitored for internal  management purpose. The impairment assessment is based on higher of value in use and fair value 
less cost of disposal. 

36 Con�ngent liabili�es:

Income tax ma�ers disputed in appeal  6,516,790               6,516,790               6,516,790 
(Paid under protest  Rs. 1,000,000 
(March 31, 2020 Rs.10,00,000 March 31, 2019 Rs. 10,00,000)

Sales tax ma�ers disputed in appeal 1,422,752               6,411,244               6,804,565 
(Paid under protest Rs. 14,22,752 (March 31, 2020  Rs. 14,22,752 
March 31, 2019 Rs.14,22,752)

GST ma�er pending appeal (Paid under protest Rs.6,00,00,000 
(March 31, 2020 Rs. Nil March 31, 2019 Rs.Nil)                         99,000,000 - -

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Note:

Con�ngent liabili�es in respect of above ma�ers arising in the ordinary course of business, it is an�cipated that no material 
liabili�es will arise.
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37 The Company was earlier known as: 

 Globalspace Tech Private Limited upto September 28, 2016

 Globalspace Technologies Private Limited upto November 30, 2016 

38 Segment informa�on

 In line with the provisions of IND AS 108 ‘Opera�ng segments’ and basis the review of opera�ons being done by the Senior 
Management, the opera�ons of the Company fall under the business of providing technology enabled solu�ons and allied 
ac�vi�es, which is considered to be the only reportable segment by the Management. 

39 For assets taken on lease : leases are cancellable in nature/ of short term term tenure. Accordingly, Ind AS 116 is not 
applicable. 

40 Financial Instruments - Accoun�ng Classifica�ons and Fair Value Measurements

 The fair values of the financial assets and liabili�es are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged 
in a current transac�on between willing par�es, other than in a forced of liquida�on sale. 

 The following methods and assump�ons were used to es�mate the fair values:

 Fair value of cash and cash equivalent, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables, 
other current financial liabili�es approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturi�es of these 
instruments. 

 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valua�on 
technique:

 Level 1 :  quoted (unadjusted) prices in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es

 Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are observable, either 
directly or indirectly.

 Level 3: techniques which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on 
observable market data. 

Par�culars  Carrying value
  at amor�sed cost Fair value
  as at March 31,2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Non current financial assets
Trade receivables  62,757,384 
Other non current financial assets  4,410,909 - - -

 Total  67,168,293  - - -
Current financial assets
Trade receivables  142,557,870 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents  4,364,530  - - -
Loans  5,837,437    - - -
Other financial assets  12,857 - - -

 Total  152,772,694  - - -
Non current financial liabili�es
Long term borrowings  30,701,651 - - -

 Total  30,701,651  - - -
Current financial liabili�es
Short term borrowings  7,369,794 - - -
Trade payables  15,460,311 - - -
Other current financial  liabili�es  6,584,536 - - -

 Total  29,414,641 - - -
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Par�culars  Carrying value
  at amor�sed cost Fair value
  as at March 31,2020 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Non current financial assets
Trade receivables  32,676,384
Other non current financial assets  8,818,980 - - -

 Total  41,495,364  - - -
Current financial assets
Trade receivables  10,150,153 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents  1,574,723 - - -
Loans  1,014,301    - - -

 Total  104,090,176 - - -
Non current financial liabili�es
Long term borrowings  36,938,763 - - -

 Total  36,938,763 - - -
Current financial liabili�es
Short term borrowings  24,853,239 - - -
Trade payables  14,504,589 - - -
Other current financial  liabili�es  14,847,759 - - -

 Total  54,205,587 - - -

Par�culars  Carrying value
  at amor�sed cost Fair value
  as at March 31,2021 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Non current financial assets
Other Non current financial assets  113,816,559

 Total  113,816,559 - - -
Current financial assets
Trade receivables  127,000,154 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents  22,147,911  - - -
Loans  1,383,991    - - -

 Total  150,532,056 - - -
Non current financial liabili�es
Long term borrowings  41,163,902 - - -

 Total  41,163,902 - - -
Current financial liabili�es
Short term borrowings  53,207,975 - - -
Trade payables  18,926,328 - - -
Other current financial  liabili�es  9,,030,,956 - - -

 Total  81,165,258 - - -

During the repor�ng period there was no transfer between level 2 and level 3 fair value measurements.

41 Financial risk management objec�ves and policies         

 The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

 -  Credit risk;

 -  Liquidity risk; and

 -  Market risk     

 The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk 
management framework who is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies.      

 The Company’s risk management policies are established to iden�fy and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set 
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are 
reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market condi�ons and the Company’s ac�vi�es. The Company, through its 
training, standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and construc�ve control environment in which all 
employees understand their roles and obliga�ons.          
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 The board of directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management policies and 
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in rela�on to the risks faced by the Company.       

 Credit risk     

 Credit risk arises from the possibility that counter  party may not be able to se�le their obliga�ons as agreed. To manage this, 
the Company periodically assesses the financial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condi�on, current 
economic trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts receivable. Individual risk limits are set 
accordingly.     

 The Company considers the probability of default upon ini�al recogni�on of asset and whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk on an ongoin basis throughout each repor�ng period. To assess whether there is a significant increase 
in credit risk that company caompares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the repor�ng date with the risk of 
default as at the date of ini�al recogni�on. It considers reasonable and suppor�ve forwarding-looking informa�on such as:     

 i)  Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,

 ii)  Actual or expected significant changes in the opera�ng results of the counterparty

 iii) Financial or economic condi�ons that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparty’s ability to meet its 
obliga�ons,

 iv) Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same counterparty,     

 Financial assets are wri�en off when there is no reasonable expecta�on of recovery, such as a debtor/borrower failing to 
engage in a repayment plan with the Company. Where receivables/loans have been wri�en off, the Company con�nues to 
engage in enforcement ac�vity to a�empt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in 
statement of profit and loss.         

 Trade and other receivables

 “The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteris�cs of each customer. Credit risk is 
managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and con�nuously monitoring the creditworthiness of customers 
to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. Credit terms are in line with industry trends.”      

 Summary of the Company’s exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows     : 

Less than 180 days 101,561,685 74,261,035 87,269,265

More than 365 days 25,438,469 59,916,502 118,045,989

Total                  127,000,154 134,177,536 205,315,255 

Par�culars As at March 31,  � As at March�31, � As at  March 31, 
 2021 (Rs.) � 2020 (Rs.)� 2019 (Rs.)

Expected credit loss assessment for customers as at March 31, 2019,  March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2021

Exposures to customers outstanding at the end of each repor�ng period are reviewed by the Company to determine credit losses. 
Given that the macro economic indicators affec�ng customers of the Company have not undergone any substan�al change, the 
Company expects the historical trend of minimal credit losses to con�nue.The movement in the allowance for impairment in 
respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows.

Par�culars Rs.

Balance as at April 01, 2019 1,239,349

Impairment loss recognised 13,995 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 1,253,344 

Impairment loss recognised 375,470

Balance as at March 31, 2021 1,628,814 

Cash and bank balance

The Company held cash and bank balance with credit worthy banks and financial ins�tu�ons of � 2,21,47,911,  � 1,574,723 and � 

42,64,530 as at March 31, 2021,  March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, respec�vely.The credit worthiness of such banks and 
financial ins�tu�ons is evaluated by the management on an ongoing basis and is considered to be good.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to se�le or meet its obliga�ons on �me. The board of directors 
are  responsible for liquidity, funding as well as se�lement management. In addi�on, processes and policies related to such risks 
are overseen by the board of directors. Management monitors the Company's net liquidity posi�on through rolling forecast on the 
basis of expected cash flows.
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The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturi�es of financial liabili�es at the repor�ng date based 
on contractual undiscounted payments.

Borrowings (including interest 

accrued and due) 62,025,719 413,77,114 54,222,931 28,752,936 44,068,001 6,511,730

Trade payables                    18,926,328 - 14,504,589 - 15,460,311 -

Par�culars As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
� Less than 1 year 1 - 3 years Less than 1 year 1 - 3 years Less than 1 year 1 - 3 years

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a 
financial instrument. The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes in the interest rates, foreign currency 
exchange rates, equity prices and other market changes that affect market risk sensi�ve instruments. Market risk is a�ributable 
to all market risk sensi�ve financial instruments including investments and deposits, foreign currency receivables and payables. 
The Company market risk is managed by the board of directors which evaluates and excercises independent control over the 
en�re process of market risk management. It also recommends risk management objec�ves and policies ans also management of 
cash resources, implemen�ng hedging strategies for foreign currency exposures and ensuring compliance with market risk limits 
and policies.

a)  Foreign currency risk

 The Company operates interna�onally and por�on of the business is transacted in several currencies and consequently the 
Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk mainly in US dollar currency.

Increase / (decrease) in profit and loss 37,853 (37,853) (27,658) 27,658

Foreign currency (USD) For the year ended For the year ended
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

 1% increase 1% Decrease 1% increase 1% Decrease

b)  Interest rate risk

 Interest rate risk can be either fair value interest rate risk or cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk 
of changes in fair values of fixed interest bearing financial assets or borrowings because of fluctua�ons in the interest rates, if 
such assets/borrowings are measured at fair value through profit or loss. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future 
cash flows of floa�ng interest bearing borrowings will fluctuate because of fluctua�ons in the interest rates.

 Exposure to interest rate risk

 The Company’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing 
borrowings is as follows:

Floa�ng rate borrowings 18,796,510 26,177,932 20,210,143

Fixed rate borrowings 84,606,323 56,797,934 30,369,588 

Total         103,402,833 82,975,867 50,579,731 

Par�culars As at  As at  As at 
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Trade payable USD - - 40,000

Trade receivables USD 52,500 - -

Foreign currency sensi�vity

The table below demonstrates sensi�vity on profit a�er tax and total equity due to change in foreign exchange rates of 
currencies where it has significant exposure :

Foreign currency exposure� Currency� As at � As at  � As at  
  March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020  March 31, 2019



153

Interest rate sensi�vity

The following table demonstrates the sensi�vity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that por�on of loans and 
borrowings. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is effected through the impact on floa�ng rate 
borrowings, as follows:

Increase / (decrease) in profit and loss before tax

Term loans (392,104) 392,104 (109,319) 109,319

Working capital (552,080) 552,080 (449,336) 449,336 

Total                 (944,183)             944,183                (558,656)           558,656 

Foreign currency (USD) For the year ended For the year ended
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020

 1% increase 1% Decrease 1% increase 1% Decrease

42 Capital management: 

 The Company manages its capital to ensure that the Company while maximising the return to stakeholders through 
op�misa�on of debt and equity balance.

 The capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings offset by cash and bank balances) and total equity of 
the Company.

 Gearing Ra�o

 The gearing ra�o at the end of the repor�ng period was as follows:

43 The previous period figures have been regrouped / reclassified, wherever considered necessary.

44 The Company has presented Balance sheet as at March 31, 2019 as there was some errors and omissions in earlier years 
amoun�ng to Rs.3,74,01,649. The same is  adjusted by adjus�ng the opening balance in retained earnings and credi�ng 
statutory dues.  

45 The outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic is causing disturbance and slowdown of economic ac�vity throughout 
the world and is impac�ng opera�ons of the businesses. The Company has considered the possible effects that may result 
from the pandemic rela�ng to COVID-19. According to the management,  there will not be any impact on these financial 
statements and/or on the business of the company.

As per report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of�
For Tolia & Associates� Globalspace Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants�
ICAI Firm Registra�on Number: 111017W Sd/-� Sd/-
 Krishna Murari Singh � Beauty Singh�
Sd/-� Chairman & Managing Director� Director�
Kiran P. Tolia� DIN : 03160366� DIN : 03481024�
Proprietor� �
Membership Number: 043637� Sd/-� Sd/-
UDIN:21043637AAAAIG7075 Prodyut Bha�acharya� Swa� Arora
� Chief Financial Officer � Company Secretary
Navi Mumbai, June 29, 2021 Mem. No. 55545 & Compliance Officer
  Mem. No. A44529
 Sd/-
 Amitabh Sinha
 CEO & Director
 DIN : 03480980

Debt  103,402,832 82,975,867 50,579,731

Less: Cash and cash equivalents 22,147,911 1,168,035 4,264,530 

Net debt 81,254,921 81,807,832 46,315,201 

Total equity 355,786,674 295,998,972 264,195,849

Net debt to equity ra�o (%) 22.84% 27.64% 17.53%

The Management of the Company reviews the capital structure of the Company on a periodic basis.

Par�culars As at  As at  As at 
 March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Rs.
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